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Corporate Structure
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Financial Summary

7&;':_‘\_ dh
MBRmE
For the year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=1+—HLEE
2013 2014 2015* 2016 2017
—F—=F —ZZE—WNOF —T—HF* T—RF ZE—tHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAE T FA& T FAET FAET FET
Revenue A 442,312 509,250 145,944 163,856 130,625
Profit/(Loss) for the year & A R|#EH AEAG
attributable to the FEHRH,
owners of the parent (& 18) 94,120 (174,565) (56,480) (68,015) 213,675
At 31 December
R+=ZA=+—H
2013 2014 2015* 2016 2017
—EF—= —ZE—F T—AF* ZT—RFE ZE—tHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FA T FET FET FAET
Assets and liabilities BENAE
Total assets BB E 1,987,066 2,961,339 3,226,035 3,298,589 3,890,963
Total liabilities waE (1,085,883)  (1,028,648) (429,272) (597,123) (720,950)
901,183 1,932,691 2,796,763 2,701,466 3,170,013
Equity attributable to [SINGIE ZEWN ()
owners of the parent = 695,985 1,723,520 2,711,373 2,564,405 2,888,193
Non-controlling
interests FEVE IR 2 205,198 209,171 85,390 137,061 281,820
901,183 1,932,691 2,796,763 2,701,466 3,170,013
* Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 included the revenue * HE-_Z2—AF+-A=+—ALEEZHRAE

generated from the discontinued operations.

ERADKIEREEBZHRA -

ITRERRFEEXSEERAR —2—LFFH
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of
the board of
directors of Beijing
Enterprises Medical and
Health Industry
Group Limited, | am pleased
to present the operating
results of the Group for the
financial year ended
31 December 2017.

RAERTKIE
BEEREEXEEERIR
AAEZE RABDAT
Ert&EEEE-Z2—+t&F
+TZA=+—HILEK

FENRKEEE-
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| am pleased to present the results for the year ended
31 December 2017 (the “Year”) of Beijing Enterprises Medical and
Health Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) to the shareholders (the “Shareholders”)
of the Company.

The Group, as an investment and financing platform of Beijing
Enterprises Group Company Limited principally engaged in general
health business, has adhered to the principle of “making health
more intelligent, making lives more honorable” with the mission of
“Beijing Enterprises as a pilot for healthy China”. It is committed to
exploring and developing the health industry in the direction of the
national policy development, which is driven by financial capital and
supported by quality resources, to promptly occupy resources of all
large cities, expand the market size and build up a leading brand in
a bid to establish a top-notch comprehensive health industrial and
investment group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

With respect to the geriatric care services, the Group continued to
develop the geriatric care business with its “Golden Sun” brand and
replicated and expanded the business layout. Currently, it has
successfully expanded to the cities including Beijing, Shanghai,
Fuzhou, Dali, Longyan, Nanping, Shijiazhuang, Wuhu and Wuxi. As
of 31 December 2017, the number of elderly members of the Group
reached 772,865, the number of community service centers was 439
and the number of beds for the geriatric care services was 1,750.

With respect to the medical services, apart from developing a
platform for hierarchical diagnosis and family doctors service
information continuously, the Group successfully established its first
specialty hospital in cardiovascular diseases with the Anhui Province
Xuancheng City Central hospital.

Chairman’s Statement e /&<
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Chairman’s Statement e /&<

With regard to the new health industrial parks, with our
management team devoting much effort and seizing the change of
the PRC's land policies, our planning in different projects continued
to gain approval successfully. Therefore, the new health industrial
parks can better align with the market demands and fully reflect its
potential values. As the demand for the new industrial parks is
strong, the Group successfully transferred a project in Beijing at a
consideration of RMB796 million in the middle of the year and
recorded profit before tax of more than RMB500 million. In
December 2017, the Group successfully won the bidding of the land
use right of four land situated at the Haidong New District, Dali,
which will be the flagship project for the general industry layout of
the Group.

With respect to the sports business, considering the sunrise nature
of the sports industry in China and the close relation to the existing
business of the Group, the Group intended to develop a sports-
related new business segment. The Group made investments in
Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (”Beijing
Sports”), an associate company of the Group, since 18 December
2015. Beijing Sports completed a series of acquisitions during the
Year. It has developed a mature business model of establishing and
operating creative stadium and commenced to establish special
sports park projects like snow sports park of its own brand.

In the beginning of 2017, the Group commenced financial business
in relation to asset management, and Guangzhou Aviation Industrial
Fund Management Limited was established jointly with Guangzhou
Aerotropolis Investment and Construction Co. Ltd and Guangzheng
Lingxiu Investment Company Limited (BEF#FEHFEEBR QA
through capital contribution. Currently, two industrial funds have
been initiated. The Group successively initiated various industrial
investment funds subsequently. Funds under management will enter
the stage of investment and operation one after another, which is
expected to bring long-term, sustainable and stable income stream
for the Group.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Chairman’s Statement e /&<

OUTLOOK

The Group continues to be optimistic to the future development of
the health industry and adjusts its development strategies timely in
accordance with the changes in the industry. In respect of the
overall strategy, the Group will optimize its principal business
gradually in the future to develop key core business, non-core
business and the investment of industrial layout, subject to timely
adjustment based on the principle of the profit maximization.

With huge population and economic volume of China, as well as
increasingly deepening of the Chinese economic and political
system reform, the living standard of the people has been
improving and the consumption power becomes stronger. Apart
from the general clinical medical services, the demand for disease
prevention are larger. The Group explores the development
opportunities of this sector based on the concept of “Health
Return”, thereby continuously creating long-term and stable returns
for the Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors,
the management and all staff, and to express heartfelt gratitude to
all colleagues for their hard work and contribution to the
development of the Group in the past year. Meanwhile, | would also
like to express appreciation to all shareholders, the banking sector,
the investment community and business partners for their full
confidence and strong support to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR B A A B AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in geriatric care, medical care,
general health industrial parks, sports and financial business. While
leveraging on its own business as the basis for development, and
driven by financial capital and underpinned by premium resources,
each of the business seeks to achieve synergy with one another and
offer mutual support in line with the nation’s policy development
trends, and is dedicated to building a first-rate integrated
investment group in the healthcare industry.

The general health industry has been supported by the
national policy environment

Since 2015, there have been frequent developments in the general
health industry, be they at the national, social capital or enterprise
level. In particular, at the national level, several dozens of policies
such as the National Planning Guideline for the Healthcare Service
System (2015-2020) (€% BB 7 &7 4 AR 7% 82 33 21 41 2 (2015-2020))),
the Guideline for the 13th Five-year Plan for Economic and Social
Development of the People’s Republic of China ((fZE A R L F1E
BREEMESEREET=ZMHMAEFRIME)), the "Outline of
Healthy China 2030 Plan” ([ # E12030#1 £l 41 £)), the State
Council’s Notice on the Issuance of the Development Plan for the
Nation's Strategic Emerging Industries under the 13th Five-year Plan
(BN EN B+ =0 B RS HT EE X R R NBA)),
the Notice on the Enhancement of the Licensing Work for Medical
and Geriatric Care Integrated Service Providers (R MTEELE S
AR 7S 51 Al TIERYEEN)), the Guiding Opinions for Promoting the
Sound Development of the Pharmaceutical Industry ({85 {E 3 5 %%
EFXRRERNIEZEER)) the Dedicated Plan for Technological
Innovation of the Health Industry under the 13th Five-year Plan
K+t =RIERELRFEAIFEEBE)), and the Action Plan for the
Development of the Smart Healthcare and Geriatric Care Industries
(2017-2020) KB B R EZEXERETE & (2017-2020%))) have
been introduced since 2015, featuring detailed plans and opinions
delivered from the perspectives of, among others, industry
objectives, key missions, various sub-industries, and technological
breakthroughs, and presenting various supporting policies in
relation to finances and taxation, capital and manpower. In
particular, the publication of the “Outline of Healthy China 2030
Plan” demonstrates the fact that “Healthy China” was forged as an
official component of the national strategies, as well as the nation’s
resolve to optimise the supply and distribution of its medical care
resources and to fully promote its diagnostic and treatment
hierarchy and the integration of medical care with geriatric care. All
this has resulted in, following the Internet, a new drive to the
Chinese economy.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis e E & [E & wm D 4T

In the Government’s Work Report, the Premier of the State Council
specifically included “promotion of health across the nation” as one
of the priorities for 2017. "Healthy China” — this key strategic plan
that serves to protect people’s lives — has again received wide
attention from people from all walks of life. The “Healthy China
2020" strategy was specifically put forward in 2012, and by 2020 the
country’s leading health indicators will have reached levels that are
essentially comparable to those of medium-ranked developing
countries, where the average life expectancy would have risen from
73 years in 2005 to 77 years in 2020, with the aggregate health
expenditure growing to 6.5%-7% of the country’'s GDP — an
increase of 2 percentage points. Going forward, the government’s
medical care and healthcare spending will be continuously
augmented.

The development of China’s general health industry is being
fostered by a favourable policy environment. According to the
estimates given in the Research Report on the Market Operations
and Development Trends of China’s General Health Industry (2016-
2021) (20162021 FH B REREX T IS ETEEXERB LM AR
%)), the size of China’s health industry would be RMB4.9 trillion for
2017 and would reach RMB12.9 trillion for 2021, representing a
compound annual growth rate of approximately 27% over the next
five years (2017-2021). According to the relevant national plans, the
market size for the general health industry as bolstered by “Healthy
China” is likely to reach RMB10 trillion by 2020 and exceed RMB16
trillion by 2030, which will be three times the size of the current
market. This would translate into a sizeable business opportunity for
enterprises engaged in the general health industry.

Geriatric Care Business

According to the latest elderly population census data released by
the National Bureau of Statistics on 18 January 2018, the elderly
population aged 60 or above in the PRC was 240 million as at the
end of 2017, representing 17.3% of the total population. It is
expected that such number will subsequently remain at
approximately 400 million for an extended period of time. From
2014 to 2050, the purchasing power of the elderly population will
increase from approximately RMB4 trillion to approximately RMB106
trillion, and its proportion to the country’'s GDP will increase from
8% to 33%. Remaining in its early stage of development, the
geriatric care services system is characterised by a serious lack of
products and facilities offering dedicated services to the elderly
population, deficient service items and offerings, as well as a
complete absence of quality assurance for the service personnel.
There exists a significant supply gap in the geriatric care services
market.

B 75 B 48 3R A BT TAE SR 5 R PR BE MG [ HE 2 2
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In line with the national policies for the reform and development of
the geriatric care industry, the Group has focused on the
socialisation of geriatric care services as advocated by the country,
and set up an intelligent, ecologically chained, urban geriatric care
system incorporating information platform, home care,
neighbourhood care and institutional medical support. The system
delivers systematic and smart geriatric care solutions to cities for the
provision of one-stop services to the elderly.

The Group has established its geriatric care brand “Golden Sun”
and “Hongtai”, which has strong competitive advantages in the
national geriatric care industry. Currently, the geriatric care
operations of the Group span across such cities as Beijing,
Shanghai, Fuzhou, Dali, Longyan, Nanping, Shijiazhuang, Wuhu and
Wuxi.

AEERABERHBZEERNETERNHBE
ERBREARSDOLECELZES - BRT
KEEEFE BEREE - PERERKESR
MEARBHRTEERZRS ARTRHR
BUBRBERARNTR REHRFREER U
ABERS -

AEEEY TEEBRABEZEETEBRARF
BENEABINRER]IEEREMmE- B
Al AEERZEXCERE=ER LB 8
M- KB -EE BT AORHE BHRED
EWT e

Beijing dt =

Shijiazhuang & R ¥

Wuhu %

Shanghai L&

Wuxi # 5

Fuzhou & M
Longyan R &
Nanping &

Dali X#
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The geriatric care business of the Group are mainly operated by 15
private non-enterprise entities (the entities excluded from the
Group's financial consolidation) established by Golden Sun. The
private non-enterprise entities aim to explore resources on geriatric
care services invested by the government, and provide primary
home-based geriatric care, community care and institutional
geriatric care services. Golden Sun and its commercial subsidiaries
are engaged in the provision of geriatric care value-added services,
sale of geriatric care-related products, provision of information
platform services, analysis of client information, and exploration of
business opportunities arising from big data, by means of
applications that have been researched and developed on their own
including Golden Sun Home-Based Services V1.01 (£ K5 R R
V1.01), Information Platform V1.0 ({2 8.F &V1.0), Filial Piety V1.0 (£
153#V1.0) and Geriatric Care Institution Software V1.0 (& E## &4
V1.0). Following the implementation of a series of policies by the
PRC government in 2016, open tenders of the community services of
home-based geriatric care, including direct purchase of services by
the government, government subsidies and purchase of services by
welfare organisations, etc., were conducted in 2017. Leveraging on
the influential power and professional, all-round geriatric care
services of “Golden Sun” brand, the Group has seized the
opportunities and obtained an accumulated government purchase
amount of RMB53 million as of 31 December 2017, among which 3
projects are community care centres to be established by the
government and operated by private enterprises, aiming to provide
a total of 547 beds for geriatric care, and 8 projects are community
care centres to be established by the government and operated by
private enterprises, aiming to provide a total of 151 beds for
geriatric care.

The Group’'s geriatric care brand “Golden Sun” has gained
continuous attention from the leaders of the nation. In early 2017,
the Fujian Province Fuling Golden Sun Geriatric Care Fund ({2 &
el & K5 & EZE®) initiated by Golden Sun was formally launched
in Fuzhou for supporting the development of geriatric care
undertakings. In June 2017, Mr. Huang Shuxian, the Minister of the
Ministry of Civil Affairs of the PRC, visited “Golden Sun” and
provided us with guidance. He praised the avant-garde notions,
models and professionalism demonstrated by its geriatric care
services, and fully recognised the achievement “Golden Sun” has
made in establishing the nationwide geriatric care industry network.
In the fourth quarter of year 2017, Golden Sun was given the
“National Civilised Award for Respect to the Elderly” ([ & Bl &% X
B 5% ] 28 22) by the National Elderly Work Committee (& B & #& T {E
Z B9), designated as a Smart Healthcare and Geriatric Care
Distinguished Enterprise (B 2R & £ R 1) by the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology of the PRC, and ranked as a
“5A social organisation” (SAZtt &) by the Ministry of Civil
Affairs of the PRC.
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As of 31 December 2017, the number of elderly members of the BHE_ZT—tF+-_A=1+T—H XEEBZR
Group reached 770,000, representing an increase of 33%; the BEAGEABEITEA  HBR3B% HESR
number of its community service centres reached 439 (including 41 2 B 75 i B i A39ME (B B4 E AL & R O
community care centres, providing a total of 291 beds), representing HEFIRAI2915R) + & K20% : & £ K1 E1,750
an increase of 20%; and the number of its beds associated with R(EEEEZEERENMLRBRALE) BE
geriatric care reached 1,750 (including geriatric care institutions and 50% -

community care centres ™), representing an increase of 50%.

Note: Community care centres refer to small-scale community geriatric care i HEBBPLRIERZARUAEBE EHR
institutions that offer such services as day care, short-term care, and home # FEREAEERBNNALRBEEE -

care to the elderly.

Table 1: Operational Status K— EEMRR
2017 2016
“E-t% N2
Number of Number Number of Number
Number of ~ Community of Beds Number of ~ Community of Beds
Elderly Service  provided by Elderly Service  provided by
Members Centres Institutions Members Centres Institutions

R#EA HEEE EERE REZA HEEZ RERE
BEAB(N) RBUEE KUBER S8AHAN) REWEWE) AKEHE

— Beijing — R 219,764 131,098 51 53
— Fujian —BE 540,598 450,321 316 690
— Wuxi* — &5 = — — 285
Other Regions HEin 1 12,503 - — 135
Total A 772,865 581,419 367 1,163
Rate of Increase BRE
# This project is owned by an associate with 40% of equity interest. # AIEH R 40% 2 B E QA RIFEA o

14 Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Medical Care Business

In 2017, the Chinese government proactively supported the
development of the medical care industry with the implementation
of various policies, including the Administrative Measures for the
Registration of Medical Practitioners (B Bl #h 3 o filt & 12 #0%))
promulgated by the National Health and Family Planning
Commission in March 2017 which has allowed current doctors to
step up their practice and establish and operate clinics, ensuring a
sufficient supply of talents for the “clinic boom”. In May 2017, the
General Office of the State Council issued the Opinions on
Supporting the Provision of Multi-layered and Diverse Medical Care
Services by Social Forces KBAR X @ NSRRI ZEBRZEMAE
BEREEER)), further delineating the relevant objectives and
requesting that by 2020, the medical care operational capabilities of
social forces be significantly enhanced, their medical technologies,
service quality and brand recognition be considerably elevated, and
such relevant support as professional talent, health insurance and
pharmaceutical technologies be further bolstered, thereby achieving
an all-round optimisation of the backdrop for industry development.
A batch of socially-run medical care institutions with relatively strong
service competitiveness will be created to form certain unique,
influential cluster zones for the healthcare services industry, offering
services that will essentially meet the domestic demand and
gradually giving rise to a new setting characterised by multi-layered
and diverse medical care services.

The Group responded proactively to the country’s relevant policies,
and a structure of

"

upholding hospital operation as the core,
underpinned by the family doctor service platform and sale of
medical and geriatric products as complement” has been roughly
formed in its medical care sector. Moreover, the Group has utilised
Internet medical care as a breaking point, by leveraging the 020
model, established a layout of “quality medical resources +
community-level diagnosis access + direct customer service”,
providing a solid basis for us to develop the sale of medical and
geriatric products and build up an industrial chain system. As the
medical care sector is a resource-intensive industry, in this regard,
the Group has cooperated with specialists of top hospitals in
respect of the hospital management sector. As to the establishment
of the family doctor service platform, we have set up an excellent IT
team with quality products that have won national awards; and as to
the medical and geriatric product sector, we enjoyed the exclusive
dealership right of Kl (an internationally renowned brand of medical
and geriatric furniture) in the Asia-Pacific region.

EBEXK
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BELZERER  ERBEATER S —+
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Eﬁﬁﬂ@%ihﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁ%ém%%m
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EAT  BERE BERNSEIEBE—FPF
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BRBRERF IS EMBERIE  ERE
FAEFENNBCRERBEESRE ' IR
BHAEEXAETERNE R ZETHREERS
BRIEBERBHER -

AEEEBEERARBRRRE EBREXE
AR TILNEREERZL REBERYE
?Aﬁih' %Ew%ﬁﬁﬁﬁmiiﬁ

cAEMBBERESA  FHO20RA -
ﬁﬂﬁg Féﬁ+%F$FAD+E§£§%
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CEmESERARE EEREERTHKE
ﬁlmﬂ% SERAMMKIEARRBRAIBHE -
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Table 2: Business Model

Hospital

B

R EEERX

Sale of Medical and

Geriatric Products

BEEmHE

Family Doctor Service
Platform

XEBLETSR

Business Model

(

—

Investment in hospitals;

(1) Charge of urban Overall design and sale of

[SEZ N 1 ®wEBR construction and medical, geriatric and
maintenance fee; healthcare products.
M WERTEREEE: BENEREMBRRFNEE -
(2) Charge of operation and (2) Business development on
management fee from the healthcare-related
public hospitals; big data;
2 WERAYERELEE (2 RBREABEHOERME:
=
(3) Control over part of (3) Diversion of the patients
supply chain system in into the Group's hospital
hospitals. system.
Q) ZEBRAOHERE QO HERIB[EEASEERRE
K- B
Hospitals Bk

In December 2017, the Group entered into an agreement with Anhui
Province Xuancheng City Central Hospital, pursuant to which the two

—E—tEHE+ R AEERZBEEWT P
DERBEAHHE A NREZRBEEHTRER

BE-FAOMERER  EEBEKREENES

parties would jointly invest in and operate a cardiovascular disease
hospital in Xuancheng City of Anhui Province, with the aim of
introducing globally advanced medical technologies and services
into Anhui. Following its discussions with the Xuancheng Municipal
Government and the Xuancheng City Central Hospital, the Group
decided to erect the new hospital at the same site as the original
Xuancheng City Central Hospital, whereby a third-tier specialist
hospital chiefly targeted at patients of cardiovascular diseases would
be constructed by means of renovation and upgrade
transformations carried out at the original site. The development of
such a project would eventually be expanded to cover the entire
province. Preliminarily, the Cardiovascular Disease Hospital is
planned to offer 350 beds, 4 operating theatres and 6 intensive care
units and to focus on the treatment of diseases relating to the

departments of cardiology, oncology and rehabilitation.
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In December 2017, as the successful tenderer, the Group acquired
the land use rights in respect of four land parcels in Haidong New
District of Dali City (KM /S EF[R), including an area of over
30,000 square metres to be used for medical, healthcare and
charitable purposes. In future, the said area will see the construction
of a high-end boutique hospital offering no less than 200 beds,
which will be transformed into the best high-end rehabilitation-
oriented hospital in connection with the specialist department of
oncology and cardiovascular diseases in Dali and its peripheral area.
Besides, high-end medical facilities will be introduced into and
specialist talents will be nurtured for the said hospital, coupled with
the construction of a hospital system incorporating both the medical
and geriatric care components. This would result in the creation of
a specialist, boutique, integrated medical and geriatric care sphere
on the basis of physical products under the project. It is expected
that the design planning will be launched in 2018, the construction
will be commenced in 2019, and the hospital will be put into
operation in 2020.

Family Doctor Service Platform

The Group has been engaged in profound cooperation with Yiwu
City, Zhejiang Province in developing and operating a platform for
hierarchical diagnosis and family doctors service information, which
has developed as the first service charging platform connecting with
the municipal medical insurance system and has become an
innovative “Internet + medical” product nationalwide. As of
31 December 2017, the platform has covered all the 14 healthcare
service centres, 182 healthcare service stations and some third-tier
hospitals in the city, creating a three-level linkage mechanism. On
the platform, there are over 1,230 contracted family doctors and
200,000 contracted service residents. Leveraging on the successful
experiences gained from Yiwu City, the Group kicked off the
development and implementation of city hierarchical diagnosis
platform and family doctor contracted services in places such as
Beijing, having made endeavours in the covered cities in connection
with family doctor management services that incorporate both the
medical and geriatric care components.

In March 2017, by virtue of its notable professionalism and
innovation advantages, the project “Internet General Doctors
("BEETEBMBEIMEEENT

outperformed more than 100 projects to secure a second-class

Contracting Platform of Yiwu City”
a")
award of the “National Competition of Information-based
Application Innovation Regarding Community-Level Medical Care in
20177 (20172 BEEEBHEREBLEAAIF AE"), which was held
under the guidance of the National Health and Family Planning
Commission and organised by the country’s “Health News” ("f# &
&w"").
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EEHREAPRAML  EST2E -F8K
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Being the first step of delivering the overall medical care services in
a city, the family doctor service platform is, by way of both online
and offline interactive explorations and the diversion of health
demands, of huge commercial potential as it keeps abreast of the
health condition and diagnosis and treatment updates of all
residents in the city, which facilitates precise health management.
“Top Doctor” family doctor service platform has been working with
renowned domestic offline clinics, renowned medical groups, and
providers of software and hardware used in medical care and of
community-level medical services, and proactively seeking
collaboration with third-party commercial medical insurers and
enterprises concerned with healthcare wearables, health
management services, gene detection and geriatric care services,
which indicates the gradual achievement of the platform’s
commercial value.

Sale of Medical and Geriatric Products

The Group's subsidiary engaging in medical and geriatric product
business has maintained sustainable growth. During the vyear, it
secured several high-end medical care projects from our customers,
such as projects of Shanghai Jiahui International Hospital (L83 &
B2 2 F), Yinchuan Binhe New District Healthcare City (3R /11787 %7
[& B & 3k), Zhuoyue Mouth Cavity (H1% B 2) and Lanhai Medical
Care (BB EE), occupying a gross floor area of 2.51 million square
metres and involving more than 20,000 service beds. Supply
contracts with a total of 30 hospitals and medical and geriatric care
institutions were signed and implemented during the year. As of
31 December 2017, the total revenue was RMB100,445,000 and the
profit was RMB9,375,000, representing growths of 3% and 38%,
respectively as compared to corresponding period of 2016. The
business model for the subsidiary engaging in medical and geriatric
product business has gradually developed from one of mere sales to
an integrated model consisting of overall design, production, sales,
and the supply of raw materials. In 2017, such subsidiary was
recognised as a High-New Technology Enterprise (#1171t %) by
the Beijing Municipal Government, and was given a series of titles
including “China’s Top 10 Brand in Hospital Furniture” (41 B & ft 5
B+ RKM2) and “China’s Top 10 Brand in Geriatric Care Furniture”
(PREIFEZRA+ KRB
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General Health Industrial Park Business

As the reform of the national land policy proceeds, the property
market in China has been transformed from a unitary residential and
commercial model to an industrialised property model. The Group
purchased high-quality land mainly in first-tier cities such as Beijing
and Shanghai based on the policies and directions on land planning
adjustments of central and local governments. Leveraging on the
transformation and upgrading, it introduced advanced industrial
construction philosophy to fully satisfy the needs of the government
and market users. Focus has been placed on developing new types
of operations such as corporate headquarters and healthcare
industrial parks.

In May 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of Chaoyang Port
Project in Beijing. After around two years, upon completion of the
planning adjustments to and government approval process for No. 1
land parcel under the project, the realisation of an increase in the
gross floor area under the project, as well as the procurement of
the planning permit for construction works, the project value has
been significantly enhanced. On 13 April 2017, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Beijing Ronghui Hotel
Management Limited, leading to full capitalisation of the value of
such project and realising profit before tax of approximately HK$576
million.

In December 2017, as the successful tenderer, the Group acquired
the land use rights in respect of four land parcels in Haidong New
District of Dali City, including 1 parcel to be used for medical,
healthcare and charitable purposes, 1 parcel for commercial
purposes, and 2 parcels for residential purposes. Such land plot
represents Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health's flagship project
for its positioning in the general health industry, and will be built
into an integrated “international medical and geriatric care centre”
with “medical and geriatric care, leisure, tourism and vacation”
offerings by virtue of Dali's geographical and climatic advantages as
well as the Group's resource advantages. Occupying a gross floor
area of approximately 380,000 square metres, the project will be
developed in two phases. A high-end, boutique, rehabilitative
hospital offering no less than 200 beds and a high-end,
rehabilitative and geriatric apartment block will be erected in Phase
1, while complementary general health services will be available in
Phase 2. This would create integrated, rehabilitative vacation
apartments that feature both medical and geriatric care, as well as
an integrated health-promoting guesthouse that focuses on both
rehabilitation and physical therapy.
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Currently, the Group owns five land projects in Beijing, Shanghai
and Dali, with a total site area of approximately 436,200 square
metres and an expected planned gross floor area of approximately
710,000 square metres. The implementation plans of the projects
have obtained support from the governments of the regions where
the projects are located. As the positioning of the projects is in line
with market demands, they are expected to have considerable
potential in terms of commercial value enhancement.

Table 3: Operational status
As of 31
development of the Group is as follows:

December 2017, the status of the projects under

BRIAREEAEIL R - L8 RAEKLAE L
HE - REHHA328 T K B REER
EHRBEHNNBTH AR -EAEMHRCRIFHA
BEMEMZEAXE BEEMLNATSH
koHEEBEEETENEKN .

RZ EEMRR

BT tFF-AS B AEEY
MEAREERNT -

Planning Vision

Status
ER

Location Project Name Gross Area Percentage of the Project
it B HEERB THEE ke HEESRRE
Beijing Chaoyang Port 87,607m? 82.24%  General health
Bl Project industrial park
#HABOE RKEREEXE
T H
Beijing Changping 13,490m? 70%  Office and commercial
IR Project complex
EYHER MR BEFAB
Shanghai Sanlu Road 20,480m? 100%  Office and commercial
i Project complex
ZBRHER MR BEFAB
Shanghai Chunshen Road 39,448m? 100%  Office and commercial
i Project complex
EHEER MR BEFAB
Dali Haidong New 275,181m? 60%  General health
AE District Project industrial park

BEHRIEAER complex, residential,
commercial

AEEEXEHEAR
TE ®E

It is being developed in three phases, the
first phase (Gross area: 73,891.29m?) has
been sold by equity transfer at a
consideration of RMB796 million. Pre-
construction planning procedures are in
place for the second and third phases.

DZHF% S-HUAMETE : 73,891.29
M) EERBEEL  BEREEESA
EHEERABARBIONET - E-_RE
SHEETRRREFE-

Properties are on lease.

MELBLED -

It is expected to complete construction
and commence product promotion in
the beginning of 2018.

018FFMNRTLFRKERME -

Pre-construction planning procedures are
in place.

EREETHHREFE -

Pre-construction planning procedures are
in place.

ERETABREFE-
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The Group will continue to seek and identify appropriate land
projects for developing general health business through Beijing
Enterprises Group Company Limited (“"BE Group”) or on the market.
Through extensive negotiation with the local governments and
grasping golden opportunities arising from the industrial
transformation pursued by these governments, the Group would
gradually develop and create a unique series of products related to
its industrial park investments.

Sports Business

Since 2016, through Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry
Group Limited (“Beijing Sports”, a Hong Kong Main Board listed
company, stock code: 1803), the Group has been engaged in
sports-related businesses in China, orienting itself to the
construction of stadiums as well as the construction and operation
of winter theme parks. During the year, Beijing Sports successfully
completed the acquisition of MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corp.*

The 2022 Winter Olympic Games will be jointly held by Beijing and
Zhangjiakou, where Beijing Enterprises Group Real-Estate Co., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of BE Group, will be the host of two
competition zones, reflecting the significant influence exerted by BE
Group on the sports industry. Supported by BE Group, Beijing
Sports will be on its full swing in such sectors as the construction
and operation of air dome venues and winter entertainment. As of
today, winter sports are offered in few large-scale theme parks in
China, such as Disneyland and Chimelong. The winter theme park
project constructed and operated by Beijing Sports will be able to
close the "blue-ocean gap” with regard to the theme parks and
indoor games in China featuring winter sports. Leveraging on the air
dome cooling and ice making techniques, it is expected to operate
a large-scale winter theme park project at a low cost. The air dome
stadium and winter sports facility businesses operated by Beijing
Sports will enjoy sizeable opportunities.

In mid-2017, at the Shanghai International Sporting Goods Expo (L
GBI PX 8218 &), Beijing Sports formally launched its “Plan for 1,000
Stadiums” (F#85H&l) with the objective of constructing 1,000 new
stadiums — with air dome-based architecture as the major carrier
— across the nation within the next 5 years. During 2017, several
projects of Beijing Sports were kicked off, and it is expected that a
construction peak will occur in 2018 and 2019. Having considered
the preliminary expenditure for establishing a well-rounded
operation team and for construction of projects in 2017, we expect
that Beijing Sports’ future profits will be gradually released in 2018-
2019. Riding on the opportunities arising from the Winter Olympic
Games and under the guidance of the national policies, the local
demands for constructing indoor venues will also peak, which will in
turn facilitate the development of the winter entertainment industry.
It can be reasonably expected that Beijing Sports will be among the
largest beneficiaries in this connection.

* For identification purpose only
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On 30 November 2017, the Group completed its subscription for
122,000,000 new shares of Beijing Sports, in order to increase its
investment in Beijing Sports. Currently, the Group's shareholding
percentage in Beijing Sports has been increased to 27.22%. The
Group’s historical acquisition cost in relation to its investment in
Beijing Sports is approximately HK$388 million. Based on the price
of HK$2.84 per share for the shares of Beijing Sports as at
31 December 2017, the market value of the equity interests held by
the Group in Beijing Sports was approximately HK$1 billion.

Financial Business

Through BE Fortune (Shanghai) Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(At = (E®)REEE AR AA, "BE Fortune”), one of the
Group’s subsidiaries, the Group established an investment and
financing platform in China to engage in businesses such as fund
management, asset management, equity investment and financial
leasing. The Group aimed to accelerate its “Industry + Finance”
dual-drive strategy and achieve market expansion with industrial and
financial integration through developing its industrial fund and
investment platform business.

In February 2017, BE Fortune and Guangzhou Aerotropolis
Investment and Construction Group jointly contributed to the
founding and establishment of “Guangzhou Aviation Industrial Fund
Management Limited” (/N ZEE ¥ E S E IR F R A F), which has
founded and established "Guangzhou Aerotropolis Infrastructure
Investment Fund” (BMZEBERRDEIREES) and "Guangzhou
Aviation Industry Investment Fund” (B M fin 2= & % &% & & 9),

respectively. Such investment funds serve to offer equity financing
support to those projects within the infrastructure or industry
category in the Guangzhou Aerotropolis Economic Zone. In June
2017, BE Fortune, Jingdezhen City State Holding Group (/2
& E) and Jingdezhen Ceramic Culture Tourism Group (& 72 3
X K& E) jointly contributed to the founding and establishment of

=2 /35

“Jingdezhen Development Fund Management Co., Ltd.” (5 &8 %
ERESEBABERLQR)
support to the key infrastructure and industry projects in that city

, which intended to offer equity financing

through founding and establishing Jingdezhen Development Fund
(E@mEZEREES). In November 2017, BE Fortune entered into an
agreement of intent for cooperation with Pingxiang Municipal
Finance Bureau (¥ 4fm 81 B /®),
Municipal Innovative Industry Equity Investment Fund” (4B 1 81 %7
EFREREES) was intended to be founded for offering equity
financing support to the emerging industry projects in that city.

pursuant to which “Pingxiang

Besides, BE Fortune has founded industrial funds that are aimed at
investing in high-quality assets of the Group and of BE Group. Such
funds have gone through the respective fund filing procedures, and
will enter the investment and operation stage shortly.
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As of 31 December 2017, 5 private equity funds had been created
within the financial segment, with an estimated aggregate target
fund size of approximately RMB4,200 million.

FUTURE PROSPECT

Considering “Healthy China” as its mission, the Group will continue
to capitalise and fully utilise the ideal external environment for the
geriatric care, medical and health industries in China. With the
general health industry as our development focus, we will pursue
active explorations in the general health sector and speed up our
business deployment in the market.

Existing Business Development

Aging population in China is increasingly serious nowadays. General
health industry is sunrise industry with broad development prospect.
However, the development of such business relies largely on the
availability of adequate financial resources at the initial stage to
expand business scale and customer base. The Group is actively
looking for partners that can produce synergies to participate in
geriatric care and medical businesses. It strives to be bigger and
stronger, expand the market share, establish a leading brand so as
to produce source of income from the third-party product sale and
create long-term stable return through the integration of resources.

In addition, according to 9073 geriatric care plan in China, about
90% of the elderly in China spend their lives at home, and it is
estimated that potential customers for elderly-friendly products are
more than 200 million people. Therefore, elderly-friendly products
will become “Blue Ocean” market of the general health industry.
The medical and geriatric product company of the Group has
maintained its leading position in the elderly-friendly furniture
market and its business has grown rapidly. The Group is studying
the feasibility of the spin-off and separate listing of its medical and
geriatric product company and expects to raise funds in the capital
market so as to increase its investment in the medical and geriatric
product industry.
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New Business Development

A survey found that 70% to 80% of urban people is stressful and the
demand for relieving stress and disease prevention is strong. The
Group is exploring the feasibility of developing the middle-to-high
end customised health management business. It seeks to create a
series of healthy lifestyles that manage diet, exercise, pressure and
sleep and provide professional guidance through cooperation with
professional institutions at home and abroad, ranging from health
maintenance, risk prediction, subhealth recovery to disease
prevention, with the aim of reducing the opportunity for the illness
and promoting health for the customers. The Group acquired the
land at Dali which will be developed into a small community of rich
people. With the congenital advantage, such project will facilitate
the Group's innovative health management business by providing
massive customers, thereby creating a sustainable and stable source
of income.

Going forward, with the objective of evolving into a top-brand
enterprise, and pursuing the mission of “Healthy China Pioneered
by Beijing Enterprises”, the Group will implement its “Way Back into
Health” concept. Leveraging years of experience and resources
accumulated in health sector such as medical services, geriatric care
services, family doctors and sports, the Group endeavours to
formulate a health service system and establish a health service
platform in China to create a health service ecological chain. It is
committed to changing the health of 300 million subhealth people
in China and achieving a sustainable, rapid development of its
businesses, forging our "Healthy Future” with single-minded
devotion.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

On 25 July 2017, the Group and Beijing Sports entered into a
subscription agreement to which, the Group agreed to subscribe
for, and Beijing Sports has agreed to allot and issue to the Group,
122,000,000 new shares of Beijing Sports at a price of HK$1.88 per
Beijing Sports Share, with a total consideration of HK$229,360,000.

On 30 November 2017, the Group completed its subscription for
122,000,000 new shares of Beijing Sports, in order to increase its
investment in Beijing Sports. The Group's shareholding percentage
in Beijing Sports has been increased from 19.77% as at
31 December 2016 to 27.22% as at 31 December 2017.
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MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 13 April 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Beijing Ronghui Hotel Management Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of Radiance Group Co., Limited, to sell
equity interest of Beijing Lugang, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, for a consideration of RMB796,109,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$917,282,000) and the disposal was
completed on 20 July 2017. Details of the disposal were disclosed in
Note 35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES.

The Group did not have any major acquisitions for the year ended
31 December 2017.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

As of 31 December 2017, revenue of the Group was approximately
HK$130,625,000 (2016: HK$163,856,000), representing a decrease of
20.3% as compared to that of 2016. Revenue of the Group was
mainly generated from the manufacturing and sale of geriatric and
medical furniture. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the
disposal of a subsidiary, which is engaged in manufacturing and sale
of geriatric and medical furniture and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal
Group”), of the Group in November 2016. Revenue of the Disposal
Group in 2016 was approximately HK$43,468,000. Excluding the
effect of the disposal of the Disposal Group, revenue of the Group
increased by HK$10,237,000 in 2017, representing an increase of
8.5% as compared to the corresponding period of 2016.

The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to a subsidiary of
the Group, which engaged in manufacturing and sale of the medical
and geriatric furniture, secured certain high-end medical care
projects and entered into and performed 30 supply contracts with
hospitals and geriatric care institutions in 2017, thereby increasing
the revenue from sales of goods. Furthermore, the geriatric care
business of the Group has expanded to Beijing, Fuzhou, Shanghai,
Longyan, Nanping, Shijiazhuang, Wuhu, Wuxi and Dali from Fuzhou
under the geriatric care services brand name “Golden Sun” of the
Group. As of 31 December 2017, the number of elderly member of
the Group reached 770,000, which led to the increase of revenue
from the geriatric care services.

The gross profit of the Group was approximately HK$47,567,000
(2016: HK$42,723,000) and the gross profit margin was 36.4% (2016:
26.1%). The increase in gross profit margin is mainly due to the
gradual development of the business model of the Group’s medical
and geriatric product company from one of mere sales to an
integrated model consisting of overall design, production, sales, and
the supply of raw materials, and the maximisation of all segment’s
profit.
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Other income and gains, net

As of 31 December 2017, other income and gains was approximately
HK$629,054,000, representing a significant increase of 5.4 times as
compared with HK$98,052,000 in 2016.

Other income and gains was mainly the profit before tax of
HK$576,121,000 generated from the partial disposal of the Chaoyang
Port Project in Beijing. Excluding the income from the disposal of
the land parcel No. 1 for the Chaoyang Port Project in Beijing,
other income and gains was approximately RMB52,933,000,
representing a decrease of 46% as compared to that of 2016.

The decrease of remaining other income and gains was mainly due
to the drop of the gain of fair value change of financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss of HK$47,991,000,
representing a decrease of 97.6% as compared to that of 2016. In
2016, the gain of fair value change of financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss was mainly due to the increase in
share price of the investment in a company initially listed in Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, which was subscribed by the Group at the
end of 2015. During the year from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017, there was no substantial change on the share price of the
investment, therefore no significant gain of fair value change of
financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss was
recorded in 2017.

Selling and distribution expenses

As of 31 December 2017, the selling and distribution expenses of
the Group was approximately HK$39,627,000 (2016: HK$21,123,000),
representing 30.3% (2016: 12.9%) of the total sales amount. The
selling and distribution expenses mainly comprise of remuneration
of HK$13,883,000, transportation costs of HK$9,383,000, promotion
fee of HK$2,992,000 and commission of HK$8,600,000 for the partial
disposal of the Chaoyang Port Project in Beijing.
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Administrative expenses

As of 31 December 2017, the administrative expenses were
HK$181,868,000, representing a decrease of 4% as compared to
HK$189,405,000 in 2016. The administrative expenses mainly include
share option expenses of HK$17,758,000 (2016: HK$41,121,000),
depreciation and amortization costs of HK$27,409,000 (2016:
HK$32,645,000) and staff costs (including director’'s emolument but
excluding staff’'s and director’'s share option expenses) of
HK$75,848,000 (2016: HK$48,335,000). The decrease of administrative
expenses was mainly attributable to the drop of the share option
expenses of HK$23,363,000 as of 31 December 2017, representing a
decrease of 56.8% as compared to that of 2016. The decrease of
share option expenses was due to the recognition of one-off
consultancy share option expenses of HK$5,888,000 in 2016 and the
forfeiture of 50,000,000 shares of option granted to a consultant
who terminated its service in July 2016. The terminated share
options of approximately HK$4,998,000 were recognised during the
year of 2016. Other than the share option expenses, the
administrative expenses as of 31 December 2017 increased by 10.7%
to HK$164,110,000 as compared with HK$148,284,000 in 2016.
Excluding the share option expenses, the increase in administrative
expenses was mainly due to the rise of general administrative
expenses such as staff costs and rental expenses arising from the
increase in the number of subsidiaries and headcount as a result of
the Group's business expansion.

Finance cost

As of 31 December 2017, the finance cost was HK$4,363,000 (2016:
HK$4,632,000), and the interest capitalised was HK$7,045,000 (2016:
HK$1,490,000). The finance cost was mainly attributable to the
interests of the bank loans, and the increase in finance cost was
mainly due to the increase in loans. The weighted average principal
of the bank loan amounted to RMB189,925000 (approximately
HK$227,210,000) and the weighted average annual interest rate was
4.95%.

Net assets

As at 31 December 2017, the net assets of the Group was
approximately HK$3,170,013,000, representing an increase of
approximately HK$468,547,000 as compared to the total net assets
of approximately HK$2,701,466,000 in 2016. The increase in net
assets was mainly due to the generation of profit of approximately
HK$280,163,000 during the year.
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Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's cash in hand was
HK$471,436,000 (2016: HK$298,204,000). The Group's long-term and
short-term loan was HK$243,044,000 in total (2016: HK$182,835,000).
Total debt increased by approximately HK$60,209,000, mainly due to
the drawdown of land development project loan of RMB70,000,000
in 2017 (approximately HK$80,731,000) and working capital loan of
RMB30,000,000 (approximately HK$34,599,000), while the repayment
of total working capital loan was approximately HK$72,030,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group agreed that meticulous management on cash flow is the
key to success. To ensure that there is sufficient capital to satisfy
the need of the Group's rapid growth, the Group remains good
relationships with each of the banks from time to time, so that the
Group gains easy access to application for loans.

Capital expenditure

As of 31 December 2017, the Group’s capital expenditure was
approximately HK$162,352,000 (2016: HK$346,714,000), including the
purchase of properties, plants and equipment,
properties, prepaid land lease payment and assets from acquisition
of subsidiaries.

investment

Capital structure

The Group took full advantage of the financing platform as a listed
company by striving for a constant optimisation of the capital and
financing structure, so as to obtain sufficient funds to finance the
future projects of health and geriatric care. During the year, the
Group's operations were mainly financed by internal resources and
bank loans.

Pledge of assets
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has pledged the following
assets as the security for bank loans:

(i) the property, plant and equipment situated in the PRC with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$62,940,000 (2016: HK$ Nil);

(i) the investment properties situated in the PRC with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$328,987,000 (2016:
HK$320,047,000);

(i) the land use right and the land use right transferring to the
property under development with an aggregate carrying value
of HK$258,627,000 (2016: HK$282,215,000);
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(iv)  mortgages over the Group's receivable from a related company
was released during the year, as the relevant bank loan was
repaid on 30 March 2017 (2016: HK$111,875,000);

(v)  mortgages over the pledge of certain of the Group's time
deposits was released during the year, as the relevant bank
loan was repaid on 4 January 2017 and 30 March 2017,
respectively (2016: HK$21,900,000).

Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
information in this announcement, as at 31 December 2017, the
Group had no other significant contingent liabilities.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risks was primarily
related to other receivables, bank balances, other payables and
other borrowings denominated in CAD, US dollars and RMB. In
respect of the Group's exposure to potential foreign exchange risks
arising from the currency exchange rate fluctuations, it did not make
any arrangement or use any financial instruments to hedge against
potential foreign exchange risks. However, the management will
continue to monitor foreign exchange risks and adopt hedging
measures where necessary.

Relationships with employees, suppliers and customers
The Group endeavours to maintain sustainable development in the
long term, continuously create value for its employees and
customers, and foster good relationships with its suppliers. The
Group understands that employees are its valuable assets, and the
realisation and enhancement of employees’ values will facilitate the
achievement of the Group's overall goals. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group provided generous social security
benefits to its employees to motivate their proactivity at work while
heightening their sense of belonging. The Group also understands
the importance of maintaining good relationships with its suppliers
and customers to the overall development of the Group. The Group
places emphasis on supplier selection and encourages fair and open
competition to foster long-term relationships with quality suppliers
on the basis of mutual trust. To maintain the competitiveness of its
brand and products, the Group abides by the principles of honesty
and trustworthiness and commits itself to consistently provide
quality products to establish a reliable service environment for its
customers. For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no
significant and material dispute between the Group and its suppliers
and/or customers.
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Employee benefits and training

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately 1,081 (2016:
879) employees. Total staff cost (including Directors’ emoluments) as
of 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately HK$97,964,000
(2016: HK$76,399,000). The Group made great efforts to enhance the
quality of staff. During the year under review, the Group organised
internal training courses for staff at all levels. Topics of the training
courses included accounting and finance, risk management and
PRC's tax laws.

The Group's overall remuneration system is adhered to the principle
of market orientation, offering competitive salary to retain and
attract high caliber persons. The salaries of the Group's senior
management are determined with reference to market level as well
as the Group's overall operating results.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group strives to offer investors access to updated and accurate
information on the Group’s latest major development. The Group
believes that effective communication is built on a two-way basis,
and therefore welcomes feedbacks from investors to the Group. To
facilitate an easy access to information on the Company’s latest
major development, a number of measures have been taken to
ensure all necessary information and appropriate updates are made
available to investors in a timely manner through the Company’s
website at www.bemh.com.hk, under the column of the “Investor
Relations”.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s Annual
Report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The manner in which the principles and code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) are applied and implemented as explained
below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group acknowledges the vital importance of good corporate
governance to the Group's success and sustainability. We are
committed to achieving a high standard of corporate governance as
an essential component of quality and have introduced corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of our
business.

The Company has applied most of the principles set out in the CG
Code.

The Company has adopted different measures to ensure a high
standard of corporate governance and has put in place corporate
governance practices that are considered to be relevant to the
Group, to meet the CG Code.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code,
except for the deviation from code provisions A.4.2 and A.6.7.

Code Provision A.4.2

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Mr. Qian Xu, Mr. Siu Kin Wai and Mr. Hu Yebi who were appointed
as director of the Company to fill casual vacancies, did not retire
and offer for election by shareholders at the first extraordinary
general meeting of the Company after their appointment held on
7 July 2017.
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Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the Company provides
that any director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or
as an additional director shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at the meeting. To abide Article 112, the
Company will arrange for the directors appointed by the Board to
retire only at the next annual general meeting, but not at any
extraordinary general meeting after their appointment.

Code Provision A.6.7

Code provision A.6.7 provides that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Three independent non-executive directors and one
non-executive director of the Company was unable to attend the
annual general meeting held at 19 May 2017, and five independent
non-executive directors was unable to attend the extraordinary
general meeting held at 7 July 2017 due to their other business
commitments.

The Company has reviewed its corporate governance practices and
has taken appropriate actions to comply with the CG Code which
are explained in the relevant paragraphs of the Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has applied the Model Code to the relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Company. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the relevant employees was
noted by the Company.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

ARNREBERBREIERT BEFE
RENEHBRREZRIER/FTEERZEME
EZHEHEEEARRA T ERRBFRER
I THEERRZAGLEREE - RETH
M2 RRRBLRHEETERET2EEZER
T—ERRBERGMmMIFNKERZEREM
BRERFFRIAE LRAE -

FAIE XA.6.71F
SFAMEXA6TIER EB L IFRNTES R EAMIE
HITEETRELERRIRASRERREZERLBR
ER TR - AAEMEREE  NARIZAE
VIHEPTEER —RIENTEFTRELFERZ
T—tFRATNBERTZBERRRAFRE - MU
RRAZBIFNTEETREEER T —+F
tAEARITZBRERFNRE -

ARrfed B EEREN L EREGEE
TE AETEEERTA  BRITEHRNAH
SHBBCETEE-

ETREZXEZNEETR

ARBIEHEM LTRSS & EHETA
ERETEFRINEESTR([RESFR]) -

BARBEEELEEENE SEFYE
R HERBE-FE—tE+-A=+—AL
fﬁ&_ E%;\ %*?/ﬁxlj

ARRCHRAIEEBARAFRFREGHZ
ARZHEBETRABEESTR - AR ﬂjﬂﬁiﬂ
BHARELBETRETRZE



CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS BRELHRAZEI351B(NENE
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE EERER

LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company was BIEEMHRANEI35IBINE ARRIEANG

informed that:

o By a resolution passed by the remuneration committee of the
Company on 15 May 2017, Mr. Liu Xue Heng is entitled to an
annual remuneration of HK$2,026,000 and discretionary bonus
which is determined by the Board with reference to his
experience, duties and responsibilities with effect from 1 June
2017;

o By a resolution passed by the remuneration committee of the
Company on 15 May 2017, Mr. Gu Shan Chao is entitled to an
annual remuneration of HK$2,000,000 and discretionary bonus
which is determined by the Board with reference to his
experience, duties and responsibilities with effect from 1 June
2017;

o By a resolution passed by the remuneration committee of the
Company on 15 May 2017, Mr. Hu Xiao Yong, Mr. Hu Shiang
Chi, Mr. Wang Zheng Chun, Mr. Wu Yong Xin, Mr. Tse Man
Kit, Keith, Mr. Gary Zhao and Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou were
entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$180,000 and
discretionary bonus which is determined by the Board with
reference to their experience, duties and responsibilities with
effect from 1 June 2017.

o Mr. Hu Yebi, an executive Director of the Company, was
resigned as an executive director of Hua Lien International
(Holding) Company Limited, a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
969) since July 2017. He was also appointed as the vice
chairman of Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited since June
2017.

o Mr. Hu Shiang Chi, an executive Director of the Company, was
promoted as the managing director of AVY Precision
Technology INC., a company whose shares are listed on the
Taiwan Gretai Securities Market (Stock Code: 5392) since
February 2018.

. Mr. Sin Ka Wai, an executive Director of the Company, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Orient
Securities International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8001)
since September 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEYg

Board Composition EFEHAA

The Board currently comprises 15 members, consisting of 10 EEERRATRAEXEAKR  BETEHT
Executive Directors and 5 Independent Non-executive Directors. EERARBIFRTES

The list of all Directors (by category) is set out under “Corporate PREENEE(RERE D) HNE28[ R F]
Information” on page 2 and all corporate communications issued by BERIR - MERAA R ARAR & _E AR B %
the Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The HH2EAREA o ARAFIRE EWAR - R
Independent Non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all FrBEARBATREINFABYLIFATETZ S
corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules. 7 e

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there have been changes HE-_T—tFT_A=T—HILEFE &2
in the composition of the Board of the Company, details of which RESSHKREMEY  FHEIANEETSTR
HoFEEEAMANTESMER:

are set out in the Directors’ Report. The Board currently comprises
the following Directors:

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing (Chairman) AT £ ()

Mr. Liu Xue Heng (Joint Chief Executive Officer) QBB E (BETHAAR)
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming (Joint Chief Executive Officer) SRR (T AAS)
Mr. Qian Xu 828 5 A&

Mr. Siu Kin Wai REELE

Mr. Hu Yebi B L

Mr. Gu Shan Chao BEEBEE

Mr. Hu Xiao Yong BB k&

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi HAAR B 5T A

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun FIEFERE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYHPITEE

Mr. Gary Zhao A 5 A

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp B2k 4

Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith Eip e

Mr. Wu Yong Xin ROKF &

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou RIERKE

None of the members of the Board is related to one another. FMEEFEeRE 2B EEMAR -

34 Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board and Management

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the
Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with a
view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expenses, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
aforesaid officers.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and
professional development for Directors will be arranged where
necessary.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.
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standard and issuance of fund
B:  reading journals relating to the directors’ duties etc.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management. The Board has
also reviewed and ensured compliance of the relevant legal and
regulatory requirements, the code of conducts, the CG Code and
the disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

In addition, relevant reading materials including directors’ manual/
legal and regulatory update/seminar handouts have been provided
to the Directors for their reference and studying.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors REBE-_ZT—+tF+-A=+—BLFE &
participated the trainings as follows: FLMBF M DENT
Topic
Directors o= 4=
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing AL B A A, B
Mr. Liu Xue Heng S ENEPES A, B
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming 9k = B SE A B
Mr. Qian Xu 8 % A&
(appointed on 22 May 2017) (RZZ—tFRA-T-_AEEEMT) B
Mr. Siu Kin Wai miEstt
(appointed on 22 May 2017) (RZZ—tFRAZ-ZT-AEEMT) B
Mr. Hu Yebi B RLE
(appointed on 22 May 2017) (RZZ—tFRAZ-ZT-AEEMT) B
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BEBLE A B
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong HABE B & & B
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi A B O A B
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun FIEHELEE B
Independent Non-executive Directors BN TESE
Mr. Gary Zhao it M 5t A A, B
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp RLERAE A, B
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith S A B
Mr. Wu Yong Xin ROk k& B
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou RERKLE A, B
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Investment and Risk Management Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's
website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors (except for the Investment
and Risk Management Committee) and the current list of the
chairman and members of each Board committee is set out under
“Corporate Information” on page 2.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Gary Zhao
and Mr. Wu Yong Xin. All of them are Independent Non-executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-executive Director with
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the internal auditor
or external auditors before submission to the Board

o To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors

o To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year to review
the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, the report of the internal auditor on the Company’s
internal control and risk management systems and processes, the
reappointment of the external auditors and arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2017 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors three times
without the presence of the Executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Gary Zhao (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Tse, Man
Kit, Keith and Mr. Wu Yong Xin. All of them are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to review
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management
and other related matters.

The details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated audited financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four members,
namely, Mr. Wu Yong Xin (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Zhu Shi
Xing, Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith and Mr. Gary Zhao. The majority of
them are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board composition, identifying suitable candidates for appointment
as Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and ethnicity, in addition to educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhu
Shi Xing, Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, Mr. Wang Zhen Chun, Mr. Hu
Shiang Chi and Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou shall retire by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting. In addition, Mr. Qian Xu, Mr. Siu Kin Wai
and Mr. Hu Yebi who have been appointed as Directors by the
Board, shall hold office until the Annual General Meeting pursuant
to Article 112 of the Company's Articles of Association. All of the
above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of
the Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Company’'s circular dated 23 April 2018 contains detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.
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Investment and Risk Management Committee

The Investment and Risk Management Committee currently
comprised Mr. Gu Shan Chao (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Liu
Xue Heng, Mr. Zhu Shi Xing (all being Executive Directors) and
Mr. Lam Ka Tak (the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary).

Principal duties of the Investment and Risk Management Committee
include overseeing the risk management and evaluating the major
investment and funding projects of the Group.

There are six meetings held by the Investment and Risk
Management Committee during the year.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code, and the Company's compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.
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Corporate Governance Report e bk E/a¥E

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EERZEEENEZHERHE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board REBEEZE_ZT—+tF+A=+—BLFE &
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company EENEESERESZEGUREKRFREXR
held during the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the gzHEREINR TR :

table below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERR/ EENY
Investment
and Risk
Management Annual Extraordinary
Nomination Remuneration Audit  Committee General General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee RERER Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors BESH3 EZg R¥ZEE FMZEE ERZEE EEZEE RRBEFAE RRHEIAE
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing REELE 1114 11 - - 6/6 17 n
Mr. Liu Xue Heng AEELE 12113 - - - 6/6 11 Al
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BEIRAKE 12113 - - - 6/6 11 on
Mr. Qian Xu EREE 177 - - - - N/A 0/1
(appointed on 22 May 2017) (RZZE—+% TEHA
LAZ+ZH
EZH)
Mr. Siu Kin Wai ERExE 3/7 - - - - N/A on
(appointed on 22 May 2017) (RZZ—+% TR
iy =
BZ)
Mr. Hu Yebi HHERE 717 - - - - N/A 0/1
(appointed on 22 May 2017) (RZZ2—+%# TER
IA-T-H
BZ{)
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong BRELE 113 - - - - 0/1 0/
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi IR A 1113 - - - - 0/1 0/1
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun TEELAE 73 - - - - 01 0/
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming REHLE 013 - - - - 01 0N
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp REBEE 13/14 - - - - 0/1 0/1
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith EpG Eta 1214 I 11 33 - i 01
Mr. Wu Yong Xin RAFEE 1014 I 11 33 - 0/1 0/1
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou REEALE 13/14 - - - - 0/1 0/
Mr. Gary Zhao el bk 13/14 11 17N 213 - 0/1 o
Name of Committee Member ZEERENRE
Mr. Lam Ka Tak HeERE - - - - 6/6 - -

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held REZGO G EFEITNERNEEZIENTT
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the BERTEE(UERTEEIE) -
presence of Executive Directors during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive information announcements and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory
requirements. The Directors are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of the Company with a view to
ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements and applicable accounting standards are
complied with.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 76 to 82.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

ESHUBHRRZEME

EEANERERAERUARABE_T—L
FT-A=+—"RLEFEZHBHERE -

EX2REERTE BWRINERZFR
R HIsRE R - BERERER QM REMR
BETRAEEMEEREEREMREZE
B-ZEFRAEEREARANBHRRZBE A
MARZEVBRREEMATFHRRAEEZ
AR EFAEEEEREEERMERE
R -

ERBENEESRHZSTTHREREN &
EXEEN AR REESFSHEZARRHBER
o EH ISR -

EEXTABABEMEHIBERNEMER
THBIRE  MxFEHFHBERAEERRA]
ZRBEERNBREERM -

RRABBIZEMEETBEREROPFRECE
RRE R E76E82A [ B e MRS | -

BT B =
RBE-2—+E+-A=+—ALFERK
BUR TS R I KBRS B 1 AR R RSN D 2
e HMT :

Fees Paid/Payable

Bt ENER

HK$

Service Category Bk %% 2 ¥ BT

Audit Services %8R 1%

— Statutory audit services — =T BIZIRG 1,500,000

— Accountants’ report = 1,100,000
Non-audit Services IEZE RS

- Review of interim report —HMREBRE 360,000

- Due diligence —ERAE 450,000

3,410,000
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board of the Group is responsible for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is
willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives, and ensuring that
an appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
system is established and maintained by the Group. The Board of
the Group has overseen the management in the design,
implementation and monitoring the risk management and internal
control system. The Board has confirmed that it is its duty to
establish a risk management and internal control system, and that it
will constantly oversee the system and ensure a regular review of the
effectiveness of the system will be conducted at least once a year.

The Board and the Audit Committee of the Company has also
confirmed that during the reporting period, they have reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and its subsidiaries, covering all important control
aspects including financial control, operational control and
compliance control.

During the reporting period, the Board and the Audit Committee of
the Company have evaluated the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, the procedures of which
include:

(1) To determine the extent of the system, identify risks and
prepare risk checklists;

(2)  To assess and prioritize the impacts of the risks based on their
impacts on the operational efficiency, sustainable
development capability and reputation in accordance with the
generally accepted risk management framework, with
reference to the probability of various types of potential
risks,the extent of the management’s concerns and the
possible financial loss arising from the risks;

(3)  To ensure risk management measures are in place to identify
significant risks, to conduct internal control evaluation on the
design and implementation of such risk management
measures and to take actions to rectify the control gaps;

(4)  To conduct a regular review and summary on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control system through
evaluation on the significant risks and implementation of
rectification measures carried out by the management, so as
to maximize and continuously enhance the risk management.
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(5  To prepare a risk management manual that determines the
duties and responsibilities of management, board of directors
and Audit Committee in risk management, and to provide
guideline for constantly monitoring the risk management and
internal control system;

(6)  The management has reported to the Audit Committee on the
results of regular review and evaluation on the risk
management, internal control systems, significant risk factors
and corresponding measures during the reporting period.

Nevertheless, the risk management and internal control system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks that arising from
unsuccessful business objectives, and only to make reasonable, but
not absolute assurances for the non-material misrepresentation or
losses.

As to the procedures and internal controls for handling and
disseminating the inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules, and the overriding principle
of dealing with the inside information is to make
announcement immediately after such information comes to its
attention and/or a relevant decision has been made, unless
such information falling within the provision of “Safe
Harbours” as provided in the Securities and Futures
Ordinance;

o conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission in June 2012 and "Recent Economic
Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of Listed
Issuers” issued by the Stock Exchange in 2008;

o has established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group's affairs. Senior
executives of the Group are designated and authorised to act
as the Company's spokespersons and respond to specific
enquiries;

o has implemented and disclosed its own Code of Conduct for
share transaction by relevant employee and Inside information
disclosure policy.
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The Company has set up an internal audit function and engaged
professional consultants to assist in the risk identification and
evaluation so as to formulate its risk management measure. The
Company has evaluated the design and implementation of internal
control measures for significant risks. The Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system
and considered it is effective and adequate and will continue to
enhance the effectiveness in the coming future.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All
resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company's Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by the Board on the
written requisition of any one or more shareholders of the
Company, provided that such shareholders held at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be called for the
transaction of any business specified in the written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company; and shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Shareholders who wish to move resolutions at general meetings may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Room 2108, 21/F, Greenfield Tower, Concordia Plaza,
1 Science Museum Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: 2681-2789

Email: enquiry@bemh.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, apart from the
registered office of the Company, and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at http://www.bemh.com.hk, where up-to-date information
and updates on the Company's business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Investment and Risk Management Committee or, in their absence,
other members of the respective committees and, where applicable,
are available to answer questions at shareholder meetings.

The 2017 Annual General Meeting ("AGM") was held on 19 May
2017. The notice of AGM was sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the AGM.

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company's
Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange's website.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing, aged 47, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in September 2014. He is currently the Chairman of
the Board and a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Investment and Risk Management Committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhu graduated from Central University of Finance and
Economics with a bachelor's degree in finance and obtained his
master’s degree in software engineering from Beihang University. In
addition, Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor's degree in sport
management from Beijing Sport University in July 1994. Mr. Zhu
started his career as an assistant in the investment department of
China Xinxing Corporation (Group) Ltd. in 1994. During the period
from 2004 to 2015, Mr. Zhu joined Beijing Holdings Limited (“BHL"),
an affiliate of Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (“BPHL", HKEX
Stock Code: 925), and had been nominated as the vice general
manager of various subsidiaries of BHL involving in industries such
as tourism, logistics and property development, and the executive
vice president of BPHL. Since December 2015, Mr. Zhu is also an
Executive Director of Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry
HKEX Stock
Code: 1803), an associate of the Company. Mr. Zhu has extensive

Group Limited ("Beijing Sports and Entertainment”,

experience in investment, financial management and property
development.

Mr. Liu Xue Heng

Mr. Liu Xue Heng, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Joint Chief Executive Officer of the Company in September
2014 and April 2015 respectively. He is currently a member of the
Investment and Risk Management Committee of the Company.
Before joining the Company, he served as an executive director and
the chairman of the Investment and Risk Management Committee of
BPHL during the period from 1 January 2011 to 23 December 2015,
an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of Tai United
Holdings Limited (HKEX stock code: 718) during the period from
11 July 2014 to 19 January 2016, as well as an Independent Non-
executive Director of Guangshen Railway Co., Limited (HKEX stock
code: 525) during the period from 2 June 2011 to 29 May 2014
respectively. Mr. Liu is also an Executive Director of Beijing Sports
and Entertainment since January 2016 and the chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer of Beijing Sports and
Entertainment since April 2016. Mr. Liu obtained a master’'s degree
of Business Administration from Cambridge University in the United
Kingdom. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in equity investment,
corporate finance, initial public offer and mergers and acquisitions.
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Mr. Qian Xu

Mr. Qian Xu, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director on
22 May 2017. He is an Executive Director of Beijing Properties
(Holdings) Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company
("BPHL", SEHK Stock Code: 925) since July 2009 and the Chairman
of BPHL since June 2016. Mr. Qian was also appointed as a Non-
executive Director of CAQ Holdings Limited (“CAQ", a company
listed on the Australia Stock Exchange with a Listing Corporation
Code of CAQ) in April 2015. Mr. Qian graduated from the
Economics and Management Faculty of the Beijing Industrial
University with a bachelor’s degree in economics and has obtained
his executive master's degree in business administration from
Tsinghua University. Mr. Qian has extensive experience in mergers
and acquisitions, corporate restructuring and financial management.

Mr. Hu Yebi

Mr. Hu Yebi, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director on
22 May 2017. He is the founder of Vision Finance Group Limited and
has been the chairman since November 2007. Mr. Hu also serves as
an executive director of Beijing Sports and Entertainment and an
executive director and vice chairman of BPHL. Mr. Hu was also
appointed as an executive director and chairman of Tai United
Holdings Limited (SEHK Stock Code: 718) during the period from
July 2014 to January 2016 and an executive director of Hua Lien
International (Holding) Company Limited (SEHK Stock Code: 969)
during the period from December 2010 to July 2017. Mr. Hu
received his master's degree in business administration from
Netherlands International Institute for Management in the
Netherlands and postgraduate diploma in management engineering
from the Beijing Institute of Technology in Beijing, the PRC. Mr. Hu
has more than twenty years of experience in securities and financial
services, mergers and acquisitions and corporate finance.

Mr. Siu Kin Wai

Mr. Siu Kin Wai, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive Director
on 22 May 2017. He is an executive director of BPHL since July
2009 and the chief executive officer of BPHL since July 2017. He was
also appointed as the non-executive director of CAQ in April 2015
and serves as an independent non-executive director of Agritrade
Resources Limited (SEHK Stock Code: 1131) since August 2010 and
an independent non-executive director of Orient Securities
International Holdings Limited (SEHK Stock Code: 8001) since
September 2017. Mr. Siu graduated from City University of Hong
Kong with a bachelor’'s degree in accountancy and is a fellow
members of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Mr. Siu has extensive experience in financial management
and corporate advisory.
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Mr. Zhang Jing Ming

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive
Director and Joint Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Zhang graduated with a master’'s degree in
international finance and trade in the University of International
Business and Economics. Mr. Zhang started his property related
business since 1996 being the chairman of the board and the
general manager of Beijing Wangi Holdings Ltd., a property
developer in Beijing. In 2009, he was also appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Beijing Badachu Real Estate Group Limited.
Mr. Zhang has almost twenty years’ experience in property
development business.

Mr. Gu Shan Chao

Mr. Gu Shan Chao, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in September 2014. He is currently the
Chairman of the Investment and Risk Management Committee of the
Company and the President of the Group. Mr. Gu obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in electronic engineering from the Beijing
Institute of Technology and master’'s degree in property from
Tsinghua University. Mr. Gu participated in the property industry
since 1999, and had been the sales director and general manager of
various property developers in Beijing.

Mr. Hu Xiao Yong

Mr. Hu Xiao Yong, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in September 2014. He is also an executive director
and the chairman of Beijing Enterprises Clean Energy Group Limited
(HKEX Stock Code: 1250) and the vice-chairman of the China
Environmental Service Industry Association. During the period from
1 August 2008 to 30 March 2016, Mr. Hu was an executive director
and the chief executive officer of Beijing Enterprises Water Group
Limited (HKEX stock code: 371), and has been re-designated to
honorary chairman since 30 March 2016. Mr. Hu obtained his EMBA
degree from Tsinghua University.
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Mr. Hu Shiang Chi

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi, aged 57, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in May 2015. Mr. Hu obtained his master’'s degree
in International Business and bachelor's degree in Electrical
Engineering from National Taiwan University. Mr. Hu has extensive
experience in operation management and company acquisition.
Mr. Hu is now the chairman of the board of Abico-Fs Co., Ltd (stock
code in GreTai Securities Market: 8071), JBON International Co., Ltd.
(stock code in GreTai Securities Market: 1566) and Transystem Inc.
(stock code in GreTai Securities Market: 5348), the managing
director of AVY Precision Technology Inc. (stock code in GreTai
Securities Market: 5392), as well as the directors of Celxpert Energy
Corporation (stock code in GreTai Securities Market: 3323), HiTi
Digital, Inc. (stock code in GreTai Securities Market: 3494), and
Jentech Precision Industrial Co., LTD. (stock code in GreTai
Securities Market: 3653).

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in June 2008. He was the Chairman of the
Company during the period from October 2008 to February 2015.
He has over twenty years of experience in property development
and management. Mr. Wang has substantial experience in
developing and constructing villas, residential units and commercial
buildings in the PRC.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp, aged 51, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in May 2015 and re-designated
as an independent non-executive director in May 2017. Mr. Koepp
obtained his bachelor's degree in Asian Studies from Pomona
College, USA, and Master of Business Administration from
Cambridge University in the United Kingdom. Mr. Koepp has in-
depth professional experience in public and private equity financing,
real estate, economics and business strategies, particularly for those
Chinese companies which are listed overseas.
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Mr. Wu Yong Xin

Mr. Wu Yong Xin, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2014. He is
currently the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Mr. Wu is currently the Executive Vice President,
Chief Government Affairs Officer and General Manager of Regional
Organization of Siemens Ltd., China. Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor’s
degree in economics from Capital University of Economics and
Trade in Beijing and master's degree in business administration
from China Europe International Business School of Shanghai.

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith, aged 44, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2014. He is
currently the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Tse is also the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited (HKEX
stock code: 1165) and an independent non-executive director of
Beijing Sports and Entertainment. Mr. Tse has around 19 years of
working experience in accounting and financial management.
Mr. Tse is a CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tse obtained a
bachelor's degree in commerce from University of Wollongong, New
South Wales, Australia in July 1997, majoring in accountancy and
finance.

Mr. Gary Zhao

Mr. Gary Zhao, aged 57, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in February 2016. He is currently
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’'s degree in English literature from
Northeast Normal University and a master's degree in education
from Hebei University in 1984 and 1986, respectively. Mr. Zhao
worked in the State Education Commission of the People’s Republic
of China since 1986 and was re-designated to work in the
Department of Foreign Investment of Beijing Foreign Trade and
Economic Relations Commission in 1989. From 1992 to 2005, he
served as the general manager for several enterprises, and has
subsequently become a fulltime freelance investor since 2005.
Mr. Zhao has extensive experience in the Chinese economic
development, Chinese financial market, project investment and
corporate management.
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Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2015. Mr. Zhang has
engaged in clinical work of internal medicine and neurology for 25
years. He possesses knowledge in relation to neuroanatomy,
neuropathology, electroneurophysiology, neuroimaging and other
disciplines. After finishing his first doctorate degree in Nanfang
Hospital of First Military Medical University in Guangzhou and
second doctorate degree in Xuanwu Hospital of Capital Medical
University in Beijing, Mr. Zhang obtained his qualification of PhD
candidate in Neurology from PLA Military Medical School (PLA
General Hospital) (Ff iR E B & 20t (BN E B %)) in Beijing, a
master candidate in Neurology from Zhujiang Hospital of First
Military Medical University in Guangzhou and a bachelor’'s degree in
Clinical Medicine from The Fourth Military Medical University in
Xian, respectively. Mr. Zhang obtained the professional qualification
of chief physician in Neurology (##f W& EFEERD) in 2016. He is
currently the medical group leader of emergency Neurology (18 4%
WEEMEME), and an chief physician, associate professor and
postgraduate tutor in Xuanwu Hospital of Capital Medical University
in Beijing.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Ka Tak

Mr. Lam Ka Tak, aged 36, is the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group, he joined the Group in 2010.
Mr. Lam received his master's degree of Business Administration
from The University of Hong Kong and bachelor’s degree of Arts
(Honours) in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He has over 14 years of working experience in financial
management and corporate finance. Before joining the Group, he
had worked for several international accounting firms. Mr. Lam is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Hong Kong Business Accountants Association. He is also an
executive director of Beijing Sports and Entertainment (Stock code:
1803) and an independent non-executive director of U Banquet
Group Holding Limited (Stock code: 1483).
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
future development in the Group's business, can be found in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual

report. The above section form part of this “Directors’ Report”.

POSSIBLE RISK EXPOSURE

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some which are specific to the Group or the industries in
which the Group operates as well as others that are common to
most businesses. The Directors have established a procedure to
ensure that significant risks may adversely affect the Group's
performance and ability to deliver on its strategies, as well as those
which may present positive opportunities, are identified, reported,
monitored, and managed on a continuous basis.

Risk of Investment Decisions

Risk analysis: According to the Group's development strategies, we
will continue to acquire new projects in the future, whether high
quality projects will be selected and investment decisions to be
made scientifically will have far-reaching effects on the Group's
development.

Tackling measures: Subject to corporate strategies, determine the
investment decision indicators and the information required for
analysis, and maintain close communication with the relevant
assessment agencies and collaborative authorities; combine
preliminary investment research with project progress conditions
and influencing factors, such as socio-economic policies, to predict
possible external factors which may arise in later stages; select the
right timing of entry for the project and formulate the
corresponding investment strategies, and make timely adjustments
to achieve the best result.
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Risk of Financing Costs

Risk analysis: As the Group’s borrowings gradually increase, there
are higher requirements for budgeting, management and control of
funds. Currently a regular reporting system has been established for
funding conditions and financing plans, but the capabilities on
assessing actual requirement of funds and the funding terms have to
be strengthened. At the same time, monitor closely the relationship
between exchange rate changes and changes in interest rate
spreads, further enhance supervision and control capabilities, take
action in advance to avoid risk of exchange rate changes and
structural risk of financing arrangements.

Tackling measures: To keep on strengthening the tracking analysis
on national currency policies and capital market conditions and
trends and closely monitor exchange rate and interest rate changes;
enhance joint collaborations with domestic and foreign financial
institutions to obtain information on exchange rate and interest rate
momentum to further improve supervision and control capabilities.

Risk of Sectoral and Economic Policies

Risk analysis: Changes in sectoral and economic policies in China
will have impact on medical and geriatric business. Currently,
policies for the sector remained stable and favourable.

Tackling measures: Monitor simultaneously the conditions of the
province where the subsidiaries operate, including industry policies,
regional economic policies and macroeconomic changes, collect and
arrange the relevant information regularly to establish a database for
carrying out analysis and research to formulate tackling measures;
strengthen interaction between peer entities and superior
authorities to understand the changing direction of the industry,
exchange management experience and enable good
communication.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known
as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 83 to 85.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year. The Board believes in balancing returns to shareholders
with investment to support future growth and has decided that it
would be in the Group’s best interests to reserve sufficient financial
resources for future business developments. The Board recognises
the importance of dividends to shareholders and will keep the
matter under close review.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distribution of dividend, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. As at
31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to HK$1,340,579,000 which consisted of share premium of
HK$1,767,756,000 net of accumulated losses of HK$427,177,000.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options are set out in note 31 and 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES
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The Company had bought back the Shares on the Stock Exchange £ A Qﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂx@ CRBEWT
during the year ended 31 December 2017 with details as follows:
Price per Share
BRER
Number
of Shares Highest Lowest
Purchased Price Paid Price Paid Total Paid
Trading Day X5 H BEROHE ENEEE ENREE [EENEE:
HKD HKD HKD
BT BT BT
27 July 2017 —tFtA=Z++tH 9,318,000 0.500 0.475 4,624,956
28 July 2017 —tFtAZ+NH 6,276,000 0.500 0.495 3,134,640
30 August 2017 —E—+tFNA=+H 3,624,000 0.490 0.480 1,755,720
31 August 2017 ZE-+tFNA=+—H 12,390,000 0.500 0.495 6,179,070
1 September 2017 —t+FNALA—R 10,056,000 0.500 0.490 4,986,240
4 September 2017 —t+FAAMEA 15,612,000 0.510 0.485 7,836,600
5 September 2017 —t+FNAAER 9,132,000 0.510 0.500 4,629,660
6 September 2017 —t+FNAARA 10,272,000 0.520 0.510 5,340,000
7 September 2017 —tFNALALER 64,032,000 0.530 0.500 33,311,880
140,712,000 71,798,766
TEBRERREEXEEERAR —Z—tFER
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All of the shares bought back during the year ended 31 December
2017 were cancelled on 23 October 2017.

Save as disclosed, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company's listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2017.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the equity-linked agreements subsisting at the end of the
year are set out below:

Ordinary Shares

On 2 November 2015, Shanghai Chongyuan Investment
Management Company Limited* (E/8WEREEEBR QA (the
“Purchaser”), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a transfer and subscription of shares agreement (the
“Transfer and Subscription Agreement”) with an independent third
party (the “"Vendor”) to obtain 51% of the enlarged issued share
capital of Fujian Fu Ling Golden Sun Health and Geriatric Company
Limited* ((BEARBBEESAGREEEZRMER LA (the "Target
Company”). Reference is made to the announcements of the
Company dated 2 November 2015, 4 November 2015, 30 November
2015 and 2 February 2016.

The aggregate Consideration for the Acquisition is in the sum of
RMB57,000,000, to be satisfied in the following manner:

Upon fulfillment of the first tranche payment conditions stipulated in
the Transfer and Subscription Agreement therein by the Target
Company on or before 10 December 2015 (“First Tranche Payment”)

1 RMB30,000,000, by the Purchaser by payment in cash payable
within 3 Business Days upon receipt of such payment request
from the Vendor;

2 RMB8,000,000, by the Purchaser procuring the Company to allot
and issue 12,195,122 Consideration Shares, as part of the
Consideration for the Acquisition which shall be issued and
allotted to the Vendor within 14 Business Days upon receipt of
such.
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First Tranche Payment was completed and 12,195,122 Consideration
Shares were allotted and issued on 30 November 2015.

Upon fulfillment of the second tranche payment condition stipulated
in the Transfer and Subscription Agreement therein by the Vendor
and the Target Company on or before 30 June 2016 (“Second
Tranche Payment”)

3 RMB19,000,000, by the Purchaser procuring the Company to
allot and issue 28,963,415 Consideration Shares, as the
remaining balance of the Consideration in the following
installments:

1 5,792,683 Consideration Shares by 30 April 2017 if the
business performance of the Target Company meets the
target for the year 2016 stipulated in the Transfer and
Subscription of Shares Agreement;

2 9,214,570 Consideration Shares by 30 April 2018 if the
business performance of the Target Company meets the
target for the year 2017 stipulated in the Transfer and
Subscription of Shares Agreement; and

3 13,956,162 Consideration Shares by 30 April 2019 if the
business performance of the Target Company meets the
target for the year 2018 stipulated in the Transfer and
Subscription of Shares Agreement.

On 20 August 2015, United Win International Corporation (“United
Win"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the
acquisition agreements with an independent third parties to acquire
the entire issued share capital of Beijing Spirit Commerce & Trading
Limited Jt R B &M EZ BR A F]) ("Beijing Spirit”) at a consideration
of RMB39,000,000.

Among the consideration of RMB39,000,000, subject to and
conditional upon fulfilment or waiver of all the conditions precedent
set out in the acquisition agreement, United Win will settle the
consideration of RMB10,000,000 by cash and the remaining
consideration of RMB29,000,000 will be settled by issuing 43,862,500
consideration shares of the Company in three tranches pursuant to
the general mandate.

For details of the acquisitions, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 20 August 2015.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which ware adopted on
26 April 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) and replaced by the share option
scheme adopted on 24 May 2013 (the “2013 Scheme”). Further
details of the 2002 Scheme and 2013 Scheme are disclosed in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses the number of outstanding share
options granted to the Directors of the Company at the beginning
of the period and at 31 December 2017:

%&E%%

ARRAR-FT_FMA = +75 B RME R
ﬁ%ﬁ:ea_iﬁﬁﬁ TRE=E-=F
RA-TWARMZEREHE (-2 =%

SEIDBRK s —EE _FHEI R _F—=F5
E—THBRENGEMBHRRME2 -

TREBARTRBYR-F—tF+= A
=4— a&%m 7§$ﬁ$ﬂ@%h%§5
P21 K

Number of
share options
at 1/1/2017
and 31/12/2017

R-ZB—-tF

—A-BR

—E—tF

+t=ZA=+—-HZ2

BREHE

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun £ IE& £ 30,000,000

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing % % & 30,000,000

Mr. Liu Xue Heng ZI 2185 & 30,000,000

Mr. Gu Shan Chao B8 & 5L A& 30,000,000

Mr. Siu Kin Wai @22 55 £ 10,000,000

Mr. Hu Xiao Yong #A M B 5L & 15,000,000

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming ik & B £ & 20,000,000

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi ##f B 5 4 15,000,000

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp [ ff 2 5 & 7,000,000

Mr. Wu Yong Xin & 7k ¥ 5c 4 4,000,000

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith & 3£ % 4 4,000,000

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou 5K i& [ 7t & 2,000,000
As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 357,838,171 share RZZE—+tF+ZA=+—H0 ARAKR=ZF
options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme and 2013 Scheme. ZoFHER-_ZE-Z=ZFFEETEH

Should they be fully exercised, the Company will receive
HK$205,825,000 (before issue expenses). The fair value of these
unexercised options measured in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy (note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements)
amounted to HK$106,769,000.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or their
respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Xue Heng (Joint Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming (Joint Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qian Xu (appointed on 22 May 2017)

Mr. Siu Kin Wai (appointed on 22 May 2017)
Mr. Hu Yebi (appointed on 22 May 2017)

Mr. Gu Shan Chao

Mr. Hu Xiao Yong

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gary Zhao

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp (Re-designated on 22 May 2017)
Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith

Mr. Wu Yong Xin

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhu
Shi Xing, Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, Mr. Wang Zhen Chun, Mr. Hu
Shiang Chi and Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou shall retire by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting. In addition, Mr. Qian Xu, Mr. Siu Kin Wai
and Mr. Hu Yebi who have been appointed as Directors by the
Board, shall hold office until the Annual General Meeting pursuant
to Article 112 of the Company's Articles of Association. All of the
above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting.

The Company and each Director have entered into a letter of
appointment for a term of 3 years, subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of
the company is currently in force and was in force throughout this
year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF EERERGHNZESR
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance, to which the Company, its holding RAFESNFAEAEERE - WR/RERAQAF -
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a HERARSKHEERMMBAR ARIHNA - AR
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or AAEZERESHEREEEARE ZERERN

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the R o
year.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EERRORERERD 2ERE

UNDERLYING SHARES
At 31 December 2017, the interests of the Directors and their RZE—+F+_A=Z+—H EFEHEES
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and BZEEATRNARRRREBEEE 2R &

its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained HERNDFPEEIZRARAIREES KBS KA
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and (IEHFRBEGRD]D ENEREFEZER

Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company MRtk iR IBZETFRE BTN ARADRE K
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as B X Pz fEm T

follows:
(i) Long positions (i) #E
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each of the Company KRB EFREE0.20/8 T 2 & B K
Approx.
percentage
of the
issued share
capital of
Interest in the
underlying Total Company
Interest shares interest AR AT
Name of Director Capacity in shares 6 B3 in shares B &{TKRAX
EEnS i=8%) iR 4 % & KRz ROEEZ HAESH
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun Beneficial owner 5,468,750 30,000,000 35,468,750 0.59%
TEFRRE BEEBEEA (Note 3)
(M 3E3)

Interest held by spouse 35,074,000 — 35,074,000 0.58%

MEBREZ#S (Note 1)

(M 3E1)
Interest held by controlled 64,811,000 — 64,811,000 1.07%

corporation (Note 2)

HEEGHEERE o #ER (M 3E2)
105,353,750 30,000,000 135,353,750 2.24%
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Approx.
percentage
of the
issued share
capital of
Interest in Total the Company
Interest  underlying interest AR AT
Name of Director Capacity in shares shares in shares B &{TKRAX
BEEME 5% Bz HEROERZ ROLERZR #HYEoH
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing Beneficial owner — 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.50%
Ak ERBEAA (Note 3)
(M 3E3)
Mr. Liu Xue Heng Beneficial owner — 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.50%
Bl P EmlEA A (Note 3)
(M 3E3)
Mr. Gu Shan Chao Beneficial owner — 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.50%
BEBELE ERBEAA (Note 3)
(M4 3E3)
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong Beneficial owner — 15,000,000 15,000,000 0.25%
MABEELEE ERBEAA (Note 3)
(M 3E3)
Mr. Hu Yebi Interest held by 15,534,000 — 15,534,000 0.26%
HE R L controlled (Note 4)
corporation (M 5%4)
BEEHEERE
ZHE
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming Beneficial owner — 20,000,000 20,000,000 0.33%
REREE Em#EA A (Note 3)
(M4 3E3)
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi Beneficial owner — 15,000,000 15,000,000 0.25%
kil e EmEA A (Note 3)
(M 3E3)
Mr. Siu Kin Wai Beneficial owner — 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.17%
HiEEEE EmlA A
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp Beneficial owner — 7,000,000 7,000,000 0.12%
BRHE2rs ERBEAA (Note 3)
(M4 3E3)
Mr. Wu Yong Xin Beneficial owner — 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.07%
RO & ERBEAA (Note 3)
(M 3E3)
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith Beneficial owner — 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.07%
A& ERBEAA (Note 3)
(M4 3E3)
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou Beneficial owner — 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.03%
REREE ERBEAA (Note 2)
(M4 3E2)

tEBEREFEXEEERAR —E—tFEFR
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(ii)
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1. Mr. Wang Zheng Chun (“Mr. Wang”) is deemed to be interested in
35,074,000 shares, being the interests beneficially held by his
spouse, Madam Shen Ling Zhao.

2. The 64,811,000 shares are held by Hillfame Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Wang.

3. The interests were derived from share options granted by the
Company on 2 April 2015 and 28 January 2016 which entitled the
holders thereof to subscribe for Shares at an exercise price of
HK$0.61 and HK$ 0.53 per Share. First 30% of the share options
granted will be vested in one year after 2 April 2015 and 28 January
2016 (as the case may be), second 30% of the share options granted
will be vested in two years after 2 April 2015 and 28 January 2016
(as the case may be) and remaining 40% of the share options
granted will be vested in three years after 2 April 2015 and
28 January 2016 (as the case may be). The share options are
exercisable from the vesting date until 1 April 2025 and 27 January
2026 (as the case may be).

4. Power Ace Investments Limited is the beneficial owner of 15,534,000
Shares of the Company. The entire issued share capital of Power
Ace Investments Limited is beneficially owned as to 50% by each of
Mr. Hu Yebi (“Mr. Hu") and his spouse. Accordingly, Mr. Hu is
deemed to be interested in 15,534,000 Shares of the Company
indirectly through his interest in Power Ace Investments Limited.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, nor
their associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Share options

The interests of the Directors and chief executive in the share
options of the Company are separately disclosed in the
section “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" above.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

(ii)

G

1. TEHERETE R EDWE AR
35,074,000 AR 19 ¥ B #E 2k - T iz S 4
SRR ZEBLERLLIEREE -

2. 64,811,0000% F% 15 M Hillfame Holdings
Limited#$8 » %R A AR EBHERRFS
ARz AR REE2HEBHTRASRE
FEEREE -

3. ZERBRDEEBARBR _ZE—HEN
AZBRZZE-—RE-AZTN\BELEDH
BRE ZETERESETEFAEAE
FIATTEE SRR D0.61E T kG RKH
053 T RER M - B & HHHF —#30% 5
BRIEFSNR_ZT—AFMA—_BR=ZT—X
F-AZFTNBOETFRERMmE) B —FH
R B B = HE30% 58 AR A S R
—E-AFOAZBARZZE-RF—A
Z+NB(BTRERME) BEMRFHRES
B EREBTWIO%EREZEN - —H
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(RFBERME) B =FEHRRER - B
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E-ZE - RNE—AB-++tBGEFIBRM
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4. Power Ace Investments Limited & 72N &)
15,534,000 IRt 2 ERHA A - i HF 2B
EE(HEEDRERBSEERESR
Power Ace Investments Limited & # 2 %
TTIRANHIS0% Bt - HHE EHR AFE R
H ¥ Power Ace Investments Limited Z ##
% [ B 1 K 2 8]15,534,0008% A% 19 B
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company was entered or existed.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than as disclosed above in the section headed “Directors’
interests in shares and underlying shares”, as at 31 December 2017,
the shareholders (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests of 5% or more or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO or had otherwise notified to the Company were as
follows:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each of the Company
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EEEN
ER AAREET T AR FEEBRAAT
$HERNEAEEHD 2 ERRTRAL -

FERR
BREXTEEZRA R MBI 2 | — 46
WEEN RZE—tFF+A=+—HB K
ARB L - BERDRERETEERIESE
R B E GBI EXVEBEE 2% 5535 B 6 SR (A AR
REAFEBERCHENARFIRE S LA E G E
IVBHEFENBRMARE ZITHE AR
5%HIA L ERAR ZBR (KRR EFHK
BITBRABRINGT

#E
7 2 A SR ETE0.20/8 T 2 BB R

Number of shares Percentage
Name of shareholder Capacity beneficially held of holding
BRR %A g% EREERMEE ERBESH
Cosmic Stand International Limited Beneficial owner 945,000,000 15.62%
Em#EA A
Beijing Enterprises Health and Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.62%
Medical Resources Group Limited corporation (Note 1)
IEEREREEEREBERAT REESEEFE 2 Em (M eE)
Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited  Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.62%
b RERER)ERAQAR corporation (Note 1)
HREESNEEFE 2w (M eE)
Brilliant Bright Holdings Limited Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.62%
A5 BB I B BR A A corporation (Note 1)
BEESNEEFE 2w (M eE)
Beijing Enterprises Real Estate Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.62%
(HK) Limited corporation (Note 1)
IEEEE(EB)ERAT BEEGNEEFE 2w (M eE)
Ng Kin Nam Beneficial owner 401,300,000 6.63%
RiEm Em#EAB A
TR ZEBRM AR A A Interest held by controlled 324,684,000 5.37%

corporation (Note 2)

B REHEAE R A 2 s (K EE2)
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1. These Shares were beneficially owned by Cosmic Stand International Limited.
Cosmic Stand International Limited is wholly owned by Beijing Enterprises
Health and Medical Resources Group Limited (formerly known as “BPHL
Real Estate (Holdings) Limited”) which is in turn wholly owned by Beijing
Properties (Holdings) Limited. Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited is
owned as to 35.72% by Beijing Enterprises Real Estate (HK) Limited, 23.02%
by Brilliant Bright Holdings Limited, 7.22% by Beijing Holdings Limited and

1.3% by lllumination Holdings Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Beijing
Holdings Limited). Beijing Enterprises Real Estate (HK) Limited is wholly
owned by It RILEEXBREE AT which is in turn wholly owned by
Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited. Accordingly, these companies
are deemed to be interested in the 945,000,000 Shares to beneficially
owned by Cosmic Stand International Limited under the SFO.

2. 200,400,000 Shares were beneficially owned by Easy Glory Holding Limited,
which is in turn wholly-owned by Gloryeild Enterprises Limited (“Gloryeild”).
Gloryeild is wholly-owned by Sundart Holdings Limited and is indirectly
wholly-owned by Jangho Curtain Wall Hong Kong Limited (“Jangho”).
Jangho is wholly-owned by Tl 8l &£ B K H AR Q& (I A"
124,284,000 Shares were beneficially owned by Advance Finding
Investments Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Peacemark
Enterprises Limited (“Peacemark”). Peacemark is wholly-owned by Jangho
and is indirectly wholly-owned by JTJil. Accordingly, /L7 is deemed to be
interested in 324,684,000 Shares under the SFO.

Other than as disclosed above and in the section headed
“Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares”, as at
31 December 2017, the Company has not been notified by any
persons (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme is set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2017.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the vyear, the Group has entered into the following
connected transactions:

Provision of Financial Assistance to connected person
On 17 July 2017, the Company and Jinfu N.A. Real Estate
Investment Limited (the “Borrower”) entered into the loan
agreement, pursuant to which, the Company conditionally agreed to
provide a loan facility in the principal amount of CAD13,400,000 to
the Borrower for a term of three years commencing from the date of
drawdown of the loan (the “Loan Facility”).

As at the date of signing of the loan agreement, the Borrower is in
aggregate beneficially owned as to 75% by Mr. Zhu Shi Xing, Mr. Gu
Shan Chao and Mr. Liu Xue Heng, all of them being executive
directors of the Company, and is therefore a connected person of
the Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Accordingly, the provision of the Loan Facility and the transactions
contemplated under the Loan Facility constitute a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As all of the applicable percentage ratios (save for the profits ratio
which is not applicable to connected transactions) (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) in respect of the Loan Facility are

Directors’ Reporte=FgHeE

B & BUX
AREEEFHBERAFHESRRRE
Vi AEREENRE -

AARNEE LW MFWEABELERAA
EERE  EEEARR R LBT S8R
e

ARFCRM—BBRETE  (FREESER
EEAREEZRE AR EZHBEANKS
S MKRMIEE32 -

BrBERE
ARRZABERAARNSESERIRE
BARAARLPIRRERREEFREG 2B
S ERRT -

RHAXRERE
ARARBE-F—tF+-A=+—ALE
E-HANRAARHRE -

BREXS
ERARERTTTIBERS :

B B E A £+ 1B R R T B
RZB—+tFELA+LtE ARRAESEILE
THERERRAB (BT ATLER B -
Bt ARABRA R BRERETRE-EX
DEEAEN3,400,000M T ERHE - B ERE
REHEARBM=F(EXRRE] -

RETEFBHEBH ErhnTEEE B
EBEERIBELEE(ZHHYRARRENH
TER)AHERBEAISS WREBEFTEMAR
ZRERARER ETRAUTETRAD - B
REARRZBBEAL At RIFELTRAE
AR REEFBRENERBERTRETT
ZRGERARNRA ZBERS

HRERREZAHEERED X (BT EA
REEXSZAFLERIN(EER ETHAE
14AE) {8 480 1% B K 7A5% » B X ah & &

tEBEREFEXEEERAR —E—tFEFR

65



66

AN

Directors’ Report e £ WE

more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Loan Facility is exempt from
the circular and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Equity Transfer and Capital contribution

Equity transfer agreements

On 20 September 2017, L/EMEKREEEBMR A (Shanghai
Chongyuan Investment Management Company Limited*) (the
“Subsidiary”) entered into between two Equity Transfer Agreements
with JE REITR XL XM AE R QA (Beijing Deyanjing Cultural
Limited*) and #EERBIHERZSEE UL R) AR A A (Citic BC
Investment Fund Management Limited*) in relation to the
acquisition of 25% and 20% equity interest of & {21t B {5 = R E R
EE 2 BEEBMRAFA (Chengde Real-Estate Xinjia Equity Fund
Management (Beijing) Limited*) (the “Target Company”)
respectively (the "Acquisitions”) at zero consideration.

Upon completion of the Acquisitions, the Target Company will be
owned as to 45% by the Subsidiary, 45% by It Rt IE B EHFR BT
A 7] (Beijing Enterprises Group Real-Estate Co., Limited*) (the
“Party A”) and 10% by RA KRB (JtR) EXREREEMR QA (Orient
Tiantong (Beijing) Capital Management Limited*) (the “Party B").
The registered capital of the Target Company is set to be
RMB10,000,000. The Parties are required to make capital
contributions to the Target Company in accordance with their
proportions of shareholding interest in the Target Company.

Capital increase and capital contribution

On 21 September 2017, the Subsidiary, Party A and Party B (the
“Parties”) signed the Written Shareholders’ Resolutions, pursuant to
which, the Parties have agreed to the proposed increase in
registered capital of the Target Company from RMB10,000,000 to
RMB50,000,000 (the “Capital Increase”) and the Subsidiary agreed to
the proposed additional capital contribution in the amount of
RMB18,000,000 to be made by the Subsidiary to the registered
capital of the Target Company, which is in proportion to its holding
of the total equity interest in the Target Company (the “Capital
Contribution”).

Pursuant to the Written Shareholders’ Resolutions, completion of the
Capital Increase shall take place on or before 1 December 2021. An
initial capital contribution shall be made by each of the Subsidiary,
Party A and Party B in the amount of RMB3,000,000, RMB?,000,000
and RMB2,000,000 respectively, on or before 15 October 2017.
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As at the date of the Written Shareholders’ Resolutions, the Target
Company is directly owned as to 45% equity interest by Party A,
which is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the holding company of
Beijing Properties, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Accordingly, the Target Company is an associate of a connected
person of the Company. The Capital Contribution constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As one of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined
in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) in respect of the Capital
Contribution exceeds 0.1% but all of them are less than 5%, the
Capital Contribution is subject to the reporting and disclosure
requirements but exempted from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As all applicable percentage ratios set out in Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of (i) the Acquisitions; and (ii) the
Acquisitions and the Capital Contribution on an aggregated basis,
are less than 5%, the Acquisitions and the Capital Contribution do
not constitute notifiable transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and are therefore not subject to the
reporting, announcement and Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Supplemental loan agreement — loan extension

28 October 2016, United Win International Corporation (“United
Win") entered into a loan facility agreement (the “Loan Facility
Agreement”) with Mr. Wang Zheng Chun (“Mr. Wang”), pursuant to
which, United Win has conditionally agreed to provide a loan facility
in the principal amount of HK$135,000,000 (“Loan Facility A") to
Mr. Wang for a term of twelve months commencing from the day of
drawing appearing on the first notice of drawing given by
Mr. Wang.

On 31 October 2017, United Win and Mr. Wang entered into a
supplemental loan agreement (the “Supplemental Loan
Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties have conditionally
agreed to extend the maturity date of the Extended Loan to
3 November 2018 (the "Extended Maturity Date”) at the Renewed
Interest Rate.

P

Directors’ Report e EEgwHeEH

REABRFRZRAY AR ETERRILR
BEZERARCEEZENBRARIIHNAE
EREBBEEQARZ4%EE Bt BEQ
RIVARRBEALZHBEA - RIE EWRA
FUAZ  TEBRARARZHEERS BN
FEIEZET—HERAE LR (EER £
TR BIE14.0716) BBONREMEBEAEH L
KIGENE% ST EBET ETRAEI4AZEIR
TZHREBERRAT HERRETB KRR
HOER T -

MR ETRE7EMEEBOZZRES
B RZEWBEEITERAHFEESGE
ZHIBERB DL ERGERNS  ZFWES
BAIMIELTHERETRAUNFEI4EEBTAR A
ZERTRHR S FitBAET EWRANFE14
BETZHEHM RERBERERILERE -

T ENh#E — BENER
R=ZZ—XF+H=+/LH "  United Win
International Corporation ([ United Win J) B2 F
EEAE(TEREDIVERBEHZE(ER
BE W] - B United WinBE B K41 H
BRI T LA — 2 A% % /135,000,000 7T
ZERRE(ERMER]) BXEEHEE
RIREBAARERASE RSB+ @A -

RZZE—tF+HA=+—H " United Winf2 £
EEFTUBAERRZE ((BARERBZE]D &
I FIA A EBGERBIREENA R GLE
REFZIHMALERE-_ZE—N\E+—H=H
([EEERIHHA] -

LEEREFELEEERAT —S—LEEH

67/



68

AN

Directors’ Report e £ WE

Major terms of the Supplemental Loan Agreement are set out
below:

(i) the maturity date for the repayment of the remaining principal
amount of the Loan Facility A, being HK$62,000,000 (the
“Extended Loan”), shall be extended for one year to the
Extended Maturity Date (the “Loan Extension”);

(i) interest shall accrue on the Extended Loan from 4 November
2017 to the Extended Maturity Date at the interest rate of 6%
per annum (the “Renewed Interest Rate”). Interest shall be
calculated on the basis of actual number of days elapsed and
on a 365-day per year basis interest and payable on an annual
basis on the Extended Maturity Date; and

(i) subject to early repayment of the Extended Loan, Mr. Wang
shall repay the Extended Loan and accrued interest on the
Extended Maturity Date.

Save for the above amendments, no other amendment has been
made to the Loan Facility Agreement.

Mr. Wang, being a Director, is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The entering into of the Supplemental Loan
Agreement therefore constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As all of the
applicable percentage ratios (save for the profits ratio which is not
applicable to connected transactions) (as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules) in respect of the Loan Extension are more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Loan Extension is exempt from the
circular and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Except for the connected transactions disclosed above, the Group
entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as “related
parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details of the
related party transactions entered into the Group during the year
are disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
Those transactions also constitute connected transactions of the
Company but are exempt from reporting, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.
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STRUCTURAL CONTRACTS

Background

According to the Administrative Rules for Foreign Investments in
Telecommunications Enterprises, which were issued on
11 December 2001 by the State Council and became effective on
1 January 2002, a foreign investor is currently prohibited from
owning more than 50% of the equity interest in a PRC entity that
provides value-added telecommunications services. Internet content
provision ("ICP") services are classified as value-added
telecommunications businesses, and a commercial operator of such
services must obtain an ICP license from the appropriate
telecommunications authorities to carry on any commercial Internet
content provision operation in China. In July 2006, PRC Ministry of
Information Industry issued a notice (the “Notice”) which prohibits
ICP license holders from leasing, transferring or selling a
telecommunications business operating license to any foreign
investors in any form, or providing any resource, sites or facilities to
any foreign investors for their illegal operation of
telecommunications businesses in China. The notice also requires
that ICP license holders and their shareholders directly own the
domain names and trademarks used by such ICP license holders in
their daily operation.

Reasons for the Contractual Arrangement

On 21 October 2015 the Group acquired 35% of interest in Lt R R
EHEMEARA
("Top-Doctors”) by way of capital injection at a cash consideration
of HK$17,430,000, which was then stated as an associate of the
Group. On 5 August 2016, the Group acquired another 30% of
interest in Top-Doctors from its certain existing shareholders

(Beijing Top-Doctors Technology Co., Ltd.*)

through a series of share transfer agreements at a cash
consideration of HK$5,382,000. Since then, Top-Doctors has become
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

As such, to enable Top-Doctors to continuously obtain the ICP
license and conduct “Internet + Medication” business in China in
2017, on 7 February 2017, the Group transferred its 65% of equity
interest in Top-Doctors to FE#HEMREEEER QA (Shanghai
Jinkang Corporate Management Limited*) (“Shanghai Jinkang”), a
PRC entity. Subsequently, Jt R ZREFEEIE B R A F (Beijing Yutai
Health Management Company Limited*) (“Beijing Yutai”), a
subsidiary of the Group, Shanghai Jinkang and its shareholders
Ms. Liu Xinfeng (2] 1 &) and Ms. Chu Muyin (& & 5R) (the
"Registered Shareholder(s)” and Top-Doctors entered into a series
of structural agreements to enable the Group to exercise control
over Shanghai Jinkang and Top-Doctors, among which Top-Doctors
(wholly-owned by Shanghai Jinkang as to 65%, which is in turn
owned as to 50% and 50% by Ms. Liu Xinfeng and Ms. Chu Muyin
respectively) holds the requisite ICP license. As such, Top-Doctors is
still deemed to be a subsidiary of the Group with its financial
statements consolidated into the Group.
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The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
are of the view that: (i) the contractual arrangement is essential to
the legal structure of the Group and business operation of Top-
Doctors; and (ii) the contractual arrangement was entered in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group and in normal
commercial terms or terms that are favourable to the Group, was
fair and reasonable or favourable to the Group, and was in the
interests of shareholders as a whole.

Revenue and Assets subject to the Structural
Agreements under the Contractual Arrangement
For the year ended 31 December 2017 and as at 31 December
2017, revenue and total assets of Top-Doctors amounted to
approximately HK$634,000 and HK$8,512,000, representing 0.49%
and 0.22% of the total revenue and total assets of the Group,
respectively. The Directors are of the view that the Group maintains
s "Internet + Medication” development in China via the structural
agreements of Top-Doctors, but its business and operation are not
dependent on Top-Doctors or the structural agreements. Below is a
brief description on the structural agreements.

Information on Beijing Yutai, Shanghai Jinkang and
Top-Doctors

Beijing Yutai is a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability. The entire interests in Beijing Yutai are indirectly wholly-
owned by the Group, and its scope of business includes health
management (excluding diagnosis and treatment services); health
information consultation (excluding diagnosis and treatment
services) and corporate management consultation.

Shanghai Jinkang is a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability. The Registered Shareholders of Shanghai Jinkang are
Ms. Liu Xinfeng and Ms. Chu Muyin.

Ms. Liu Xinfeng is a PRC citizen and a Registered Shareholder of
Shanghai Jinkang, who holds 50% of equity interest in Shanghai
Jinkang as at the date of this annual report and is currently an
employee of the Group.

Ms. Chu Muyin is a PRC citizen and a Registered Shareholder of
Shanghai Jinkang, who holds 50% of equity interest in Shanghai
Jinkang as at the date of this annual report and is currently an
employee of the Group.

Top-Doctors is a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability. 65% interests in Top-Doctors are owned by Shanghai
Jinkang, and its scope of business includes the provision of
intellectual medical services in cities, family doctors contracting
services and health management services.
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Summary of the Major Terms of the Structural
Agreements

Beijing Yutai has entered into a series of structural agreements with
Shanghai Jinkang, Top-Doctors and the Registered Shareholders for
obtaining the control over the finance and business operation of
Shanghai Jinkang, Top-Doctors and its subsidiaries (the “Shanghai
Jinkang Group”) as well as sharing the economic benefits and
interests of the Shanghai Jinkang Group. The series of structural
agreements included (i) Loan Agreement; (ii) Exclusive Share Option
Agreement; (iii) Equity Pledge Agreement; (iv) Entrusted Agreement
and Power of Attorney; (v) Business Co-operation Agreement; (vi)
Master Exclusive Service Agreement : (vii) Confirmation and
Commitment Letters; and (viii) Spouse Consent Letters. The major
terms of the structural agreements are summarized as follows:

(i) Loan Agreement: Beijing Yutai and Shanghai Jinkang entered
into the Loan Agreement on 7 February 2017, pursuant to
which, Beijing Yutai will provide a loan in an amount of
RMB19,615,300 to Shanghai Jinkang to acquire 65% of equity
interest in Top-Doctors from the Group. The term for the loan
is 20 years from the date of signing the Loan Agreement,
bearing an interest rate of 0% per annum. The loan can be
extended by written confirmation of Beijing Yutai, and the
term for the extension is subject to the confirmation by
Beijing Yutai.

(i) Exclusive Share Option Agreement: Beijing Yutai, Shanghai
Jinkang and the Registered Shareholders have entered into
the Exclusive Share Option Agreement on 7 February 2017,
pursuant to which, the Registered Shareholders have
irrevocably granted an exclusive right to Beijing Yutai, which
can request the Registered Shareholders to transfer their
equity interest in Shanghai Jinkang to Beijing Yutai or the
third party designated by Beijing Yutai.

(i)  Equity Pledge Agreement (1): Beijing Yutai and the Registered
Shareholders entered into the Equity Pledge Agreement (1) on
7 February 2017, pursuant to which, Beijing Yutai is entitled to
exercise its right to sell the pledged interest in the registered
capital of Shanghai Jinkang held by the Registered
Shareholders upon the occurrence of certain specific events.

(iv)  Equity Pledge Agreement (2): Beijing Yutai, Shanghai Jinkang
and Top-Doctors entered into the Equity Pledge Agreement
(2) on 7 February 2017, pursuant to which, Beijing Yutai is
entitled to exercise its right to sell the pledged interest in the
registered capital of Top-Doctors held by Shanghai Jinkang
upon the occurrence of certain specific events.
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v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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Entrusted Agreement and Power of Attorney: Beijing Yutai,
Shanghai Jinkang and the Registered Shareholders entered
into the Entrusted Agreement and Power of Attorney on
7 February 2017, pursuant to which, the Registered
Shareholders have authorized Beijing Yutai to exercise all
rights in Shanghai Jinkang held by the

Registered Shareholders.

shareholders’

Business Co-operation Agreement: Beijing Yutai, Shanghai
Jinkang and the Registered Shareholders entered into the
Business Co-operation Agreement on 7 February 2017,
pursuant to which, Shanghai Jinkang and the Registered
Shareholders appointed Beijing Yutai as their exclusive service
provider to offer comprehensive support on business
operation and staff arrangement.
Master Exclusive Service Agreement: Beijing Yutai and
Shanghai Jinkang entered into the Master Exclusive Service
Agreement on 7 February 2017, pursuant to which, Beijing
Yutai will provide technical support and consultation services
to Shanghai Jinkang in consideration of a service fee
equivalent to 100% of the audited consolidated total profit of
Shanghai Jinkang.

Confirmation and Commitment Letters: The Registered
Shareholders entered into the Confirmation and Commitment
Letters in favour of Beijing Yutai on 7 February 2017, where
each of the Registered Shareholders confirmed, among others,
(i) in any event, the structural agreements signed by the
Registered Shareholders shall not be affected; (i) when Beijing
Yutai is permitted to directly hold the equity interest in Top-
Doctors pursuant to the PRC law, the Registered Shareholders
shall co-operate with Beijing Yutai for share transfer; and (iii)
the Registered Shareholder shall not, directly or indirectly,
involve or engage in business in competition with Shanghai
Jinkang Group.

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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Spouse Consent Letters: The spouses of the Registered
Shareholders entered in the Spouse Confirmation and Consent
Letter in favour of Beijing Yutai on 7 February 2017, where the
spouse of each of the Registered Shareholders confirmed,
among others, (i) he was not interested in the equity interest
in Shanghai Jinkang held by his spouse, and committed not to
make any claim on such interests in Shanghai Jinkang; (ii)
confirmed that the Structural Agreements as well as any
amendments to or termination of such documents entered
into by each shareholder of Shanghai Jinkang shall not be
subject to his consent; (iii) committed to sign all requisite
documents and make all requisite actions to guarantee the
proper performance of the above documents; and (iv)
committed that if he is, by any reason, entitled to acquire any
equity interest in Shanghai Jinkang held by his spouse, he will
be bound by the obligations as a shareholder under the
above documents (as amended from time to time); and if such
documents are breached or if there is any material change in
Shanghai Jinkang, he shall immediately notify Beijing Yutai
and assist Beijing Yutai in safeguarding its legal interests and
obligations under such documents.

The Directors confirms that, as at the date of this report, relevant

PRC authorities have casted no doubt over the structural

agreements, and the Group has not encountered any interruption or

obstruction imposed by any PRC regulatory authorities for operating

its business via Shanghai Jinkang in accordance with the structural

agreements. Meanwhile, the Group has obtained the opinion of its

PRC legal advisor that the contractual arrangement is currently not

in breach of the relevant PRC regulations.

Risks Relating to the Contractual Arrangement
The Directors is in the opinion that the following risks are related to

the contractual arrangement.

If the PRC government recognized the contractual arrangement
that established our business operation structure does not
comply with the PRC laws and regulations, or if there is any
change on those regulations or their interpretations in the
future, the Group may be subject to stringent punishment or
forced to waive the interest in those business operations.

Substantial uncertainties exist in the enactment schedule,
interpretation and implementation of The Foreign Investment
Law of the People’s Republic of China (draft version to solicit
opinions), and its effect to the continuity of our current
corporate structure, corporate governance and business
operation.
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—  The contractual arrangement of the Group may not be as
effective in providing operational control as direct ownership
and Shanghai Jinkang or its shareholders may fail to perform
their obligations under the contractual arrangement.

—  The Group may lose the ability to use and enjoy assets and
licenses held by Shanghai Jinkang and its subsidiaries that are
important to the operation of our business if Shanghai
Jinkang or any of its subsidiaries declares bankruptcy or is
subject to a dissolution or liquidation proceeding.

—  The contractual arrangement of the Group may be subject to
scrutiny by the PRC tax authorities and additional taxes may
be imposed. A finding that the Group owes additional taxes
could reduce our consolidated profit.

—  Shareholders of Shanghai Jinkang may potentially have a
conflict of interest with the Group, and they may breach their
contracts with the Group or cause such contracts to be
amended in a manner contrary to our interests.

—  The Group conducts business operation in the PRC through
Shanghai Jinkang and its subsidiaries by way of the
contractual arrangement, but certain terms of the contractual
arrangement may not be enforceable under the PRC laws.

—  If the Group exercises the option to acquire the equity interest
in Shanghai Jinkang or Top-Doctors, the ownership transfer
may subject us to certain limitations and incur additional
costs.

To ensure the effective operation of the Group and the
implementation of structural agreements, the Group has adopted
the following measures:

—  To ensure the operation of the structural agreements, the
Group confirms that it has reviewed the overall performance
and the compliance of the structural agreements for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

—  The Board will review the structural agreements annually, and
confirms that (i) the transactions conducted in the aforesaid
year have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
terms of the structural agreements, thus all the revenue
generated by Shanghai Jinkang Group, net of all relevant
expenses, costs and taxes payable, has been retained by the
Group; (i) each of Shanghai Jinkang and its subsidiaries has
not paid any dividend or other distribution to its equity
holders; and (iii) no new contract or renewed contract has
been entered into in accordance with the same terms of the
existing structural agreements.
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—  Shanghai Jinkang Group has provided the Group with a
complete accounts for the auditor to carry out audit
procedures of the consolidated results of Shanghai Jinkang
Group to the Group.

*  For identification purposes only

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2017 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of the
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, 30.4% of the Group’s purchase were attributed by
the Group's five largest suppliers and approximately 9.8% of the
Group's purchase were attributed by the largest supplier; and 55.8%
of the Group's turnover were attributed by the Group's five largest
customers and approximately 35.2% of the Group’s turnover were
attributed by the largest customer.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their close
associates or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
number of issued shares had interest in any of the five largest
customers of the Group.

Directors’ Reporte=FgHeE

— LEBFEEERASERECTENS
AERE U BEEALES G LB
BREENEEETRIRERF -
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Ermst & Young RKEETEISE TSR Tel EB55E: +852 2846 9333
22IF, CITIC Tower EBPEREE 1 5 Fax {82 +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue hi{EKE 2 18 ey.com
Central, Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report BYZEMBE

To the shareholders of Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health
Industry Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing
Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) set out on pages 83
to 227, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Protfessional
Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

HRETER
HAREAFTESREESNEXRHE  AAY
AHPGAVBRERNBAZRAEZNEIER - %
EERREHFEMBHRRERETENLIY
KERANERTRE EETHZEFREMR
BEENER BFH MBS HAEZSTN
o] & S & F 3t b, DA L R B 5% o

ESCRTARERBMARITFEA M BRE
AERENREETHIBANERE  BREZSH
REFTFHEEBANEE - HEM  EENER
THEEBEHNTREUFENGSMBRREK
HEAR B R R MR ET VBT ET - BEERITE
AREFNER  BREEH TABERES FTEHMN
HITHWRERF  REAUMBHRREREREAE
SRR -

on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
HMRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EECEGNMMEERRETSHE

Goodwill impairment

In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standards 36
Impairment of Assets, the Group is required to annually
test the amount of goodwill for impairment. This annual
impairment test was significant to our audit because the
net carrying amount of goodwill allocated to medical and
geriatric care business of approximately HK$213 million
as of 31 December 2017 was material to the
consolidated financial statements. The recoverable
amount has been determined by reference to the value
in use of each relevant cash generating unit. When
assessing the recoverable amount, judgement and
estimation are involved, such as future cash flow and
discount rate.

RESEGALENFREERE EXEETFHRE
BREZSBELAIR HFEREARBES 2ERY
BEX REARBEZE_Z—+tF+-_A=+—HOREE
BREZXEBOREZ REFELN213B B THEESMH
BEAMEBEK - AIREISFENLZESHBAR CEEEN
ZEREBEET BT EEeER  F2ELAHK
st - PINARIRE ME RBEF =X -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

HERBESRN G P BHRRME3IR6-

We evaluated the key assumptions including those
related to growth rates of revenue and gross profit
margin. We engaged a valuation expert to assess the
methodologies and assumptions such as discount rates,
terminal growth rate of the Group for each cash
generating unit. We considered the historical financial
performance of the business units and compared with the
forecasts to evaluate management's budgeting process.
We also read and assessed the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements and determined that
they were sufficient.
EEEHTIERR(BRBERAZRRLENXEBANRK
R)ETHE EEZRAEERNME EEEMSREE
AEBRZHERBR WFRERKALERE - EEEDE
BEBBMNBERNBRE  LHEBRALE - EMTEE
BENEEENBRE EFTEMHELFLESS VB R
RFEHARE STEFTEBEREBRA -

R ERREESE AR AR
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Key audit matter
BMRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZETNMAUEEBERETER

Valuation of contingent consideration

KARERE

Part of purchase considerations of acquisitions of the
Group completed in the past year were regarded as
contingent consideration payables and recognised as
financial liabilities at fair value and remeasured at the
end of the reporting period.
SEREFERNOWE 2 BOBERERE RERK
%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ@?@ﬁmﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁ W& B R E &t

=
= °

Determination of fair value required management’s
judgement and estimates and was based on
assumptions. The management engaged an independent
valuer to assess the fair value of the contingent
consideration payables by using valuation techniques.
EIBERELAE REARERRER  UEBEERQTE-
EREBEZEBYUMEMBEBGHERDGIEEMNKARE
ZR¥E-

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3, 34 and 43
to the consolidated financial statements.

HERBESN G BHRRME3 - 34Rk43 -

We evaluated the key assumptions including those
related to growth rates of revenue and gross profit
margin of the acquired businesses. We considered the
historical financial performance of the business units and
compared with the forecasts to evaluate management's
budgeting process. We engaged a valuation expert to
evaluate the assumptions and methodologies of Monte
Carlo simulation that was used by the Group and the
independent external valuer. We also focused on the
adequacy of the Group’s disclosures about those
assumptions, which were, those that had the most
significant effect on the determination of the fair value of
contingent considerations payables.

EQEKFWW@%EWAﬁET&EW$¥ﬁW%
ﬂfﬁ@mfmhjnﬂﬁ EEEREBEMNBEE
Wﬁﬁﬁ I E2 78 R bE #R - %ﬁﬁﬁE@FﬂEEEME
B BEEZRGLERERTMG E%@&ﬁl%%ﬁ@%%
%Z%%%%ﬁﬁi%ﬁ“&ﬁi EnEHRR EF
Iﬁ@&%ﬁ&Zﬁ*%EE% Wﬁ%i%ﬁi%ﬁ%
ZRAFEFEREATE
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Key audit matter
BMRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZETNMAUEEBERETER

Valuation of investment properties

REY X GE

The Group adopted the fair value model for their
investment properties in accordance with HKAS 40
Investment Property. Changes in fair values were
recorded in profit or loss. The Group engaged an
independent appraiser to perform valuation on the
investment properties of the Group as at 31 December
2017. Both the fair values of investment properties of
approximately HK$381 million at 31 December 2017 and
their changes of approximately HK$12 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 were significant to the
financial statements. In addition, since the valuation
involved management judgment and estimates based on
a projection of estimated rental value, capitalisation rate
and adjustment on market unit price which would affect
the fair value of the investment properties, we
considered it significant to our audit.
RESESHLENFIORKREN R ESERKREYE
REAFERER - A TFEEHTALER . EEEZRES
SNEHERIS BEEBER-_T—tFI+-A=+—HBZERE
MEETHE REVER_Z—+FE+_A=+—HZ
ARFELBEETREANRBE_T—tF+-_A=+—
BIFFEZEBHN 20088 THHBREMSHABERX -
o AREEESERBRESZEREMEQAFEZ
et BEER BRI ER TS BEMERZBBE
HAE KA EERR/UHES 2 ERTEER -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

HERBESRN G P BHHRRME3IR4-

We assessed the objectivity, independence and expertise
of the external appraiser. We involved our real estate
valuation specialists to evaluate the valuation techniques
and assessed the underlying assumptions. We collected
informations and discuss the character of the target
properties with the management and the independent
appraiser. We performed independence market quotation
for similar properties and adjusted specific factors to get
the range of unit price for the target properties. We
assessed the unit price derived by the independent
appraiser with comparable properties with similar nature
and location. We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures on investment properties, including valuation
sensitivity and fair value hierarchy.
EEENMEINBTEMZZBRN BUMEREERE -F
EEBYELEERTEHERDAFEEBRSE &
WEERIWEERERB T EMRE EWENRE -
EERBEOUYMEETELT S RE - L AR TERZIAR
SEEVENEUEREE TERBLIEMEHNE
ERERELE RN AT E LR EETIEH - BFE
NEFEEBKRENELRBEER RH - HlanfEEGRKME
RRAFEEBR-

ItEBEEFEXEEERAR —E—tF5FH
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Man Kit.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 March 2018

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

£

Notes
B =
Revenue A 5
Cost of sales & B AR
Gross profit EM
Other income and gains, net E A KRS E R 5
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HERAX
Administrative expenses TBRAX
Finance costs B & R AR 7
Share of profits and losses of Pal oy AN ol - DY i
associates
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB AR A (E518) 6
Income tax expense FriS T B X2 10
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FRERMN(BE)

IRBEEEEXEBERAR —Z—tF5R

2017

—E—tF

HK$’'000
THET
130,625

(83,058)

47,567
629,054
(39,627)
(181,868)
(4,363)

(5,302)

445,461

(165,298)

280,163

2016
—E—XREF
HK$'000
T T

163,856

(121,133)

42,723
98,052
(21,123)
(189,405)
(4,632)

(11,770)

(86,155)

(1,853)

(88,008)
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFF/Z

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FBT
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEaM(ER) 280,163 (88,008)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hip 2 HE Wz (BE)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to ExHEBEEFT »BEES
be reclassified to profit or loss in WEMEERE, (F8):
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences: ME 3 Z 5
Exchange difference on translation of HBREGINEFEELZIER
foreign operations =% 134,959 (108,055)
Reclassification adjustments for gains #EmT BN NEEH
included in profit or loss — Gain on DEAE — HEkE
disposal 30,595 1,058
Share of other comprehensive loss of SREEE A E H A2 EEE
associates (735) —
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) EgHEET > EEER
to be reclassified to profit or loss in WEMEERE(BE)
subsequent periods F R 164,819 (106,997)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) not HEHgHEErTeEsENs A
to be reclassified to profit or loss in FEROEME2EKR
subsequent periods: (B#E):
Gain on property revaluation %%EEZWE 12,141
Income tax effect wREE (3,039)
Net other comprehensive income not to  HEEZHEE TS ET o EE
be reclassified to profit or loss in BmnzEMEEl=FE
subsequent periods 9,106
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FEAMEEKE
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (E518) - MR IA 164,819 (97,891)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FEzEEE(EE)4
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 444,982 (185,899)

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RK
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E THEx THT
Profit/(loss) attributable to: TOALEEERN, (EE):
Owners of the parent BRAHAE A 213,675 (68,015)
Non-controlling interests JEPE IR HE 2 66,488 (19,993)
280,163 (88,008)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) THALTEEZERZE,
attributable to: (E518) a5 -
Owners of the parent ISENEIE PN 364,024 (156,738)
Non-controlling interests FEIZ AR HE 2 80,958 (29,161)
444,982 (185,899)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BRABEERESEFEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FEIE G R AT (E18)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12
Basic HAR
— For profit/(loss) for the year — BREEREF,(EBB) LG VLTSN HK(1.09)cents
3.477% 1L (1.09) 7 {1l
Diluted oy
— For profit/(loss) for the year — MEEEFN, (EE) FLEN VAT HK(1.09)cents

3.47%Al (1.09)78 il

tEREREELERERAR —E2—tEFH 85



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEA MR R

31 December 2017 —ZF—+#+=-H=+—H

86

2017 2016
—E—-+tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B = FHET FBT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMBNEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 13 86,687 235,815
Investment properties BEME 14 381,625 356,498
Prepaid land lease payments AN TS 15 553,656 1,303,008
Goodwill [EES 16 212,874 265,659
Other intangible assets EmEREEE 17 14,920 14,196
Investments in associates REEERNFIZ2®]E 18 461,263 149,191
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 19 46,151 11,295
Prepayments TR IE 23 272,657 —
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 2,029,833 2,335,662
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories rE 20 28,889 7,981
Property under development ERBYE 21 268,253 —
Trade receivables EUE 5 EBR® 22 28,325 12,013
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFRIE « 2 R H U
receivables P 23 809,788 240,255
Due from related parties & Uk B8 3 5 FE 41 149,832 247,887
Financial assets at fair value through FEBRBmUAAFEIEZ
profit or loss SREE 25 104,607 134,687
Pledged deposits BTN 26 = 21,900
Cash and cash equivalents B MR EEY 26 471,436 298,204
Total current assets BB EEE 1,861,130 962,927
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Trade payables ERE SRR 27 16,878 10,007
Other payables and accruals H T RIE R EFHE A 28 178,737 188,606
Interest-bearing bank and other FHEERIT R H b AR
borrowings 29 81,541 76,634
Due to a related party R — & &R FIE 41 36,558 —
Tax payable &5 R R 98,997 2,314
Total current liabilities mEBAaEEE 412,711 277,561
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 1,448,419 685,366
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 3,478,252 3,021,028
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position e &x& Bk &

Notes
B =%
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRDEE
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEER 30
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FPERITER 29
Other payables H h JE T 3RIE 28
Total non-current liabilities InBEaERE
Net assets BEEFE
EQUITY Em
Equity attributable to the owners BRAHE ANEIE#ER
of the parent
Share capital P& 7R 31
Reserves Gk 33
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR M

Total equity

k

ks

Zhu Shi Xing
it B\

Director

EE

31 December 2017 —F—+%#+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—2-tF CB-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHT

3,478,252 3,021,028
137,196 201,284
161,503 106,201

9,540 12,077
308,239 319,562

3,170,013 2,701,466

1,209,648 1,234,578

1,678,545 1,329,827

2,888,193 2,564,405
281,820 137,061

3,170,013 2,701,466

Gu Shan Chao

BEEE

Director

EE

IRBEEEEXEBERAR —Z—tF5R



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREBR

tFEF=A=1—HILFE

Year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —ZF—

Attributable to owners of the parent

88

BRAAERARR
Shares Equity-
held settled
Share forthe  share-based Exchange Asset Non-
Share premium  share award payment Merger  fluctuation  revaluation Capital ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital account scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
KRR EH hiEnE
HER RHBER
Bx  BRAEEE HEORH fIEE  aliE EXRDEE HEERER 281 ZitBR i FEREE  RRed
Notes HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
[iF3 TR Tir Tin TR Tin Tin TR Tir TiEn TR Tir Tian
(note 31) (note 31) (note 33) (note 32) (note 33) (note 33)
(B331) (31 (Ff3£33) (Fr3E32) (H33) (F3E33)
At 1 January 2016 RZF-~%-A-B 1,248,521 1,822,632 (1,257) 44,780 800 (69,380) - - (334729 2711313 85,390 2,796,763
Loss for the year £ 4 - - - - - - - - (68,015) (68,015) (19993) (88,008)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ EEEMH2E
for the year: Wi/ (B8):
Exchange differences on: EXZE:
Translation of foreign BEENER
operations - - - - - 98,887) - - - (98,887) (9,168) (108,055)
Reclassification adjustments for ~ NEMILEMFNEF 2
foreign operations disposed ENARSEE
of during the year - - - - - 1,05 - - - 1,058 - 1,05
Revaluation surplus of land and THREFIERRS
buildings, net of tax il 3] - - - - - - 9,106 - - 9,106 - 9,106
Total comprehensive income/oss) ER2ENE/ (BE)
for the year ek - - - - - (97.829) 9,106 - (68,015) (156,738) (®9,161) (185,899)
Deemed partial disposal of interests B fFSA T &~
in a subsidiary WEAR ZER - - - - - - - 117 - (117 117
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHBAR % - - - - - - - - - - (369) (369)
Acquisition of subsidiaries KEHBAR k! 3025 6,455 - - - - - - - 9,680 77192 86,872
Capital contribution of FERBFEE
non-controlling shareholders — - — — - — — - — — 2892 2892
Equity-settled share-based payment ~ REZHNRHAER
amangements ES:3 2 - - - 41,002 - - - - - 4,082 - 41,082
Shares purchased for the share award  SR{ ZRH HEERH
scheme kY2 — (1,257) 1,257 — — — — — — — — —
Transfer of share option reserve RERERZASERE
upon the forfeiture or expiry of HRRRERR
share options — - — (3.966) — — — - 3966 — - -
Shares repurchased BRHBE kil (16,974) (22,881) - - - - - (39,855) — (39,855)
At 31 December 2016 R-B-7E
+ZA=1-A 1,234,578 1,805,149* —* 81,876 800+ (167,209 9,106 117 (398,778 2,564,405 137,061 2,701,466
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Year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+F+=F=1—HI-FZF

Attributable to owners of the parent

SATEAARY
Equity-
settled
Share  Statutory  share-based Exchange Asset Non-
Share premium Surplus payment Merger  fluctuation  revaluation Capital ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
RELS

iR HRBAER
Bx  BREEEE  BHER  AREE  AKER EXNDEE KEERBE  AKER  RiER B3  FEREE  ERET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000
Wi FER T TEn FER Fin Tén FER T TEn TR T Tén

(note 31) (note 31) (note 33) (note 32) (note 33) (note 33)
(B331) (W) (WH33) (W32  (WE3) (H333)
At 1 January 2017 RZF-t5-A-B 1,234,578 1,805,149 81,876 (167,209) (398,778) 2,564,405 137,061 2,701,466
Profit for the year ERaT 213,675 213,675 66,488 280,163
Other comprehensive income FEEMZENE:
for the year:
Exchange differences on: EXZE:
Translation of foreign BEENER
operations 120,489 120,489 14,470 134,959
Share of other comprehensive A EBERTAMLE
loss of associate BB (735) (735) (735)
Reclassification adjustments for ~ NEMILEMFNEFZ
foreign operations disposed EfARSEER
of during the year 30,595 30,595 30,595
Total comprehensive income FREANEEE
for the year 150,349 213,675 364,024 80,958 444,982
Issue of consideration shares BIRERR 34 9,475 9475
Capital contribution of FERRFE
non-controlling shareholders 63,801
Equity-settled share-based payment  RIE&E MR A AEE
amangements eS¢ 2 - - 17,758 17,758
Share of reserves of associates AEBELRRE = = 4,329 4329
Shares repurchased and cancelled BB R E kil (28,142) (43,656) - (71,798) (71,798)
Transfer from retained profits BRARLET = = 11,365 - -
At 31 December 2017 RZF-+E128
=1-A 1,209,648 1,767,756* 11,365% 99,634% 800* (16,860)* 9,106* 3212 (196,468)¢ 2,888,193 281,820 3,170,013
e These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of e ZEREROREGEEVBRARZGEREE
HK$1,678,545,000 (2016: HK$1,329,827,000) in the consolidated statement of 1,678,545,0007% 7t (= & — /X 4F © 1,329,827,000/8
financial position. 7))

IERERRFEEXSEERAR —2—tFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n\/T\ EE,\/ //IL%?E

Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=-H=1—HIFE

2017
—E—+tF
Notes HK$'000
B & TE T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RELEHMBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax: BRIAEF, (EE) 445,461
Adjustments for: MATSEELFHE
Finance costs @§W$ 7 4,363
Share of profits and losses of DAGHE S R A 2 R g
associates B 5,302
Interest income BN N 5 (39,522)
Amortisation of other intangible HimpEE#E
assets 6 902
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAT + A & B 85
payments 6 17,116
Depreciation e 6 10,305
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE BERREE
property, plant and equipment Bz EE 5 67
Changes in fair value of investment KREMEZ RN TEEZE
properties 5,14
Impairment loss A E 1B 6
Equity-settled share-based payment [ 4 45 DA BR A9 A3 EEBEAS
expense ENba 32 17,758
Fair value gain on financial assets at FEREBERUANTEIERZ
fair value through profit or loss CREEZ ATFERE 5 (1,169)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEMBARZ (W),
subsidiaries &R 5,35 (576,121)
Gain on deemed disposal of a partial BRIEHER —H Hﬁﬁ%’_\ Al
interest in an associate B 4 2 2 W a 5 —
Fair value adjustment of contingent AARAREBZAFERE
consideration 5,34
Dividend income & 2 WA 5
Handling fee income from a loan to By —REENERZ
director FEE
Gain on remeasurement of the EFFER —HBEEAF
previously existing interest in an R PR FE IR R 2 Wz
associate 5,34
(101,434)
Increase in inventories FEEM (20,908)
Increase in trade receivables U E 5 BR 5 N (16,312)

Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase in other payables and accruals

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

BNHE - Ze REMER
AL N

F’Eﬁféf%@fimi*bﬂ/ )
ﬁﬂfﬁ KR K AT B
0

e ka5 &858

(38,343)
6,871

55,277

32,348

Cash used in operations
PRC corporate income tax paid

RemmRE
ENPEEEMEHR

(82,501)
(2,221)

Net cash flow used in operating
activities

RELBMARERERE

(84,722)
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HK$'000
TR

(86,155)

4,632

11,770
(18,118)

281

26,212
7,795

1,847

(3,285)
3,281

41,062
(49,160)
8,225
(431)

(15,047)
(1,853)

(1,200)

(2,495)

(72,639)

(15,434)
(11,047)

(1,198)
(2,474)

9,808

1,303

(91,681)
(1,879)

(93,560)



Year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+F+=F=1—HI-FZF

Notes
Ff &
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RERPHBHREERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 24 8
Purchase of items of property, plant HBEWE KFEREHEEE
and equipment
Addition to prepaid land lease T8 4 4 FH & 1 0
payment
Additions to intangible assets REBLEE 17
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRE AR 35
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHLERE
investments
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BERZEEZ
plant and equipment 1FHIB
Consideration deposits received BEHREZS 28
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE — MM B A Al 34

Advances of loans to non-controlling
interests

Investments in associates

Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Advances of loans to third parties

Repayment of loans to third parties

Advances of loans to related parties

Increase in non-pledged time deposits
with original maturity of over three
months when acquired

Decrease in non-pledged time deposits
with original maturity of over three
months when acquired

Increase in pledged bank deposits

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Dividend received

Hong Kong profit tax paid on investing
activities

PRC corporate income tax paid on
investing activities

Repayment of loan to a director

Loan to a director

IS BN ER

REFERBZIRE

BEEZBBEEURTEIE
ZERMEE

HEZBBEZENUATFETE
ZEMEBEEZFABREA

AE=TBENER

WEE=77EK

7 B E 77 B B 3R

REEE RIS B ES =@
Az 8B E B F7E

REREE RIS B ES =@
A2 S8R ERFFOR D

B RTT 17 FE N
BEHEARITETORD
BBz BB
RRERHENZ2EENE

7
RREEHEN 2R BELE

Fris#i
WEETF-—2EEZERK
BY 28528

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing
activities

REBYHME/ (FFARE

mEF

IRBEEEEXEBERAR —Z—tF5R

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
TR

39,530

(151,263)

(200,878)
(645)
1,022,417

(105,164)

379

(6,763)

(3,821)
(310,822)

(109,992)

142,283
(72,383)
18,610
(83,374)

(423)

80,338

21,900
1,435

(2,361)

(69,198)
73,000

282,805

2016

HK$'000
TR

16,141

(105,479)

(541)
158,708

36,891
(76,605)

(64,342)

(64,683)

(73,014)

(21,900)

1,853

(133,800)

(321,653)

9T



Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=-H=1—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
Fft 5 FET FABT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEFHAERERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of shares for cancellation BB R IERE 31 (71,798) (39,855)
Capital contributions from non- EERBRREE
controlling shareholders 63,801 2,892
New bank loans HIBITER 115,330 113,276
New other borrowings H i fg® 4,152 —
Repayments of bank loans EBERTER (72,030) (49,156)
Interest paid 2 8 (4,148) (4,632)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEFHAERESREFHE 35,307 22,525

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReMBESEDEMN

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ORL ) % 58 233,390 (392,688)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#BE & KB SEEY

of year 218,028 621,790
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEFHTEFR

changes, net 19,757 (11,074)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESRREESSEYD

END OF YEAR 471,175 218,028
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReLReFEMERDT

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITES 128,901 121,543
Time deposits T B 17 3K 342,535 146,478
Principal protected structure deposits RAGEEETFXR — 30,183

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in A MBARALERIRZRE

the consolidated statement of RBSEEY

financial position 471,436 298,204
Non-pledged time deposits and RES R R B8 B R = (A

principal protected structure deposits Rz \ 80 E B E R R

with original maturity of over three REEHBMTER

months when acquired (80,176)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in AR ESRERFMIRZRE

the consolidated statement of cash LRBSEEY

flows 471,175 218,028
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
(the "Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands and its shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 26 April 2002. The registered address
of the Company is Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drives, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman, British West Indies.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were involved in the provision of
medical care, health care and geriatric care related services
and products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors, the major shareholder of the
Company is Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (“BPHL"),
which was incorporated in Bermuda, ultimately held by Beijing
Enterprises Group Company Limited and the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries and
structured entity are as follows:

Place of

AAREEHEHR
itTWEQF&JiF%%@EBE QR
ARRADARRAEREEMKRILZER

AR ERHBEZZEE_FOA -+
H ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁéx%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁj(fﬁﬁﬁ
R ER LT o AR R Z A A
Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drives, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand
Cayman, British West Indies °

FAARAREMBRAR (REIAE
BORPEARAMBE(HEDIRHES
B REMEERBRBLER -

EEZRR ARAIERRAILR

(T BOBER AR (T RER]) -t RE
RPN BRETMAL AL REREE

ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%\%?%ﬁ CEBR DB R AT E

R e

EEMELAT 2ER
RARZEZHE R R KA
BT

EBIEE R

incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

registration registered Percentage of equity
Name and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
AMEL/ EMRE ERTZER/ZR
L B g RPrEGER TEXH
Direct Indirect
B ik
United Win International British Virgin Ordinary US$100 100% —  Investment holding
Corporation (“United Win")® Islands/Hong Kong
EERABE/EE TRRI00ET REZER
T RBNEHEEZAERAE  PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital — 100%  Investment
(Beijing Zhong Cheng Hu RMB30,000,000 management
Lian Investment Advisory consulting
Co., Ltd.*)®*
thE /oA AMERARE BEREEEH
30,000,0007T
FEWEREERERLA PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
(TLBmE]) RMB20,000,000
(Shanghai Chongyuan
Investment Management RE L/ E A ARERAARE RERR
Company Limited*, 20,000,0007C
“Shanghai Chongyuan”)®
tEBERREXEEERAR ZZ—tFFR
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFF/Z

AAREHER ()
ERNEARZER (H)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

registration registered Percentage of equity
Name and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
AMEYL/ EMRE ERTZER/ZR
L B g ARFEAESR TEER
Direct Indirect
B ik
TRENTEEMBABREFAR PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital — 70%  Property investment
(T#3t]) (Beijing Dragon RMBY90,000,000
Ground Arts & Crafts Limited*,
"Dragon Ground")®A
hE /oA AMERARE NER
90,000,0007T
2ABEUER)EREERE PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital - 50.30%  Home-based
ARAF (Golden Sun RMB10,000,000 geriatric care
(Beijing) Service Co., Ltd.*)A
hE/REA HMERARE RREE
10,000,0007T
FEERHRRERAR PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital — 100%  Medical and related
([EB%R]) RMB30,000,000 property
(Shanghai Junbo Textile Co., Ltd., development
“Shanghai Junbo")®A
RE/REAM AMEAARE ERNEENEER
30,000,0007T
I REEEBRNRERD A PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital — 82.24%  Medical and related
(TEE]) RMB199,095,322 property
(Beijing Inland Port development
International Logistics
Co., Ltd.*, "Lugang")®
RE/RE A AMEAARE ERNEENEER
199,095,3227T
TRERREREERLA PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital — 60%  Trading geriatric
(Beijing Vissam Prosperity RMB50,000,000 care related
Furniture Limited*)®A furniture
HE L/ RE A AMERARE BEREZRA
50,000,0007T
TREERERABRAA PRC/ Mainland China  Registered capital — 60%  Trading geriatric

(Beijing Kangai Geriatric RMB20,000,000 care related
Furniture Co., Ltd.*)eA furniture
hE/mER EMEXARE EE&ZHA
20,000,0007T
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
registration registered
Name and business share capital
SR EZRRE BRTEER /R
% Eit 5 YN

1. AARKEES ()
AR E DD 2 EH ()

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company Principal activities

NG T FEEE
Direct Indirect
BEE H#%

BEABREAGREEERM  PRC/ Mainland China  Registered capital
BRAA(£AB]) (Fujian Fu RMB42,857,143
Ling Golden Sun Health and
Geriatric Company Limited?*,

"Golden Sun")®"

hE/hER AMERARE

42,857,1437C
TRRBHENRERA PRC/ Mainland China  Registered capital
(REBRR) RMB15,385,000

(Beijing Top-Doctors
Technology Company Limited*
"Top-Doctors”)®A

B/ BN EMEAARE

15,385,0007T
@ Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network
# Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law
A Registered as limited liability companies under PRC law
& Registered as a Sino-foreign joint venture under PRC law
* The English names of the above companies represent the best efforts

by management of the Company in directly translating the Chinese
names of these companies as no English names have been
registered or available.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

51%  Home-based
geriatric care

EREZ

65% On-line medical
services

BEBRRY

REBEARKKEL KRB ES —HER
GIE=22

REFBEAZEMAIEBELE
REPEEZZMASBERAF
REPBEEZEMATIGELE
MABWEX BB ARNREEEER
ARBNERFRAFAZHXELHEEERZ

BRI 5 5% 2 73 8 5 7 o 7T 8 10 B X
e

ERINHEERRIENEAKREARSF
ERXREREAREEFEEANFNZAR
AMEAR - EFRA - WM HE MK
BRAAZHBHEHERBRITE -

ERRRRFELEMARAR —F—LEEH
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Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=-H=+—HIFE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and contingent consideration payables, which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise

indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited

2.1

mRERE
ZERBBRRDORBEBELESIANAE
([BEGMAG])EMNBTENBR
SEA((FEMBREEND(EPTE
EMAEREMBREER BESTE
Al((EEEFEAD KRR BEQR
S RANRBERRGI 2 EERER
H-ZEUBRREBRBELHAAER
e ERATEFENRENE B
BEDSARFEIGZEBEERKA
ENRERIN - ZEMBRRAET
(TBTD2% MBEBEBIN - MA
BEHHBEREON T -

mEEE
REMBRREBARBRLENE R A
HE_Z—tF+_A=+—HIEFE
WP BHRR -HBRRARARNDAEER
RMEEHNER(EEEBILEER) - &
AEERZ2EREHROEBMAINKE
RESAEO®R YEENEBHRE
HemEN(AIETASE R ETERE
HREBEBNEENNBE RN FEZ
ZEEE - AIRBERIESIE -

MARRERAFARFEELREREHR
REBRELBLUENOER - XK
ERFEERTHEAHREYRNES
REEZE—MHBAFEREL 8

(a) HERAHREMREFBEANGL
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© AEENRRERBEREE-
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2.2

Notes to Financial Statements e B 7% sk ki

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Clarification of the Scope of
HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 12
included in Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
Disclosure has been made in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements upon the adoption of amendments to
HKAS 7, which require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
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—tF A=+ —HILFE

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)
HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts’

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®
Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property'

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS
28!

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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Notes to Financial Statements e B 7% sk ki

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below. Of those
standards, HKFRS 15 will be applicable for the Group's
financial year ending 31 December 2018 and is not expected
Whilst
management has performed a detailed assessment of the

to have a significant impact upon adoption.
estimated impacts of this standard, that assessment is based
on the information currently available to the Group. The
actual impacts upon adoption could be different to those
below, depending on additional reasonable and supportable
information being made available to the Group at the time of

applying the standard.

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016
that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction; the classification of a share-based
payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet an employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment; and
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify
that the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments also
The

amendments introduce an exception so that a share-based

applies to cash-settled share-based payments.

payment transaction with net share settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction when certain conditions are
met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms
and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction
from the date of the modification. On adoption, entities are
required to apply the amendments without restating prior

share-based payment transaction,

periods, but retrospective application is permitted if they elect
to adopt for all three amendments and other criteria are met.
The Group will adopt the amendments from 1 January 2018.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
of HKFRS 9. The standard
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment

versions introduces new
and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from
1 January 2018. The Group will not restate comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed assessment
of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected
impact related to the classification and measurement and the
impairment requirement are summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS

9 will have a significant impact on the classification and

measurement of its financial assets. It expects to
continue measuring at fair value all financial assets
currently held at fair value. Quoted equity shares
currently held as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss with gains and losses recorded in profit or
loss, which is same requirement of HKFRS 9. Therefore,

reclassification for these instrument is not required.

The equity shares in non-listed companies are intended
to be held for the foreseeable future. No impairment
losses were recognised in profit or loss during prior
periods for these investments. The Group will apply the
option to present fair value changes in other
comprehensive income, and, therefore, the application

of HKFRS 9 will not have a significant impact
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 23 EEMEMRERZEBYBREEL

REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Classification and measurement (Continued)
Loans as well as trade receivables are held to collect
contractual cash flows and are expected to give rise to
cash flows representing solely payments of principal and
interest. The Group analysed the contractual cash flow
characteristics of those instruments and concluded they
meet the criteria for amortised cost measurement under
HKFRS 9. Therefore, reclassification for these
instruments is not required.

(b) Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires the Group to record expected credit
losses on all of its debt securities, loans and trade
receivables, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The
Group will apply the simplified approach and record
lifetime expected losses on all trade and other
receivables. The Group does not expect that the
adoption of IFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
impairment assessment of its financial assets.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure

requirements, including

disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and
liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
Either
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of
the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments

to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on

a full retrospective application or a modified

identifying performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property,
and transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying
the standard. The Group plans to adopt the transitional
provisions in HKFRS 15 to recognise the cumulative effect of
initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group
plans to apply the new requirements only to contracts that are
not completed before 1 January 2018. The Group expects that
the transitional adjustment to be made on 1 January 2018
upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be material.
However, the expected changes in accounting policies, as
further explained below, will have a material impact on the
Group's financial statements from 2018 onwards. During 2017,
the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
The Group's principal activities consist of the sale of furniture

and the provision of medical care, health care and geriatric

care related services. The expected impacts arising from the

adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group are summarised as

follows:

(a)

Sale of furniture with installation services

The Group provides installation services for the sale of
furniture products. Currently, when installation services
are bundled together with the sale of furniture products,
revenue from the sale of furniture products is
recognised after the installation services are completed.
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, revenue from the sale
of furniture products will be recognised at a point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods. The
Group has assessed that the installation services
bundled together with the sale of furniture products are
not distinct and are not considered as separate
performance obligations under HKFRS 15, because
customers only accept goods at the point when goods
are delivered and installation is completed.

Base on the initial assessment, the Group did not
identify material differences between the transfer of
control and the current transfer of risk and rewards. As
such, the Group does not anticipate material difference
in the timing of revenue recognition for the sales of
products.

In preparing to adopt HKFRS 15, the Groups is
considering the following:

(i) Variable consideration
Some contracts with customers provide a deposit
for quality guarantee by 5% of the contract
amount. Currently, the Group recognises revenue
from the sale of goods measured at the fair value
of the considerations received or receivable, net of
returns and allowances and trade discounts. If
revenue cannot be reliably measured, the Group
defers revenue recognition until the uncertainty is
resolved. Such provisions give rise to variable

HKFRS 15,

required to be estimated at contract inception and

consideration under and will be

updated thereafter.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
(a) Sale of furniture with installation services (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Variable consideration (Continued)
HKFRS 15
consideration to be constrained to prevent over-

requires the estimated variable

recognition of revenue. The Group expects that
application of the constraint will not result in
changes of the amount of revenue recognition
under current HKFRS 15, as it estimates that
deposit for quality guarantee will be fully

receivable at the end of the guarantee period.

Warranty obligations
The Group generally provides for warranties for
general repairs of 3 to 5 years based on statutory
requirement and product feature, and does not
provide extended warranties in its contracts with
customers. As such, most existing warranties will
be assurance-type warranties under HKFRS 15,
which will continue to be accounted for under
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, consistent with its current
practice. However, in certain non-standard
contracts, the Group provides extended warranties
that are currently accounted for under HKAS 37.
Under HKFRS 15,

accounted for as service-type warranties and,

such warranties will be

therefore, will be accounted for as separate
performance obligations to which the Group
allocates a portion of the transaction price. When
the Group adopts HKFRS 15 in 2018, the following
adjustments are expected for 2017: the revenue
that should be allocated to the sale of service-
type warranties (HK$227,000) will be deferred and
presented as the non-current portion of contract
liabilities of HK$227,000. Since the Group did not
have any unfulfilled extended warranties related to
the year prior to 2017, retained earnings as at 31
December 2017 will decrease by HK$227,000.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Rendering of services

The Group provides medical care, health care and
geriatric care related services. These services are sold
on their own contracts with customers. The Group
recognises service revenue by reference to the stage
of completion. The Group concluded that the services
are satisfied over time given that the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group. Consequently, under HKFRS 15,
the Group would continue to recognise revenue for these
service contracts over time rather than at a point of time.

Advances received from customers

Generally, the Group receives only short-term advances
from its customers. They are presented as part of other
payables and accruals.

Under HKFRS 15, the Group must determine whether
there is a significant financing component in its
contracts. However, the Group decided to use the
practical expedient provided in HKFRS 15, and will not
adjust the promised amount of the consideration for the
effects of a significant financing components in the
contracts, where the Group expects, at contract
inception, that the period between the Group transfer of
a promised good to a customer and when the customer
pays for that good will be one year or less. Therefore,
for short-term advances, the Group will not account for
a financing component even if it is significant.

Based on the nature of the goods and services offered
and the purpose of payment terms, the Group
determined that none of the contracts that require
customers to pay long-term advances, i.e. advances are
generally required from new customers, as well as
customers with a history of late payments, they do not
provide customers with an alternative to pay in arrears.
In addition, the length of time between when the
customer pays for the goods and the Group transfers
goods to the customer is relatively short. Therefore, the
Group has concluded that there is not a significant
financing component in these contracts.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Presentation and disclosure

The presentation and disclosure requirements in HKFRS
15 are more detailed than those under the current
HKAS 18. The presentation requirements represent a
significant change from current practice and will
significantly increase the volume of disclosures required
in the Group's financial statements. Many of the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15 are new and the
Group has assessed that the impact of some of these
disclosure requirements will be significant. In particular,
the Group expects that the notes to the consolidated
financial statements will be expanded because of the
disclosure of significant judgements made on
determining the transaction prices of those contracts
that include variable consideration, how the transaction
prices have been allocated to the performance
obligations, and the assumptions made to estimate the
stand-alone selling price of each performance
obligation. In addition, as required by HKFRS 15, the
Group will disaggregate revenue recognised from
contracts with customers into categories that depict how
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows are affected by economic factors. It will
also disclose information about the relationship between
the disclosure of disaggregated revenue and revenue
information disclosed for each reportable segment. In
2017 the Group continued testing of appropriate
systems, internal controls, policies and procedures
necessary to collect and disclose and required
information.

Other adjustments
In addition to the major adjustments described above,
on adoption of HKFRS 15, other items of the primary
financial statements such as deferred taxes, investments
in associate, and share of profit of an associate, will be
affected and adjusted as necessary. Furthermore,
exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations would also be adjusted. The recognition and
in HKFRS

applicable for recognition and measurement of any gains

measurement requirements 15 are also
or losses on disposal of non-financial assets (such as
items of property and equipment and intangible assets),
when that disposal is not in the ordinary course of
business. However, on transition, the effect of these

changes is not expected to be material for the Group.
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23 CEMEERERZEBUBERSEEL

(%)
(d)

(e)

2 REE
BEMBRESERNE ISR 225 %
BERERAITEL ST ERNE18
HRETEHEERHE - 2JIRERE
RITEPIGEERED LHEK
18 38 N A 5% B B TS ¥R R P TR RO R BR
RE - BEMBREENEISHRZ
RO BEEREHR/FIE - BAE
BEFEHIZERBEREZTE
KEBEKXK - LER A&EEEH
HRAEEZSEESIERENE
R ZER A D ER S ER
ERHEEELERAE - B3t
ARERNAEEZEBEEELR
ROBEAUBRRMEIH SR
Ko ledh  BRE B B RS ER
FISRZRE  AREEKERF
B HFERBHI YA 7 5 2 1 5k WA B
HE - 28 RERTEEEAR
ReRnEWNNXAREERRZE L
Bh o R IRER MR E BN
ANEREATE2HRD BREZWRAE
BZEOBERNER R —+
F o AEEFESAUE RIE S
ZERMENARBERS  AME
2 BENMEF -

Hitb @&
Bk bat = ZFHES - RERATER
s LR E155RA - Hfh =20

BHMERER QEERIE - B2 R
ARERDIE— B ERBEN)
REXATEYRFEEAE -5
Sh - BMEGINER 2 I E RIS
EHE -EAMHLELIFAEATE
BRRETETE FEVBEREE
RIZE155% 2 iR R AR E ER
RERARFERLEFSHEE
(Y ERRBEBARETEE)
ZEMKEHERE) - AT KB
B REEPUAEE Y ER
Mg TEEK-



2.3

Notes to Financial Statements e 817 2k K H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
elective recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset
is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-
use asset meets the definition of investment property in HKAS
40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to
which the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-
use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change
in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires
lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard
using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1
January 2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16 upon adoption. and is considering whether it will
choose to take advantage of the practical expedients available
and which transition approach and reliefs will be adopted. As
disclosed in note 39(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, at 31 December 2017, the Group had future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in aggregate of approximately HK$5,732,000. Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may
need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to
determine the amount of new rights of use assets and lease
liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited to, any
amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short term
leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new
leases entered into before the date of adoption.
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Notes to Financial Statements e 817 2k ki H

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=-H=+—HIFE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 issued in January 2018 clarify that
the scope exclusion of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity method is
applied and does not include long-term interests that in
substance form part of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture, to which the equity method has not been
applied. Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than
HKAS 28, including the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests. HKAS 28
is then applied to the net investment, which includes the
long-term interests, only in the context of recognising losses
of an associate or joint venture and impairment of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments on 1 January 2019 and will
assess its business model for such long-term interests based
on the facts and circumstances that exist on 1 January 2019
using the transitional requirements in the amendments. The
Group also intends to apply the relief from restating
comparative information for prior periods upon adoption of
the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify when an
entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into or out of investment
property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs
when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in
use. A mere change in management'’s intentions for the use of
a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments should be applied prospectively to the changes
in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendments. An entity should reassess the classification of
property held at the date that it first applies the amendments
and, if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the conditions
that exist at that date. Retrospective application is only
permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2018. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements e 817 2k K H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance on
how to determine the date of the transaction when applying
HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives or pays
advance consideration in a foreign currency and recognises a
non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies that
the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which
an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a
prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance of recognising the related item, the entity must
determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
Entities
interpretation on a full retrospective basis or on a prospective

the advance consideration. may apply the
basis, either from the beginning of the reporting period in
which the entity first applies the interpretation or the
beginning of the prior reporting period presented as
comparative information in the financial statements of the
reporting period in which the entity first applies the
interpretation. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, in July 2017,
accounting for income taxes (current and deferred) when tax

issued addresses the
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of
HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The
interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of HKAS 12,
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with

nor does it specifically include

uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically
addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax
treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax
losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
The is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of

circumstances. interpretation
hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening equity at the
date of initial application, without the restatement of
comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 January 2019. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=H=+—HIFE

2.3

ERMAERERERZE BB RS EA
(%)

2R (BRYBRELENREZRS)—
REEDFNR_Z—+FAEHB B
BB ME WA S TR B KRR
FERMEEXRBNBRT  ER®A
BB EAFE2NRE - B EE R
S BHRMtES - ZRBEBAEER
VIR FERAMEE - XA (E—
M) 2R Z B A EBVIATERE LB
XNRRMBNREZIFEEEE (WA
NHRB)HFEEEEWETERA)E
BN EREMERNTFESANK
WK A ERBABESEBNKE
NRFEAR 2R ZHEH - BEARTE
EPELEXAPELE B ERERER
REZHEHPFAAAERTRERAR
BzHRESHENHBRRATELRE
EMZ2I A —REMRAKBERRAR
B-AEERPHEE T -NF—F—
BEMPRANZ2RE - ZFETEEE
TEUAEE 2 M BRFENERNTE -

2R (BRYBRELENREBZRES)—
REERRNR_Z—+F+AEMH &
BENBRESRYERBELEGE
AB12R 2 P HEEMCBE BT HEED
BRRDE - HAEH(EHMRET) 2
B RE ZRBYTNEAREESS
ERNF12REBIAI 2 HIBREE - 75
TEARBEEHENSRTHERERE
ERBEINRE 2 BARKRENE
BEAIHER I HERBERE  (1E
BRAMBHRARENBREEFLOR
& (iii) B 78 4 fa] BB RE 8 AR A5 ik A S AR 7%
BE - HE RAPAREER  KBAH
BERERE: MvVERBNEEEEE
RERZBE ZRBDEWPER A
TREPMELENHER ZAIEHRM
ERZAFZENERYMRERE R
ZHONESEFELAE MILEEHAE
HREN -AEBBEHHFE T NF
—A-RAERMAZRE ZFEFEY
BAEUAEE 2 BHBREKERFNE

=
N2

tEBREEFEXSERERAR

109



110

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=-H=+—HIFE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Insurance Contracts

In January 2018, the HKICPA issued HKFRS 17 /nsurance
Contracts, a comprehensive new accounting standard for
insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure. Once effective, HKFRS 17 will
replace the existing HKFRS 4 /nsurance Contracts. The
standard applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life,
non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the
type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain
guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary
participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply. The
overall objective of the standard is to provide an accounting
model for insurance contracts that is more useful and
consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in
HKFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous
local accounting policies, the standard provides a
comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all
relevant accounting aspects. The core of the standard is the
general model, supplemented by:

o a specific adaptation for contracts with direct
participation features (the variable fee approach)

o a simplified approach (the premium allocation approach)
mainly for short-duration contracts.

HKFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021. Early application is permitted, provided
the entity also applies HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 on or before
the date it first applies HKFRS 17. The standard is not
expected to have any impact on the Group.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle issued in
March 2017, sets out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28. Except for the amendments to HKFRS 12 which
have been adopted by the Group for the current year's
financial statements, the Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2018. None of the amendments
are expected to have a significant financial impact on the
Group. Details of the amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28
are as follows:

o HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards: Deletes the short-term exemptions
for first-time adopters because the reliefs provided in
the exemptions are no longer applicable.

o HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures:
Clarifies that an entity that is a venture capital
organisation, or other qualifying entity, may elect, at
initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis,
to measure its investments in associates and joint
ventures at fair value through profit or loss. If an entity
that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in
an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity,
the entity may elect to retain the fair value
measurement applied by that investment entity associate
or joint venture to the investment entity associate’s or
joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries when applying
the equity method. This election is made separately for
each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the
later of the date on which (i) the investment entity
associate or joint venture is initially recognised; (ii) the
associate or joint venture becomes an investment entity;
and (iii) the investment entity associate or joint venture
first becomes a parent. These amendments should be
applied retrospectively.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 23 CEMEERERZEBUBERSEEL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) (&)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, issued in [BEENBREEAN —FE—AFZ-F
February 2018, sets out amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, —EFHRFENE R E— N\F=
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23. The Group expects to adopt the R - &85 8 E B KRG EA
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are expected to have a significant financial impact on the 2RI E125% R B B g 5T 4RI 235
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Group. Details of the amendments are as follows:

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that, when an
entity obtains control of a business that is a joint
operation, it must apply the requirements for a business
combination achieved in stages and remeasure its entire
previously held interest in the joint operation at fair
value.

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Clarifies that when an
entity that participates in, but does not have joint
control of a joint operation, obtains joint control over
that joint operation that is a business, it does not
remeasure the interest it previously held in that joint
operation.

HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes: Clarifies that an entity recognises
all income tax consequences of dividends in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or equity, depending
on where the entity recognised the originating
transaction or event that generated the distributable
profits giving rise to the dividend.

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs: Clarifies that an entity treats
as part of general borrowings any specific borrowing
originally made to develop a qualifying asset, and that is
still outstanding, when substantially all of the activities
necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or
sales are complete.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
the
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,

remeasured. Instead, investment continues to be
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is

recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4

TEEHREME

RBERT 2RE
BEAREARERAEEAHKTD
0%WARZEARHEITEEATZE
NZEE - -BARENENRZ2ERE
HBRZMBREERRZES - BXIF
EHlS KRR ZERRZAEN -

X

AEERBERRZRERBERD S
FERANEBREFEEREFBERREX
NERA MR R IR -

MWESTBRREFEEMNS -2 BEE
HARFE T o

AEBRFEAERREMEEE S H
SPAEDIEBE AR NG & QR WER

EER MR E R - U M E R
RYEARZENELDE  IAEE

RIEFEREEHRBEREER CEEE
HoAEEERBERRZIRHGELLZ
AERBEBESYHE HHSBEUARE
HBERERRIZRERR BRIFERERE
BREERWMEREELBRRE - KB
ERAIEEZABERMARNEE N

BRAREZ D °

HWREBERARNREZERNELERAN
REFXHLERRBER ATSEHFE
REER Rz ZRELEBERBEESR
AAR-ERARMBRT  BBER
AREEATENR AEERERTF
EfEREREAREBERE -NKEE
FEHNRAREHREEQBNER
EERBRERKRBBEMBTREAEZA
FEZENZENBERANER -

ARBERR ZREDBERFIERFE -
ARBEEM B REERESRFIELE
ZHERBDEERCKRIEREEBAK -

tEBREREXEEERAR

113



114

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=-H=+—HIFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in
the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements e B 7% sk ki

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
Goodwill
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in

accumulated impairment losses. is tested for
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group

are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable
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Notes to Financial Statements e B 7% sk ki

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest

whether transfers have occurred between levels
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets and investment properties), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
the
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss

decreased. If such an indication exists, recoverable
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or

loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to Financial Statements e B 7% sk ki

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its

residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of lease term
and their estimated useful lives
ranging from 20 to 50 years

20% to 33'/3%

20% to 33'/3%

20%

20% to 33'/3%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Computer equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

depreciation method are reviewed,

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)
Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between
the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
Such
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an

generating unit level. intangible assets are not
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to

finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Brand name

Brand name acquired as part of a business combination is
valued at fair value based on the royalty relief method. Brand
name with indefinite useful life is tested for impairment
annually.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 10 years.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date
when the products are put into commercial production.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

2.4

FTEEHHREMRE (F)

HE

RNEEHAENERNE D EHEERD

%ﬁﬁA%ﬁmﬁ A EEER
MAEERHBAA  AKERE

Mﬁ AN BEEDF A ERDEE
MEERENEKES AT REEES
WEt AR e MAKE AAHEA - AIE

SHEENEMNES (EMERa HEAKE

R 2B R) A EAVEEE AR B IEE

ER -

BB E RN IER L AE 2 ¥ F R AT
R HEAEBEHANEREER -

RERHEMEREE

WL ERR B
EREERNSHEARDORRERE
BARFEIGZEREE ERRE
WHRBEARAHEESRBREXDER
R—EBERHREERE P TAZITE
TEA(ER) SREENTFERE
BAVEAE ZNRBEHSREE

BIENRZHA  HEBERBBHRRATE
5By & B & B B 5 1B Bl AR o

MEEHEENEREEMNRZ S A (B
AEEAXBERHEZEENA ) #E
R-EHEERERTSRELEN —R
RENHRARNEENSREEER -

R E
SRMABZRBRHBERRRAT AR



2.4

Notes to Financial Statements e B 7% sk ki

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading

if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive
net changes in fair value presented as other income and gains
and negative net changes in fair value presented as finance
costs in profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
After initial
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

active market. measurement, such assets are
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in
administrative expenses for receivables.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss in other
gains and losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a "pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
difficulty,
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a

experiencing significant financial default or

enter bankruptcy or other financial
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to administrative expenses

in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or
loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Group’s own equity instruments.
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Notes to Financial Statements e B 7% sk ki

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=H=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise construction costs,
borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly
attributable to
development period.

such properties incurred during the

Properties under development which have been pre-sold or
intended for sale and are expected to be completed within
one year from the end of the reporting period are classified
under current assets. On completion, the properties are
transferred to properties held for sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4

—tF = A=1—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted
to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
in other

recognised outside profit or loss, either

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

liabilities are

Deferred tax recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements e B 7% sk ki

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

business combination and,

taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

—tF A=+ —HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.
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Notes to Financial Statements e B 7% sk ki

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(b)  from the rendering of services, when the services are
rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial assets; and

(e)  dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company operates several share option schemes and a
share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Employees (including
directors) and consultants of the Group receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees and
consultants render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model for share options and based on
the market value for share award. Further details of the fair
values of share options and awarded shares granted are given
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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2.4

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in equity-
settled share-based payment expenses together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.
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Notes to Financial Statements e B 7% sk ki

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Shares held for share award scheme

As disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, pursuant to a trust deed dated 11 September
2015 made between the Company and a trustee (the “Trust
Deed”), a trust has been established for the share award
scheme, where the trustee purchases and holds shares issued
by the Group for the benefits of the grantees in accordance
with the rules of the share award scheme and the terms and
conditions of the Trust Deed. The consideration paid by
Company, including any directly attributable incremental costs,
is presented as “Shares held for the share award scheme” and
deducted from the Group's equity.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes

retirement benefit scheme (the

Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
This subsidiary is required to contribute certain percentages
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a weighted average
rate of 4.95% has been applied to the
expenditure on the group level.

capitalisation

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements e B 7% sk ki

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends.

immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currency of certain subsidiaries and associates
operating in Mainland China is the currency other than the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for
the year.

Year ended 31 December 2017 EZ—=ZF
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of subsidiaries operating in Mainland China which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rate for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out

on operating leases.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2017
was HK$212,874,000 (2016: HK$265,659,000). Further details are
given in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=-H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@)  current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to
reflect those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(c)  discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31
December 2017 was HK$381,625,000 (2016: HK$356,498,000).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement, are given in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Estimation of contingent consideration payables

Part of purchase considerations of acquisitions of the Group
were regarded as contingent consideration payables and
recognised as financial liabilities at fair value and remeasured
at the end of the reporting period. Determination of fair value
requires management’s judgement and estimates and is based
on assumptions. The carrying amount of contingent
consideration payables at 31 December 2017 was
HK$11,950,000 (2016: HK17,619,000). Further details, including
the key assumptions used for fair value measurement, are
given in notes 34 and 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The amount of unrecognised
tax losses at 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$277,195,000 (2016: HK$315,579,000). Further details are
contained in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the
fair value declines, management makes assumptions about the
decline in value to determine whether there is an impairment
that should be recognised in profit or loss. At 31 December
2017, no impairment losses have been recognised for available-
for-sale assets (2016: Nil). The carrying amount of available-for-
sale assets was HK$46,151,000 (2016: HK$11,295,000).

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Further details, including a sensitivity analysis of key
assumptions, are given in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=-H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Recognition of share-based compensation costs

The Company and some of its subsidiaries adopted their own
share award schemes and/or share option schemes. The fair
values of the awarded shares and options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2017 were valued by external valuers
based on valuation model. The valuation requires the Group
to make estimates about the expected future cash flows,
credit risk, volatility and discount rates, and hence it is subject
to uncertainty. There was no awarded share and option
granted during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$48,173,000). The share-based compensation costs
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2017 was
HK$17,758,000 (2016: HK$41,062,000).

The grant of awarded shares and share options is conditional
upon the satisfaction of specified vesting conditions, including
the service period. Judgment is required to take into account
the vesting conditions and adjust the number of awarded
shares and share options included in the measurement of
share-based compensation costs.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has one single operating
and reportable segment, which is the provision of medical
care , health care and geriatric care related services and
products. All of the Group’s operating results are generated
from this single segment. During the year, the Group’s non-
current assets were substantially located in Mainland China.

Revenue of approximately HK$45,975,000 (2016: HK$46,043,000)
was derived from sales of goods to a single customer, including
sales to a group of entities which are known to be under
common control with that customer.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts; and the value of
services rendered during the year.
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WA~ H At A R W 55 R 2R (AR
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET (Continued) 5.
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net are as

follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B = FET FA& T
Revenue B A
Sales of goods HEEMm 115,843 154,767
Rendering of services RERS 14,782 9,089
130,625 163,856
Other income Hft A
Bank interest income |ITH E WA 4,644
Other interest income H b F) B UL A 13,474
Gross rental income He W ALz 16,122
Dividend income i&% B U A 1,853
Sundry income MIEA 2,983
39,076
Gains/(losses) W= (ER)
Fair value gains on financial assets at #EBEZUAFEFEZ
fair value through profit or loss TREEZ A FERR 1,169 49,160
Fair value (losses)/gains on KEMEZ AFESE)
investment properties, net W R 14 (11,792) 3,285
Fair value (losses)/gains on financial cRmaedEzAFEGERE)
liabilities, net S WEs g 34 (3,747) 13,677
Gains/(losses) on disposal of HEHB AR Z kS
subsidiaries (E518) 35 576,121 (8,225)
Loss on disposal of items of HEME  HERREE
property, plant and equipment B &8 (67) (1,847)
Gain on remeasurement of the EHTER —EBE R A
previously existing interest in an JR PR FE AR R 2 5
associate 2,495
Gain on deemed disposal of a partial ~ R{EH &KX — = QA
interest in an associate B w2 W E ) 431
Foreign exchange differences, net MEH ZRFHE 8,834 —
570,518 58,976
629,054 98,052
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6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

BRBLATE R
AEBEZBRBITEHN, (BB 2Nk,
GTA) TR E:

Cost of inventories sold

Cost of services provided

Depreciation

Amortisation of other intangible
assets

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases

Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments

Less: Amount capitalised

EEFERAR

1R f AR 75 B AR

wE

HiEY EESH
BEMERTREMEE
3%

FE A £ b 7H & 8 85

D= N (g

Auditor’s remuneration
Employee benefit expense (excluding
directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration (note 8)):
Wages and salaries
Equity-settled share-based
payment expense
Pension scheme contributions

(defined contribution scheme)*

% S Em B
BERANFA(TEE
EERTIBETRAR
B2 (KfaEs)) :
TERYE
P 4 4 B AR
RERNRAX
RRE R BIHR
CERH A& *

Equity-settled share-based payment
expense for consultancy services

Foreign exchange differences, net

Impairment of other receivables**

FRBERARENRESE
VAR 17 7 B BE A 305 =2
[ ERFR

H At JE W R ERUE

2017 2016
—g—t® ZF-AE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
O FH T
76,306 114,819
6,752 6,314
13 10,305 7,795
902 281
8,225 7,745
15 29,710 39,192
(12,594) (12,980)
17,116 26,212
1,500 1,450
59,873 33,868
2,259 3,684
4,911 3,791
67,043 41,343
12,778
9,819
3,281

* At 31 December 2017, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to the pension scheme in future

years (2016: Nil).

*%

This item is included in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. b & A
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEXADHAT :
2017 2016
—E—tF —ET-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Interest on bank and other borrowings 1T R E & 5K 2 5 & 11,408 6,122
Less: Interest capitalised B BRI B (7,045) (1,490)
4,363 4,632
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION 8. ESBSRIETBAEMS
Directors’ and the chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RERBZEERFETBRAEZHMEIR
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of BEAMERIMERAAES ETH
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the Bl (T EmR A - &7 2 A& HI28383(1)
“Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong (@) (o) * O &MIE  ARARI(FBEEZES
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies Mz E R RO F25 BT -

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

2017 2016

—E—t & —E—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH& T FET

Fees e 1,788

Other emoluments: HE <

Salaries, allowances and Fe RUBREMER

benefits in kind 5,899 3,924

Performance related bonuses KIBHEBEA 8,970 4,527

Equity-settled share option expense MR E R 13,410 24,600

Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEI R 322 217

28,601 33,268

30,921 35,056
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION
(Continued)

In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which has been recognised in profit or
loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive's remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

2017 =
Independent non-executive directors: BIFHITESE:
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou RERSTE
Mr. Wu Yong Xin ROoKE &
Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith B

Mr. Gary Zhao® i W 5 A
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp® FRAL 25 W

2016 —E-RE

Independent non-executive directors: BYFHITES:

EERIBTBRAEHE (&)

BEFE ETEEREBEAQRBRE
FHEIERTRBRE RESRERBEA
SE E-FLHBENGAHBRERM
AR ZEBREZATFENEERE
BRER) DRXE RHETE - My BR
RAENAFESBEIALREERE
ETTBRABME 2 3 EE -

(a) BYUKUTES
ENRBIENTEELN 208
mT

Equity-settled
share-based

payment Total
Fees expense  remuneration
REEE
BURR 43 2 B 1
une MR B & 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou RERBTE 132 282 414
Mr. Wu Yong Xin ROoKE & 132 533 665
Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith H L E 132 533 665
Mr. Xie Ming® i B o A0 22 — 22
Mr. Gary Zhao' i W 5 A 110 — 110

528 1,348 1,876
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION 8. EERTETHRAEMS (E)
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director and (b) HTEER—BIAHITESURE
the chief executive ETHBAER
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances  Performance  share-based Pension
and benefits related payment scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
REEH
EE A 1.1 NRGRER BREE
ik RENEHN RBEEBEAL LELFa #X Hemst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TER TERT TER
2017 —E-tf§
Executive directors: UTES:
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing MERLAE
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BEBAE
Mr. Liu Xue Heng feEEE
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong HEELE
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun TERESE
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming RERAKE
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi B
Mr. Qian Xu'® S8 S £
Mr. Siu Kin Wai® Bepren
Mr. Hu Yebi® HHZEED
8,970 12,166 28,857
2016 —ZE-RE
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing RirEEE 180 1,558 1,352 3920 181 7,191
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BEREE 144 1,170 1,352 3,920 18 6,604
Mr. Liu Xue Heng BBiE5k L 144 1,19 1352 3,920 18 6,630
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong MEBELE 144 — — 1,960 — 2,104
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun TIEERAE 144 — — 3,920 — 4,064
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming REAEE 180 — — 2,665 — 2,845
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi MBS 144 — 4 2,038 - 2,653
1,080 3924 4,527 22,343 217 32,091
Non-executive director: FHRTES:
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp REEEE 180 — — 909 — 1,089
180 — — 909 — 1,089
1,260 3924 4,527 23,252 217 33,180
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director and
the chief executive (Continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

Notes:

(i) Appointed on 18 August 2014 and resigned on 29 February 2016

(i) Appointed on 29 February 2016
(iii) Appointed on 22 May 2017

(iv) Re-designated from a non-executive director to an independent non-
executive director on 22 May 2017

s FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included four
directors (2016: five directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2017 of the remaining one
highest paid employee (2016: None) who is neither a director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

EERIETBRAEME (B)

(b) BOTESBER—BHHUTEBURE
ETBAE (&)

FALEEERTBETHRABRRERMA

EREEAME 28 -

(i) R-ZB-—NENATN\BEZEEAR_-_F
—A~NEFEZAZThBETE

(i) R-E—RNE_A-+HLBEZFE
i) RZFT—tFRA-T-HEZH

vy RZE—tFAA-+=RAR—RBIEHNT
EEEHRER—BBILFRTES

Efus&mHES
FALEERHEERENAES(ZF
—RF RBREF) REMSZFRH
REXKHFS - BET—+F+=A
=t BLFEHRT—EE=SFHEE (=
F-RNF B (LFARRIEFHEER
THRAB)ZMEHBOT

2017 2016
—E—+tHF AN S
HK$’'000 HK$'000
T T T T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & 2B K EWEF

Performance related bonuses FIMEEIEA —
Equity-settled share-based payment AR R4S B DARR 19 70 B HE T 3R 32

expense —
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEHR —

The remuneration of the non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employee fell within the band of HK$2,000,001 to
HK$2,500,000 (2016: Nil).
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

In prior year, share options were granted to a non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employee in respect of
his services to the Group, further details of which are included
in the disclosures in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the prior year is included in the
above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employee’s remuneration disclosures.

INCOME TAX

10.

EfusEHES (F)

RBEFE —BHEFR—HRFTE
THRAESESHEERERAAEEIREH
ZRGER B E £ — P FBHRE
EMBERRMERZEET -CREE
HAEBRTHABAZZEBREZQF
BENDREHAMET Mt AHEBE
FEMBRRZEBIHAALXEEZ
—RAHEERBIFETETBRABRERS
HEEME -

Current — PRC corporate income tax BVER —rp B b R PR
("CIT") (T ¥mMBHRD
Deferred (note 30) i AE (P 5E30)

B

FEMARAER

Total tax charge for the year

18 8
2017 2016
S5

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHR THRT

170,463 4,159

(5,165) (2,306)

165,298 1,853

Hong Kong profits tax

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no Hong Kong
profits tax had been provided as there were no assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2016: Nil).

CIT

Under the PRC income tax laws, PRC enterprises are subject
to corporate income tax at a rate of 25% except for certain
PRC subsidiaries which are entitled to a preferential tax rate
at 10%.

BEHBFEB
REBEE-_F—tF+-_A=1t—HLHF
B ARFALERBEEELEETMER
Mo A - B R L B RS A B R
(ZF—RF 8|

R FT 18 Bt

RETEMAEHE BRETHTENRER
A A IZ10% 2 @B ERHBIN - ©XRAR
MRS HEEMER -
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFF/Z

10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10.
CIT (Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss)
before tax at the statutory rates for jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax credit at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of
the applicable rates to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

FriEH (&)

REMREHR (&)
RAARREREKEDHE R B EMF
EREZEERXRFEZBRBATRF,
(BR)ER 2 HAR X BRERH R
BEZHRBEER2HE  ARERRRE
ERBEZHEMAT

2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FET FH&T
Profit/(loss) before tax BREADEF S (EE) (86,155)
Tax at the statutory tax rates JATEHRTH 2
BiE 106,334 (20,930) 24.3
Lower tax rate enacted by A M R AR A
local authority BRF =X (59) 8 —
Profits and losses attributable & QR E(L 2
to associates i A & B E 740 2,095 (2.4)
Expenses not deductible for N RIHIF Z f %
tax 88,444 15,562 (18.1)
Income not subject to tax BARBR 2 B/A (22,292) (11,536) 13.4
Tax losses utilised from BAMEzEEA
previous periods MIEE R (25,891) (136) 0.2
Tax losses not recognised RAERTRIEEE 18,022 16,790 (19.5)
Tax charged at the Group's ZAEBEERHEX
effective rate FFEMBIIE 1,853 (2.2)

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
HK$2,089,000 (2016: HK$325,000) is included in “Share of
profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

11. DIVIDEND 11.
The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12.

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is

based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity

holders of the parent of HK$213,675,000 (2016: loss of
HK$68,015,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary

shares of 6,156,890,538 (2016: 6,237,710,008) in issue during the

year.
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B & N B b 2 B IE ££2,089,0007%8 7 (=
T — /54 1 325,000 70) B B IERARE B
mhEMEAKERZ [EHEE QR

MRERIER -

R 2
%%iTEmﬁvﬁki —tF+=-A
=+t—BLEFECT /\i-?ﬂi\)/ﬂiﬁ
BB e

BAREEREZSEAEGER (&
B)

BREABF SEIZT AR L BBRER
B ARG F % F213,6750008 T (=&
— 7N 4 ¢ 5 868,015,000 TT) A K AN
[EE TN E AR ER B 6,156,890,538
B (=T — 754 : 6,237,710,0080%) 5T & o
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12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

12.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold

Buildings improvements
BT HENXZEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR

31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016 and
1 January 2017:

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment

KAE
ZiFTERRE

64,835 16,623

(4,032) (5,233)

Net carrying amount

REFE 60,803 11,390

At 1 January 2017,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
impairment

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation provided
during the year (note 6)

Disposal of a subsidiary
(note 35)

Transfers

Transfer to property under
development (note 21)

Exchange realignment

RZZ—+&F
—A—A Nk
ST ERAE

NE

HE

FRTERE
GED)

HENELR
(FF#E35)

EE

BRZEERNE
(H5E21)

5%

At 31 December 2017,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
impairment

RZZ—tF
+-A=+-8"
Nk RHTER
i

61,786 13,825

At 31 December 2017:

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment

RZZ—t#
TZA=T-R:

KAE

ZIHERAE

23,239

(9.414)

Net carrying amount

EEFE 13,825

13.

Furniture
and fixtures
BRREE
HK$'000
TERT

BAREERERFEARGRA (B
B) (&)

HE-_ZT—+t&Fk=_ZE—X~"F+=A
=+—HLEFE AEEHEEHTH
BEBBSERN LT AR -

ME - BERRE
Computer Motor  Construction
equipment vehicles in progress Total
ElERE AE EEIR Ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TET

10,718 156,044 253,428

(7,584) (17,613)

3,134 156,044 235,815

156,044 235,815
136,899 149,799
— (446)

(10,305)

(133,984) (137,753)
(1,902) —

(163,104)
7,418

(163,104)
12,681

86,687

114,609

(27,922)

86,687

IERERRFEEXSEERAR —2—tFFH
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFF/Z

154

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. ¥ME -BERRZE(E)
Leasehold Furniture Computer Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  and fixtures equipment vehicles in progress Total
BF HEWERE HGAREE ERRE "E EEIR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT THET AT TR THET AT
31 December 2016 A _%f NE
toA=f-
At 31 December 2015and  RZZE—HF
1 January 2016: TZA=+t-BR
“E-RF
—A—8:
Cost BAE 82,001 8,539 817 8,518 1,501 7,263 108,639
Accumulated ZEMERFE
depreciation and
impairment (1,410 (2,442) 3) (7,331) (163) — (11,349)
Net carrying amount REEE 80,591 6,097 814 1,187 1,338 7,263 97,290
At 1 January 2016, N3
net of accumulated —A—R Nk
depreciation and ZHFERRE
impairment 80,591 6,097 814 1,187 1,338 7,263 97,290
Additions RE 270 7,729 1,181 2,100 989 149,242 161,511
Acquisition of subsidiaries W& Ki B A
(note 34) (B 5E34) 1,047 2,939 309 1,237 759 63 6,354
Write-off s - (1,847) — — - — (1,847)
Depreciation provided FNFTEEE
during the year (note 6) (Ff %6) (2,832) (3,467) (208) (859) (429) — (7,795)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR
(note 3) (P £35) - — - (484) — (59) (543)
Surplus on revaluation Bt R 12,141 — — — — — 12,141
Transfers to investment BRERENX
properties (note 14) (Fiz14) (25,824) — (25,824)
Exchange realignment EHAE (4,590) (61) (57) (47) (252) (465) (5,472)
At 31 December 2016, net M- Z—XRF
of accumulated tZA=+-8"
depreciation and Nk RETER
impairment RE 60,803 11,390 2,039 3,134 2,405 156,044 235,815
At 31 December 2016: —E-RE
+ A=+-8:
Cost KAE 64,835 16,623 2,241 10,718 2,967 156,044 253,428
Accumulated ZHTERRE
depreciation and
impairment (4,032) (5,233) (202) (7,584) (562) — (17,613)
Net carrying amount FEFE 60,803 11,390 2,039 3,134 2,405 156,044 235,815
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, one of the Group's buildings with a net
carrying amount of HK$62,940,000 (2016: Nil) was pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
29).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13.

14.

Notes

W

R—R—RAZEKREE
=

Carrying amount at 1 January
Additions
Net (loss)/gain from a fair value

adjustment Yz
Transfer from owner-occupied ERaERAYmE

property

Exchange realignment fE & A%

NTERABRF(BHR)

RTZA=+—B2
IR E

Carrying amount at 31 December

ME BERREGE)
R-ZZTE—+F+-_HA=+—H K&EH
BR T )% E A62,940,000% 7T (= & — X
Fom) 7 HEP—EEFERBEEART
ANEBE—RIBITRE 2 R (BHEE29) -

REYE

2017 2016
—E—tF A S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T T
356,498 338,744
11,908 12,066
5 (11,792) 3,285
13 — 25,824
25,011 (23,421)
381,625 356,498

The Group’s investment properties consist of certain
commercial properties in Beijing and Shanghai, the PRC. The
directors of the Company have determined that the
investment properties consist of one class of asset, i.e.,
commercial properties, based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of the properties. The Group’s investment properties
were revalued on 31 December 2017 based on valuations
performed by AVISTA Valuation Advisory Limited, an
independent professionally qualified appraiser, at
HK$381,625,000. Each year, the Group’s management decide
to appoint which external appraiser to be responsible for the
external valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.

AEBMZREMEBEMRFRHILRR
EB2ETHADE - BEWEZ K
g EERER AAREZTETRE
MEBR—BAEEENBIEADE) A
Ko BEBYEEZEERMGEMIE
BMIERRNAERARETZHE A&
B2 EMER_ZT—tE+_A
=+ — B & {& 381,625,000/ 7T ° AN &
EEEESFARATIEMHERMZ AR -
NEFEBEAEEWEZINGEHE -
FRGEGREMSMHE B2 By E
R B HEIFTBEKRE-

ItEBEEFEXEEERAR —E—tF5FH
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
in note 39(a)

included to the consolidated financial

statements.

At 31 December 2017, the Group's investment properties with
a carrying value of HK$328,987,000 (2016: HK$320,047,000)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to

14.

REY ¥ (E)
REMEDBEBELEHELE T E =
o HE—ISHEFBERERNGEEVBR
= M 7E39(@a) °

R-ZZE—+F+_HA=+—H K&EH
BR ™ {8328,987,000/8 T (= & — /X F :
320,047,000 7o) 2 I E W HE F UK

o LESAANEERE 2 —RRTH
& (M 5E29) »

the Group (note 29).

AEENRENMEZE - THBEHERSE

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are

included on page 228. 228H °

Fair value hierarchy REEER

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TERAAREBFKREYMEZ AT EF=
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: [E 4% :

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2017 using
REB—tHF+ZA=Z+—-BEAUTHBAZQAFEFTE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERME EAXUTHEE EXATITHE
HRE BAE W AE
(8 —#) (B=#) (B=8) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT THET THET

Recurring fair value gEMRNFE

measurement for: B
Commercial properties 7 7 R B 2
located in the PRC ERAmE 381,625

156
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

14. REWE ()
DNFEE R (H)

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2016 using
RZE—RNE+ZA=+—HERUTHAZATEF=

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BAA BERAA
ERmE BRBAE BEBAE
WE(E R (=) (B=%®) #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETT TET TET TET
Recurring fair value KEEAFE
measurement for: e
Commercial properties 7 7R B 2
located in the PRC [0 RZES - — 356,498 356,498

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil).

Below is the valuation technique used and the key input to

the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation technique

fEERI

FR - F-—RBAE_HRzEWEATE
FEZERE TEEF=-MEAREH
(ZF—RF 8-

FARBERGDRRENEEEZEIES

Commercial properties

Gk ES

Income approach

W g%

ABWT:
Significant unobservable input Range or weighted average
BERNABER AR & B o g T
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Estimated rental value
(per sq.m. and per month) RMB60-120 RMB45
HETHEEEE
(B¥HTAREA) A K#60-1207T AR¥457T
Capitalisation rate 5% — 6% 6% — 6.5%

BAR{E %

ItEBEEFEXEEERAR —E—tF5FH
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. HREWE(HFE)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AEEER(E)
Income approach measured the fair value of the investment WamEFEBREARARSENREXE
properties by capitalising rental receivables during the term of NMeEWHE RREBERERESE
the tenancies at appropriate yield with due allowances for the BELEERETSREMENLTE -

reversionary value upon expiry of tenancies.

A significant increase (decrease) in the unit rent in isolation B & B8 KR g 0 Ol ) #5 8 Bk
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair B ENAFEKRIBLEINCHD) - BA
value of the investment properties. A significant increase b bt 2 38 22 25 75 N 18 38 0 ORl 2) #% B 5K
(decrease) in the adjustment to the capitalisation rate in HEMER D TEANERD GGN) -
isolation would result in a significant decrease (increase) in the
fair value of the investment properties.
15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. A T#dES
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET THE T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 1,342,629 1,323,117
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT 128 2 ) 34 = 151,560
Recognised during the year FARNER 6 (29,710) (39,192)
Transfer to property under ERTEREME
development 21 (105,149) —
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEHELQR 35 (702,304) —
Exchange realignment [E 5 & 65,944 (92,856)
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—B2
FEE 571,410 1,342,629
Current portion included in FEFATENRIE  ZEe R
prepayments, deposits and other H b e W 518 2
receivables BIERER > 23 (17,754) (39,621)
Non-current portion JEBNEF B > 553,656 1,303,008
As at 31 December 2017, the land use right with an aggregate RZZE—+tF+-RA=+—H &KHE
carrying amount of HK$153,477,000 (2016: HK$282,215,000) was B %153,477,000/% (= & — X F:
pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 29). 282,215,00078 7T,) 2 b {5 FA 7 B 3 4

RASBERRITERZER (HE29) -
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GOODWILL

R
2017 2016
—g—t® ZF-AE
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
O TR T

Cost and net carrying amount at
RmEFE

L 150-PNG)

HE KB AR

1 January
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Disposal of a subsidiary

R—A—BZRAER

265,659 156,104

34 — 141,173
35 (52,785) (31,618)

Cost and net carrying amount at

B K Bk R E

31 December

RTZA=+—B2

265,659

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following cash-generating units (“CGU") for impairment
testing:

o Zhi Jian CGU;

. Jing Tou CGU;

o Beijing Spirit CGU;

o Golden Sun CGU; and
o Top-Doctors CGU.

Zhi Jian and Jing Tou Holding cash-generating units

The recoverable amount has been determined by reference to
the fair value less costs of disposal of each relevant business
unit.

In assessing the fair value less costs of disposal of each
individual business unit, references were considered to the
valuation of the properties and the carrying amounts of the
business unit's other assets and liabilities which approximated
to their fair values, excluding any deferred tax liabilities
initially recognised on acquisition of the relevant business
unit. Fair values of the properties were determined based on
valuations performed by independent valuer at year end using
income approach and comparison approach which have used
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13).

8 R E R
BREBAHREGNEHERIEEAT
ReELBEM(ReELEM]) ETT
AR

. BEWEOELBA
o  RRBEELBA

e LEBERSELEM:
. SABHELELEM R
. REBRBERSELBM

ERRRIKERETELEN
A EERII2ERIFERSHEAES
BUZHEXAMETE -

RREE=RERIES =N AvA/NS -V faef Y4
A AKBEE2EMEZ[BENARE
BENEMEERABZREE(EEIR
FERE)  ETERNKBHEBERE
BBV RER 2 EERERIARE -
ZENEZAFEDLRBEB L AEMHR
FRERREERLEBORET 2 HEE
EETCEAEATABE&ABE
(BEAMBRESEAEIZRAAERF
BEERZE=MH) -

ItEBEEFEXEEERAR —E—tF5FH

159



160

Notes to Financial Statements e 8% &k M5

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z=F—+F+—-H=+—HIFE

16.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Beijing Spirit cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the Beijing Spirit cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
18.50% (2016: 17.78%). The growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the Beijing Spirit unit beyond the five-year
period is 3.00% (2016: 3.00%), which approximates to the long
term average growth rate of the furniture trading industry.

Golden Sun cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the industrial products Golden Sun
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 15.00% (2016: 15.00%). The growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the Golden Sun unit beyond the
five-year period is 3.00% (2016: 3.00%), which approximates to
the long term average growth rate of the geriatric care
industry.

Top-Doctors cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the Top-Doctors cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
19.50% (2016: 18.70%). The growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the Top-Doctors unit beyond the five-year
period is 3.00% (2016: 3.00%), which approximates to the long
term average growth rate of the on-line medical service
industry.

At 31
allocated to each of the cash-generating units is as follows:

December 2017, the carrying amount of goodwill

Jing Tou

Zhi Jian Holding

2 RRER

HK$’'000 HK$’'000

TER TER

Carrying amount of goodwill HEZEEE 62,585 40,734

16.

LTREH
HK$'000
TEx

Beijing

17,394

e ()

BmERENE (&)
tREEEEELE N

TR ERCEABEMNIKESET
LRREFHEEEET  FAEER
ERESREEEHEZ AFHY K
BEELZRSREENSLE - BHER
STERFTAMBLIR X A18.50% (ZF — <
F:17.78%) - ARHEE AF UYL
RERBMNZESREE KX AB300%
(ZZF—R"F :3.00%) r BERAEBEHITHE
ZREFEHERREIR -

EABHEEELEN
SARBrIXERESEEBMAAIK
ESHENIEBREFERAEEFEET &
AEEENREREEREHEZR
FHPRBEREHZE S RERAS
H-BemEEAMANRERA
15.00% (== — /< F : 15.00% ) » F 1A #
BRFHUIINNESAGEN 2RSS RE
#E R A300%(=ZF— 754 :3.00%)
HEZTERPFHBRRER -

REBHBELELEN

REMEBERESELBMNMNAIKRESEET
LRREFHEEEET  FAEER
ERESREEEHEZ AFHY K
BEELZRSREEANSLE - BHER
STERFTAMIE X E19.50% (= —~
F:18.70%) - ARHEHEAFHUIIGER
EHBEENESREEREAB300%
(ZZ—NF 1 3.00%) @ B4R BT
ZREFEHERREIR -

R-ZZE—+tF+_A=+—HH BT
EReEABNHEEZREEDBELT !

Golden
Spirit Sun
EF N
HK$’'000
TER

Top-Doctors Total
REEmS Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FTERT

82,894 9,267 212,874
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GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
Beijing Spirit CGU, Golden Sun CGU and Top-Doctors CGU
for 31 December 2017. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Growth rates — The growth rates used to extrapolate the cash
flows beyond the five-year period are based on the estimated
growth rate of each unit taking into account the industry
growth rate, past experience and the medium or long term
growth target of each CGU.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

16. BE (&)

(SR RCAEREEAE )
RZB—tE+-A=+—RH &1t
RERRSELEN 2AGREESE
BUMREMBARSELEU2ERE
ERFEEAETRR TXHLERERE
EETHERENABELRERERE
APRBENRBEEZMRK :

HMHEFE — MR R R RBRBIR -
I [ bR A5 R B AL 9 45 T LB e

ERE — ARHEEIFHRUERERE
ZEEER DUARBMZAEFERRR
EHeEABNZPRIAE KRB EM
B -

17. HMEREE

Computer
Brand name software Total
oh hE %4 T ESHEIQES 45t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B E BT BT THBT
31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+-RB=+—8H
Cost at 1 January 2016, net of RZZT—RF—H—H
accumulated amortisation AR kR RE
Additions NE — 541 541
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B8 BT /B A &) 34 7,811 6,871 14,682
Amortisation provided FAZHBIHER
during the year 6 — (281) (281)
Exchange realignment [E 5 o (469) (277) (746)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=ZA=+—H 7,342 6,854 14,196
At 31 December 2016: RZE—RF
+=-—B=+—8:
Cost B AR 7,342 7,128 14,470
Accumulated amortisation R T 5 — (274) (274)
Net carrying amount BEEFE 7,342 6,854 14,196
REEREELERARAR —2—+558 6]
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. HttEEEE (&)
Computer
Brand name software Total
m i & A8 B #Aat
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i THET THET THET
31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+ZA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2017, net of RZZT—tF—H—H
accumulated amortisation ZRCR - B 2E
B
Additions NE
Amortisation provided FAZHBIHER
during the year 6
Exchange realignment ME WG &
At 31 December 2017 RZTE—LF
+t=-A=+—8H
At 31 December 2017: RZTE—tF
+TZRA=+—8:
Cost B AR
Accumulated amortisation ESIR 3|
Net carrying amount FREFE
A brand name acquired in 2016 at a fair value of HK$7,858,000 =T — N F W E QT E R7,858,000%
was regarded as having indefinite useful life because the TT 2 mm K 42 1 [ TA HA AT DA R BR BA A A0
brand name is expected to generate net cash inflows RERAMBERLEEEERAERF
indefinitely. As at 31 December 2017, the brand name with H-RZE—+tF+_A=+—H A
indefinite useful life was tested for impairment. EERAEAFHOREBEEETR

BRI -

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. MREELQRZRE
2017 2016
—g—t® ZF-AE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE THT

Share of net assets DHEEFE 159,187 45,103
Goodwill on acquisition WEER 2 2 302,076 104,088

461,263 149,191

Particulars of the material associate are as follows: FEPFLENFFBOT

Percentage of

Place of ownership
incorporation/ interest
Particulars of registration attributable  Principal
Name issued shares held and business to the Group activities
EMARL
BFEZE BT =F i & & 3 AR R B
£ IR 15 7 15 b B BEEEZAIL TEXK
Beijing Sports and Entertainment Ordinary shares Cayman lslands/ 27.22  Air freight services, investment and
Industry Group Limited (“Beijing Hong Kong operation of the sports and
Sports and Entertainment”) entertainment related business
IREENCEXERERAF LRk REHs/ Bk ZERY EERREEBREAR
(treE XD %
# Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange * R R BE R ER £
Except for the Group’s shareholding in Beijing Sports and BRAKENIEREE XEMBREARR
Entertainment comprising equity shares held by the Company, A ERRD TR RE M E QA
the shareholdings in other associates are held through a ZBREDBERRNRF —HEANERF
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. A -
Beijing Sports and Entertainment, which is considered a IERBEX (R AARE T RHA
material associate of the Group, is accounted for using the DA HEREREAR - ARERZF
equity method. The Company acquired approximately 13.97% —RF+ZA+\BKBILEREE XL
of the share capital of Beijing Sport and Entertainment on 18 KN39T% 2 IRA - Wi —BRZF — X
December 2015, and further acquired 10.66% of the share F-AZ+tABUBLERBE X
capital of Beijing Sports and Entertainment on 29 January 10.66%2 BARR-F—LF+—A
2016 and acquired 7.55% of the share capital of Beijing Sports =t RKEIERBE XE7.55% 2 A

and Entertainment on 30 November 2017.

trBEREELXEEERAT —2—tEER 163



Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFF/Z

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18.
The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements:

RBEE R FZRE (H)

TREMRIERBE R BEMNGEE
(EREAHRRCEMNEZRELFE I
HEEMBRRAREEYR)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Current assets MEEE 414,992 337,271
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill JERBEE  TRIEFE 211,688 115,175
Goodwill on acquisition of the WEBE AR Z2EHE
associate 300,951 102,963
Current liabilities mEaE (66,745) (212,810)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (9,130) (1,007)
851,756 341,592
Less: Non-controlling interests o FEIE R E R (130,237) (11,589)
Net assets BEFE 721,519 330,003
Net assets, excluding goodwill EESE TRERE 420,568 227,040
Reconciliation to the Group's interest REBERBE QAN ER 2 R
in the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEEZ AL 27.22% 19.77%
Group's share of net assets of the REBEHEBE R CEESFE "
associate, excluding goodwill TEERE 74,936 44,886
Goodwill on acquisition (less cumulative W HE I 2 752 Off 251 RVE)
impairment) 300,951 102,963
Carrying amount of the investment REZBREE 375,887 147,849
Fair value of the Group's investment REEWREZAFE 1,002,520* 314,160*
Based on the market price of the equity held by the Group * ERAEERANERZTE

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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2016
NS
HK$'000
FA T

82,518
(51,327)

(51,327)

TREEAREERFEEANZBE QA

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REE AR ZRE (&)
2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FTHET
Revenue A 156,823
Loss for the year FEEE (18,134)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2w = 2,563
Total comprehensive income FEI>EKEAR
for the year (15,571)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group's associates that are not individually 2 B &R AR
material:
2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
THERT
Share of the associates’ loss SMEEE AT FEEE

for the year

Aggregate carrying amount of AE
the Group's investments in iR
the associates

EREERRNIRE Z
H 4

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

19.

AHEERE

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FTERT

Unlisted equity investments: JELMRARE
At cost BKAE
Impairment DERIEN

46,151

As at 31 December 2017, the unlisted equity investments with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$46,151,000 (2016:
HK$11,295,000) were stated at cost less impairment because
the ranges of reasonable fair value estimates are so significant
that the directors are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to
dispose of them in the near future.

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
F& T

1,342

2016
e ANS
HK$'000
FATT

11,295

11,295

RZE—tE+-A=+—B BARAE
BRAVEMGBHABEARARESTRAH
AFEBLARGTE WEERER
46,151,000/ 7T (= F — 7S + 11,295,000
A TT) 2 I TR AR B AR PR AR (B 5
- ARBEENOIHHERZFRLD

BAKRE -

ItEBEEFEXEEERAR —E—tF5FH
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20. INVENTORIES 20. #=FE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THE T
Finished goods 2R T 28,889 7,981
21. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21. BETME
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff 5 THERT FHE T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BZEHEME —
Transfer from property, plant and B R B - BE L& E
equipment 13 163,104 —
Transfer from prepaid land lease HEEREMNLES
payments 15 105,149 —
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZEKEE 268,253 —
As at 31 December 2017, the property under development RZZE—tF+_A=+—H KEL
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$105,150,000 (2016: {8105,150,0008 L (=& — /<~ F : #) K
Nil) was pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group EEMEBERASEEBRRRITER MK
(note 29). 1 (Y &E29) -
Further particular of the Group's property under development BHEAEEERYENE—TFHIFTEHT
is included on page 228. M 2288 °
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

Year ended 31 December 2017 EZ—=ZF

—tFF A= —HIEFE

& U8 B 5 Bk 5K
Impairment A

Trade receivables

ST T
2017 2016
—g—t® ZF-AE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH THT
12,013
12,013

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally 3 months.
For major customers, the terms may change in accordance
with the terms of the respective contracts. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

BRHEP—REABNREN AEEX
BUEERABEEFIIEE S ER -
AEEERTEPZEEN KRR =(E
H-BREBEEFPME KA ERENA
ME G MEMES - BREFH
RERREER AKBEHEKREER
WRIR MR BRI S c BEIRAH SR
EEETHETEN - RELABRR
AEBZREREBESERFAUDBEFRS
T RIEBESEETEENRR - A%
B E S EERE SRS RTAER
ERmEmEREETA - BERES
AR KA A EH S o

ﬂﬁ%ﬁi ﬁ%%%%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ

BARN
8 A LA £

Within 3 months
Over 3 months

2017 2016
—E-—tF —F-A%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THRE FHL
10,492

12,532 1,521
28,325 12,013

PR R EXEEERAR —E—tFFRH
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not

22. EWEZ RN (E)
I £ 18 5| 3 R B8 AR MR E 1) B W E B AR

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as KRBT
follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T T
Neither past due nor impaired I 4% 8 B SR 1A 10,492
Less than 1 month past due 0 E P — 1 A 353
1 to 3 months past due mE—=={@A 1,168
12,013

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
several major customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

3 £ 260 B SO0 (B 2 8 U K TR B A 5T 3 A
BREBIBEIBEEFEH -

EEHEYERENEEKRBEE TR
AEEBECHERINBIEFSAM -
EEERYBEREHHAERIDERR
AEBNE RBEARZEERIELE
] (B A -

23. FEMNFRE- - RERHEMEKRKE

2017 2016

—E—+tfF A

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B =% FER FAT

Prepayments and deposits FERFEREZS (a) 297,828 12,339
Loans to third parties FE=ZHER (b) 669,973 83,263
Other receivables H b g R IE 100,244 108,166
Prepaid land lease payments ENLES 15 17,754 39,621
1,085,799 243,389
Less: Impairment R E (3,354) (3,134)

Portion classified as current assets AR EE

okt

(5

1,082,445 240,255
(809,788) (240,255)

Non-current portion EMEEH D
— prepayments — B FIE

(a) 272,657 —
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23.

(Continued)
The movements in provision for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

BAFER ZERE WA (&)

HA UK IR ERENZEFHNT

2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—R

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

At beginning of year REY —
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 3,218
Exchange realignment ME WG & (84)
3,134
Notes: B 5
(a) Included in the Group'’s prepayment at 31 December 2017 were (i) a (a) FAREE T —tF+-_A=+—BH®
non-current prepayment of HK$200,878,000 in relation to a land use BENREARNEBRKEBERSARK
right in Dali, Yunnan Province, for which the total consideration is 316,792,0007T (48 & 74378,983,000% JT) &)
RMB316,792,000 (equivalent to HK$378,983,000); and (i) a THEAREM TFERAEABNIERETE
prepayment of HK$71,779,000 in relation to the proposed acquisition {5 3R 18200,878,0007% 7T ¢ K (ii) 1 22 % e
of a 15% equity interest in Beijing Enterprises City Investment bR IR E B AR AR A ([
Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (“BECIH"). fi% 1) 15% A% # 5 # &0 78 1+ 5187 1,779,0004%
T o
On 20 November 2017, Guangzhou Jinfucity P.E. Fund (limited RZFT—+t&F+—HA=+H " Guangzhou
partnership)(“Jinfucity”), Wuxi Qiangxin Investment Co., Ltd. and Jinfucity P.E. Fund (limited partnership)
BECIH entered into a share transfer agreement (the “Transfer of ([Jinfucity ]) « ZE$H R BIREBFR A A A
Shares Agreement”), pursuant to which Jinfucity agreed to acquire IR R R R AR RT S AR A0 48 ok 1 ek ([ AR M7 ¥
and Wuxi Qiangxin Investment Co., Ltd. agreed to sell 15% of its iRl - Ut Jinfucity[Rl B U HE =
entire equity interests in BECIH for a consideration of HARBREFRNFRELEERIER
RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$71,779,000). BEROSAR E REARARARK
60,000,0007T (18 & 7 #371,779,000/& 7T) °
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has prepaid the total cash R-Z—tF+=-A=+—08 AKEHB
consideration in aggregate of RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to T 423 & KBS & A R #60,000,0007T
approximately HK$71,779,000), and Wuxi Qiangxin Investment Co., (FEE R 4971,779,000/ 7T) » B R TR
Ltd. has not transferred the title of the equity interest to the Group. BERA AN A AR B R -
(b) Included in the loans to third parties as at 31 December 2017 were (b) FIAZE—+tF+_A=+—BWE=H
unsecured interest-bearing loans of HK$669,973,000 (2016: B R A H 5669,973,00008 T (= T — X
HK$83,263,000) in aggregate, which beared interest from 4.5% to 4 : 83,263,000 7T) B EE T B E R
10% (2016: 4.785% to 10%) per annum. RERELE5%ZE10% (=T —/NF : 4.785%
ZE10% )5t & °
As at 31 December 2017, except for the guaranteed loan of 1#£15,050,00000 2 AT ([ ]) (FEER L
Canadian dollar (“CAD") 15,050,000 (equivalent to approximately 93,639,000 7T.) K9 A #E R E A T EHE
HK$93,639,000) were denominated in CAD, all loans to third parties I E=ZFEREBHUAARBFHEC
were denominated in RMB (2016: all were denominated in RMB T-RNE 2HHUARESE B
except the loans of CAD11,250,000, equivalent to approximately 11,250,000/0 7t (48 & 7 #964,653,0007% 7T)
HK$64,653,000). BB RKER AN o
IEBEREREREFXSBERAR —S—tFFR
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24. LOAN TO A DIRECTOR 2, BT —RBEEZEN
The loan to a director, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) RIEF B R 8155 5383(1)(d) 1§ K& A A
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the (REESNmER) ROIFEIFHRE - &%
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T REZZERBEENAT
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 December amount
At  outstanding 2016 and  outstanding At
31 December during 1 January during the 1 January Security
2017 the year 2017 prior year 2016 held
R=B-Xx%
+=A
RZB-+t#F RERZ Er=F RBHE
+=A EEAHEE R-B-tF FEZES RIE-RE
Name HA Sar=/¢ &8 —-A-H AEELH —-A-H FRZER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR FET THT FET
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun TEHERSE 62,591* 138,544 136,012* 136,012 — Commercial
property
ElRIES
& This balance is included in “Due from related parties” in the * Lt BAFE ST AR & BE 5 IR R 3% 2 [ 8 Wi A &
consolidated statement of financial position. FRIE ] °
The loan granted to the director bears interest at 6% per BRTEZZERRBZ FNER(ZE
annum (2016: 4.5% per annum) and is repayable within one —"NF FERELASS)FHE C WHR—F
year. NIEE -
25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 25. EBBRULAFEIIRZEMEE
LOSS
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Listed equity investments, FARARE  EmE
at market value 71,760 64,584
Unlisted investments, at fair value FLEMEE BAFE 32,847 70,103
104,607 134,687
The above financial assets at 31 December 2017 and 2016 RZZE—tFER=-ZZFT—-—X~"F+=A
were classified as held for trading and were, upon initial =T— B LiREREEESEAR
recognition, designated by the Group as financial assets at fair EEE TR THRIARBAEEIET
value through profit or loss. REBEZNARATFEIRZEMEE -
The Group’s unlisted investments represented mainly fund AEBEZEMREFEREESKRE -
investments and their fair values were based on values quoted ERATEDNERBHEcREE 2 RES
by the relevant financial institutions. E ©
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

26.

RERASEENMUREEREN

R RIRTT 8

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits with original maturity of
less than or equal to three months =Rz EBE
when acquired

Time deposits with original maturity of
Rz ERER

REUS R 2 5 B

over three months when acquired
Principal protected structure deposits

with original maturity of less than or

equal to three months when acquired

REGERRIBALRAER

o
N

REUVS I R 25 B 8% = {E

FR=EA 2RABBIEFR

Less: Pledged time deposits:
Pledged for short term
bank loans

B B EER
EREHRITERZER

RekBEEHED

Cash and cash equivalents

2017 2016
—E-tF  ZF-A%E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA& T
128,901 121,543
342,274 86,302
261 82,076

30,183

320,104

(21,900)

471,436 298,204

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances, time deposits and principal protected structure
deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$416,736,000 (2016: HK$151,616,000). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

RBERR  REBUAARE ([ARK])
TEZESRIBITES  EHERER
AN 45 78 1 1F 3R B416,736,00008 T (= Z
— 7N 151,616,000 78) ° A R B A]
BEERBRAHME  ERERBE AU
HNGE EIBAKBI - DA R A5 TE -~ 5 (8 I A5 &
EEHAT ASEKESAEREETNT
INERSEBHRITHARB LB AE
fth B o

ROTFERRBESARTERNEEE
HZ B KGR - RITERREFREFA
RV HERBEAFEERFHRT -

ItEBEEFEXEEERAR —E—tF5FH
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27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. EREZERXR
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBEHAR BNESERABEBEEZEEH
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HEERE D TAT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THE T
Within 3 month =EARN 12,603 9,802
Over 3 months =@A L 4,275 205
16,878 10,007
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BREZEFRAERER —BR ==
settled on terms of 3 to 6 months. RR& -
28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HttENREREGEA
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FH T
Current: BN ER
Other payables and accruals Hh e RIE R ERTE A 102,014 127,231
Consideration payable (note 34) FEHR B (MY 5E34) 5,982 12,745
Contingent consideration payable FE Tl AR B (M 534)

(note 34) 5,178 5,542
Consideration deposits REZ: 39,478 36,891
Receipts in advance AP 26,085 6,197

178,737 188,606
Non-current: FERNE
Other payables and accruals Hit N F AR EE M 2,768 —
Contingent consideration payable FE AT s AR ME (M 5E34)
(note 34) 6,772 12,077
9,540 12,077
188,277 200,683
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed H A BT RIE R R B R I £ B TE & R AE
terms of repayment. e
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Year ended 31 December 2017 EZ—=ZF

—tF A=+ —HILFE

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. FFERAOTREMER
2017 2016
ZE—+F —E—RF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BERA%E FHEA THERT YRS )= THET
Current BN
Bank loans — secured ROTEH — HER 5.22 2018 240-5.22 2017 54,677
—E2-N\§ —tF
Current portion of long term  RHERITEH 2 4.90-5.22 2018 4.90 2017 16,768
bank loans — secured ENEREs & —E-N\%§ —E—+F
— BHEF
Other loans — unsecured HpER — 28#7 4.35-5.60 On demand- 560  On demand 5,189
2018 BREX
RER
—ZE-N\§
81,541 76,634
Non-current JEENHR
Bank loans — secured BTER — BEM 4.90 2019-2024 161,503 490 2018—2021 106,201
“2-NF —N\EF
E-RCNE _g;—
243,044 182,835
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable: EEEBRTERRER
Within one year or on demand BER—FARNHIZBEREE 71,779 71,445
In the second year RE_FANEE 68,190 33,538
In the third to fifth years, inclusive BARBEZZFAFNA
(BREEREMF)EER 45,460 72,663
Over fifth years FRELNEBEE 47,853 —
233,282 177,646
Other borrowings repayable: FEE & B A 8 5K
Within one year or on demand —FARKREREER 5,189
182,835

IERERRFEEXSEERAR —2—tFFH
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29.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's bank loans were secured by:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

mortgages over the investment properties situated in the PRC,
which had an aggregate carrying amount at the end of
reporting period of HK$328,987,000 (2016: HK$320,047,000);

mortgages over a land use right, which had an aggregate
carrying amount at the end of reporting period of
HK$153,477,000 (2016: HK$282,215,000);

mortgages over the property under development, which had
an aggregate carrying amount at the end of reporting period
of HK$105,150,000 (2016:Nil); and

mortgages over a building situated in the PRC, which had an
aggregate carrying amount at the end of reporting period of
HK$62,940,000 (2016: Nil).

In addition, as at 31 December 2017, the Group's bank loans of
HK$53,835,000 were guaranteed by certain third parties (2016:
HK$67,074,000).

As at 31 December 2017, all borrowings were denominated in RMB

(2016: all borrowings were denominated in RMB except bank loans
of HK$53,000,000 were denominated in Hong Kong dollars).

The Group’s other loans are borrowed from non-controlling

shareholders of a subsidiary of the Company, which are unsecured,

bear interest at 4.35% per annum for one year and 5.60% per

annum and are repayable on demand, respectively.

29.

&t B R 1T & H At & K ()

o

By

RITE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

N R=F—+tF+=-A=+—H 'K

—tFE+ZA=+—H FKEZ
FIAT 5 75 S AE R

HURFBEZEEMERR R
5 B R 2 48 AR {8 /328,987,000
7 70 (= & — /X F 1 320,047,000/
JT) i

Bt i AR IR R - R RS HIR
2 48 BR T {8 4153,477,0005 7T (=
T — /N4 : 282,215,000/8 JT)

HERMFEER  ERBEHRZ
44 BR T {8 /43105,150,000/8 7T (= &
—RNEFE:F): R

B AR BEMEFIRF - HRRE
HA K 2 48 BR A {8 £ 62,940,000/ 7T

(ZF—A%F F)-

= [8 /5 #153,835,000 T (= T — /N 4 ¢
67,074,000 ) 2 ERXBE TE=ZF#

R °

RZE

B A A
15

—+E+=-A=1+—B FAEEX
RUHE(ZE—AF  FAHRK

LA A R ¥ &8 - 153,000,000 7T 2 R

TEXR

LAVE TCRT ERRSM)

AEBZEMERTBARE —HTE L

i

BRBCRER - EREER - 55l

— F % & F R4.35% [5.60% 2 F F & 5t
B WAEEREE -
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30. DEFERRED TAX 30.
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during

iF 3E B 1/
BERBEEREERFAZEHNT

the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEE B
Fair value
adjustments
arising from Revaluation
acquisition of
of investment
subsidiaries properties Total
EXBEWE
PA/NE S 1] EMRE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt & FTHET THET THET
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF
—HA—H 152,408 60,356 212,764
Acquisition of a subsidiary A= NG 34 1,451 — 1,451
Deferred tax charged to FARBEESMHLER
asset revaluation reserve A 40 B A 3 AE B 18
during the year — 3,035 3,035
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRREZEA
to profit or loss (Bt A) KB RE L 18
during the year 10 (3,127) 821 (2,306)
Exchange differences [E X =% (9,586) (4,074) (13,660)

At 31 December 2016 and RZTE—RF
1 January 2017 +TZA=+—8BkK
—E—+F
—H—H 141,146 60,138 201,284
Disposal of a subsidiary HE BB AR (70,161) (70,161)
Deferred tax credited to FARBHEANFTAR
profit or loss during the year IEIEFL IR (2,217) (5,165)
Exchange differences fE H =% 7,131 11,238
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+ZA=+—H 61,297

IRBEEEEXEBERAR —Z—tF5R
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30.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$277,195,000 (2016: HK$315,579,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the above items as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is
10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31 December 2017, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of
the Group’s subsidiaries and associates established in
Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, it is not probable that these subsidiaries and
associates will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. There were no temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised at 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. KR
Shares B 17
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT T& T
Authorised: VERE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,0000% & i%
of HK$0.2 each (2016: 10,000,000,000 HE02E T2 T Bk
of HK$0.2 each) (ZZ — 7<% : 10,000,000,000
fi% 5 B @ 80.278 JT) 2,000,000 2,000,000
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F& T
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE

6,048,240,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.2 each (2016: 6,172,892,000
of HK$0.2 each)

6,048,240,000% 5 f% T &
028 L (ZZTE— N
6,172,892,0000% & % M (&
0.2%87T) 2 E @ik 1,209,648 1,234,578

ItEBEEFEXEEERAR —E—tF5FH
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 31. BRA& (&)
A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as RABRAZSEBHENT :
follows:
Number Share
of shares Share premium
in issue capital account Total
21T
P& 1 8 B R P& (E Bk #Et
Notes  '000 shares HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 T A% TET TET TET
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF
—HA—H 6,242,637 1,248,527 1,822,632 3,071,159

Issue of consideration ZE{TH B

shares (a) 15,125 3,025 6,655 9,680
Shares repurchased 8% B f% 1D (b) (84,870) (16,974) (22,881) (39,855)
Shares purchased AR S EY 5T &

for the share award BERMD

scheme — — (1,257) (1,257)
At 31 December 2016 R =ZZT—XF

and 1 January 2017 +ZA=+—H

EZF—+tF
—H—H 6,172,892 1,234,578 1,805,149 3,039,727

Issue of consideration /TR ERKH
shares (a) 16,060 3,212 6,263 9,475
Shares repurchased B At AR 1
and cancelled (b) (140,712) (28,142) (43,656) (71,798)

At 31 December 2017 R-ZT—+F
—A=+—H 6,048,240 1,209,648 1,767,756 2,977,404

178 Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017



31.

Notes to Financial Statements e B 7% sk ki

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Shares (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Issue of consideration shares

Acquisition of Fujian Fu Ling Golden Sun Health and Geriatric
Company Limited (“Golden Sun”)

On 28 April 2017, the Company issued and allotted an aggregate of
2,901,183 new ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.59 per share
as the second instalment of the share consideration for the
acquisition of Golden Sun. The aggregate fair value of the 2,901,183
ordinary shares, determined by reference to the closing quoted
market price of the Company’s share on the Stock Exchange at
issuance date, amounted to HK$1,712,000, of which HK$580,000 and
HK$1,132,000 were credited to the share capital and share premium
account of the Company, respectively.

Acquisition of Beijing Spirit Commerce & Trading Limited
(“Beijing Spirit”)

On 26 April 2017, the Company issued and allotted an aggregate of
13,158,750 new ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.59 per
share as the first instalment of the share consideration for the
acquisition of Beijing Spirit. The aggregate fair value of the
13,158,750 ordinary shares, determined by reference to the closing
quoted market price of the company’s share on the Stock Exchange
at issuance date, amounted to HK$7,763,000, of which HK$2,632,000
and HK$5,131,000 were credited to the share capital and share
premium account of the Company, respectively.

Shares repurchased

The Company purchased 84,870,000, in aggregate, of its shares on
the Stock Exchange at a total consideration of HK$39,855,240, in
aggregate, which were cancelled during the year 2016.

The Company purchased 140,712,000, in aggregate, of its shares on
the Stock Exchange at a total consideration of HK$71,798,000, in
aggregate, which were cancelled during the year 2017.

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2—=ZF—
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32.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES

Share option schemes

2002 Scheme

Effective from 26 April 2002, the Company operated a share
option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) for the purposes of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible
participants of the 2002 Scheme included (i) any employee or
proposed employee (whether full time or part time, including
any executive director but not any non-executive director) of
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested
Entity”) in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest; (ii) any non-executive director or proposed non-
executive director (including independent non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier or potential supplier of goods
or services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (iv) any customer or potential customer of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (v) any person or entity that provides or
will provide research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity; (vi) any
shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued or proposed to be
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
and (vii) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and (viii) any
joint venture partner or business alliance that co-operates with
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity in any area
of business operation or development.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the
options which may be granted under the 2002 Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Company to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit was
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (Continued)
Share option schemes (Continued)

2002 Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director, or to any of their
respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares as at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, were subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date
of grant of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’'s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer of
grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of the grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company's shares.

The number and exercise price of the share options were
adjusted as a result of the rights issue completed on 10
August 2010.

The 2002 Scheme expired in April 2012. The provisions of the
2002 Scheme shall remain in full force and holders of all
options granted under it prior to such termination shall be
entitled to exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the
terms of it until expiry of the said options.

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=H=+—HIFE
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32. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. URGAERNHES S (E)
Share option schemes (Continued) B8 IR RE S &l ()
2002 Scheme (Continued) —EE_FFE(E)
The following share options were outstanding under the 2002 FRN ZEE_FHEETHRITRZ
Scheme during the year: BhRENT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZEREF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price of options
I35 hn#E 15
THEE BREHE TEE BREZE
HK$ HK$
per share '000 per share ‘000
BRET T6H BRE T T
At 1 January R—H—H 0.954 4,838
Exercised during the year FRNITEE — —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 0.954 4,838
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options MREE MR RITENBERENTEE
outstanding as the end of the reporting periods are as RATEBRWT :
follows:
2017 —E—tF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHAE TEE* TEH
HK$
‘000 per share
T & BRET

10 January 2010-9 January 2018

—2-%F-At+EE
—2-N\F-ANE

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. URHGRERNEHEE (E)
Share option schemes (Continued) B EF A (8])
2002 Scheme (Continued) —EE_F5E ()
2016 —EREF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
A EEE TTEE* 17 &2 58
HK$
‘000 per share
T BEETT
4,838 0.954 10 January 2010-9 January 2018

—EZ—ZETF—HA+H=
—E-NE—AnH

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company'’s share capital.

2013 Scheme

On 24 May 2013, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2013 Scheme”) to replace the 2002 Scheme.
Upon termination of the 2002 Scheme, no share options can
be granted under such scheme and holders of all share
options granted under it prior to its termination shall be
entitled to exercise the outstanding share options pursuant to
the terms of it until expiry of such options.

The eligible participants and the terms of the 2013 Scheme
are the same as those of 2002 Scheme.

* BRI 2 TR E AR R BITAR
RARBBRAZ E AR EE T AH
# o

—T—=Fi8

RZBE—=FFA=-1+MNB AR FK
MHERESE (B —=F2 DI
BERZZZZFHE -RE LT
FerEE BT R B AR
MR Zat B8R IERIIR BT A BIREZ
A AGEBREZT SHEHRITE W ART
FRERE BEEZSERERMAL -

SE-SEHBZARKRERERER
R-TE-FHEER -

ItEBEEFEXEEERAR —E—tF5FH
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32. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. URGAERNHES S (E)
2013 Scheme (Continued) “E-ZFFEE
The following share options were outstanding under the 2013 FRN T =ZFFEEBETHRITEZ
Scheme during the year: BhREMT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZEREF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price of options
I35 hn#E 15
THEE BREHE TRE BREHEAE
HK$ HK$
per share '000 per share ‘000
BRET T6H BRE T T
At 1 January mn—H—H 353,000 0.63 230,000
Granted during the year FAKH — 0.53 180,000
Forfeited during the year FNFH — 0.69 (57,000)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H c 353,000 0.57 353,000
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options REEBRERITENERIEZITEE
outstanding as the end of the reporting periods are as RATEHEAAT
follows:
2017 —E—tF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREZHE TREE* THREH
HK$
‘000 per share
T & BRET

176,500 . note (a)
Fft &£ (a)
176,500 . note (b)

#f 2 (b)

353,000

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017 EZ—=ZF

—tF = A=1—HILFE

32. LRHIAEROWHEHEE (F)

2013 Scheme (Continued) —E2-=ZF58#E)
2016 —EREF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
A EEE TTEE* 17 &2 58
HK$
‘000 per share
T FRET
176,500 0.61 note (a)
¥t it (a)
176,500 0.53 note (b)
Bt 3 (b)
353,000

Notes: B &

(a) First 30% of the options granted are vested in one year from 2 April (a) HI0RHE L 2 BRER_-_TS—REFHAZ
2015, second 30% of the options granted will be vested in two years HEsF—FANSEE - £ = #30%0E R E i
from 2 April 2015 and the remaining 40% of the options granted will R-ZE-—AFMA_ARAMFENRS
be vested in three years from 2 April 2015. Upon the lapse of the ﬁﬁﬁ%?%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@:g*ﬁi@ﬁl:
vesting period, the share options are exercisable until 1 April 2025. HEF=FANE EEBKWE B

h%ﬁéfjfﬁimﬂ BT -

(b) First 30% of the options granted will be vested in one year from 28 (b) BN EZBREBN _-_T—XRE—A

January 2016, second 30% of the options granted will be vested in
two years from 28 January 2016 and remaining 40% of the options
granted will be vested in three years from 28 January 2016. Upon
the lapse of the vesting period, the share options are exercisable
until 27 January 2026.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company'’s share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year

ended 31

December 2016 under the 2013 Scheme was

HK$48,173,000 (weighted average of HK$0.268 each).

The

Group recognised a share option expense of

HK$17,758,000 during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$41,062,000).

“+tNBEF-FRNEE - F _H30%E
R =T —RF — H_-H\Elt?rﬁﬁ
F B MR T40%5E R 80 =
—RE-A-t+NBRA=ZFARE - E’\
BEAARE BREEE-_T - F—
AZ+tHHATE -

* B 2 1T (B (B A AR IR (B sk B AT AT iR 3K

FRARREZHMBEURHTTARE -
BE-T "+ A=t+—HLFE

BE_Z—=ZF42RAREEREND
B A48,173,0008 T (INHEFH & A=
f%0.2687 T ) °

AREEBRBE-_TE—tF+_A=1+—
Emﬁrﬁw%h%ﬁiwmwmﬁn
(ZZ— /N : 41,062,000% 7T) ©
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32.
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (Continued)
2013 Scheme (Continued)

The fair values of share options granted to employees during
the year ended 2016 were estimated as at the date of grant
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The fair
value of the services received as consideration for share
options granted during the year ended 2016 were estimated
by reference to the fair values of the share options as at the
dates when the services are received, using the same binomial
model, and taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

32.

DR R E K ES S (E)
“E-ZFFEE

HE_ZT - "FLFERESERLMNE

BEZAFEDIRFELERZERLE

AR IR R RIEHEER =B ER Y

e BEZZT —ANFIEFERIRSE

AEHERENREBZATFENLELZE

Dividend yield (%) &% B K (%)

Historical volatility (%) iﬂ&& & (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%) % K (%)

Weighted average share price
(HKS$ per share)

Exercise multiple

TEfEE

?JD%%M’JHX{?’;(#H%%TE)

BRENKBRBEAZAFERER
BB R R REER ZEAR
BfAE - TRINBAEREAMAONEA
R

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

49.48-52.68

1.87-2.04

0.42-0.53

2.8

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measure of the fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
357,838,000 share options outstanding. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
357,838,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$71,568,000 and share premium
of HK$134,257,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 353,000,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 5.8% of the

Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.

GERT B PRSI LY
B2 HE -

R R EH R - A A A 5357,838,0001 &
FRIER RITHE - BRIEBEARBRITELRLE
B BREITERNRITENEREGERK
%% 17357,838,0000% 2N A &) ¥ & i IR K 1%
771,568,000/ 7T &9 % 78 £ 134,257,000/
T2 iEECRETEITHAI) -

REEMBERRE B - N2 RRBEZF
2l #£ /5353,000,00017 1 7K 17 fiE 5 A% 4 -
HARRAIRZ BB C EITRD#5.8% °
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (Continued)
Share Award Scheme

The share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) of the
Company was adopted by the board of directors of the
Company on 11 September 2016 (the “Adoption Date”). The
purposes and objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to
recognise the contributions by certain participants and to give
incentive to them in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group, and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme shall be
administration of the board of directors of the Company and

subject to the

the independent trustee (the “Trustee”) in accordance with
the scheme rules and the trust deed. Unless early terminated
by the board of directors of the Company, the Share Award
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date.

The board of directors of the Company shall not make any
further award of shares which will result in the total number of
the shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme
exceeding 10% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company at the date of such award. The maximum number of
awarded shares which may be awarded to a selected
participant under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company at the date of such
award.

The maximum number of awarded shares which may be
awarded to a selected participant who is an independent non-
executive director shall not exceed 0.1% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company at the date of such award
and the aggregate value of which shall not exceed
HK$5,000,000 (based on the closing price of the shares of the
Company on the business day immediately preceding the date
of award).

During the year ended 2016, a total of 1,884,000 awarded
shares were vested.

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=H=+—HIFE
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32. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. UR#OAEHENBHESE(H)
Share Award Scheme (Continued) % 10 5% B ot &l (48)

Summary of particulars of the shares granted under the Share

FARBRO BB R 2 iy (T8

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Award Scheme (the “Awarded Shares”) during the year is as BRG] FEBE AT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Number of Number of
Average Awarded Average Awarded
fair value Shares fair value Shares
FIHPYATE RBROBE THATE REBRGOHHAE
HK$ HK$
per share ‘000 per share ‘000
BRET Sl d BRE T Sl
(note)
(B =)
At 1 January R—H—H 0.65 1,884
Awarded during the year FRNERE N/A A58 —
Vested during the year FAEB 0.65 (1,884)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8 WA N/A i@ A —

Note: The fair value of the awarded shares was determined based on the
market closing price of the Company’s shares at the grant date.

Movement in the number of shares held under the share

MisE . BBRNHZAFERBEARBDRONEL
BHmHEEE -

BERAEMHASENRAKE 2

award scheme is as follows: (N
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF AN
Number of Number of
shares held shares held
BERGBE FEROHEE
‘000 ‘000
1 FR
At 1 January R—H—H 1,884
Purchased during the year FAEE -
Vested during the year FANRE (1,884)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H —
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RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 88 to
89 of the financial statements.

Equity-settled share-based payment reserve

The Company operates two share option schemes and a share
award scheme as part of the benefits to its employees. The
share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of share
options which are yet to be exercised and the fair value of
awarded shares granted which are unvested, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements. The amount will be either transferred to the share
premium account when the related share options are
exercised or the related awarded shares are vested, or be
transferred to retained earnings should the related options
expire or related options/awarded shares be forfeited.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
and the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued for the acquisition under the group reorganisation on
11 April 2002.

Share held for the Share Award Scheme

The consideration paid by the Company for purchasing the
Company’s shares from the market, including any directly
attributable incremental cost, is presented as “Shares held for
share award scheme” and the amount is deducted from total
equity. When the Company/trustee transfers the Company’s
shares to the awardees upon vesting, the related costs of the
awarded shares vested are credited to the “Share held for
share award scheme”, with a corresponding adjustment made
to the share premium account.

Assets revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arose from the change in use
from owner-occupied properties to investment properties
carried at fair value.

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=H=+—HIFE
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34.
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RESERVES (Continued)

Statutory surplus reserve

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are
required to make appropriations to a certain statutory surplus
reserve, namely the reserve funds, from their statutory profit
for the year after offsetting accumulated losses as determined
under the PRC accounting regulations from prior years and
before profit distribution to equity holders. The percentage to
be appropriated to such statutory reserve funds is determined
according to the relevant regulations in the PRC at 10% or at
the discretion of the boards of directors of the respective
companies.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(1)  Acquisition of Beijing Spirit (the “Beijing Spirit
Acquisition”)
On 4 January 2016, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Beijing Spirit from Mr. Guo Xiao Fei (“Mr.
Guo”), an independent third party. Beijing Spirit and its
subsidiaries (together, “Beijing Spirit Group”) are
principally engaged in the sale of furniture in the PRC.
The Beijing Spirit Acquisition was made as part of the
Group’s strategy to expand medical and geriatric care
related business. The purchase consideration for the
Beijing Spirit Acquisition consists of (i) cash of
RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$11,936,000), which was
paid at the acquisition date and (ii) 13,158,750,
13,158,750 and 17,545,000 consideration shares to be
issued by the Company to Mr. Guo for each of the
December 2016, 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018, respectively,

three financial years ending 31

subject to adjustments dependent on the performance
of Beijing Spirit Group. This contingent consideration
payable was estimated and recognised as a financial
liability at fair value of HK$21,486,000 at the acquisition
date.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Beijing Spirit Group at the non-controlling

interest’s proportionate share of Beijing Spirit's
identifiable net assets.
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. WEKME A E (&)
(1)  Acquisition of Beijing Spirit (the “Beijing Spirit (1) WBEIZRER(LERERKREBES
Acquisition”) (Continued) 1|/ 1) (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of IRBESEERUEE R B2 T # 5
Beijing Spirit Group as at the date of acquisition were as BEENBREATENAT
follows:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
7 UK B R
HRNAFE
Notes HK$'000
Bt 5 FB T
Property, plant and equipment W - WENEB 13 3,022
Inventories FE 6,829
Trade and bills receivables B E 5B 3k & e W E 17,059
Prepayments, deposits and other BRI FRIE -« e RH b B W K IE
receivables 18,340
Cash and bank balances [ e RIR1TH & 1,316
Trade payables BB SER (14,850)
Receipt in advance SR EZEN (2,826)
Other payables and accruals Hib e RIE K EFTE B (2,177)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value A FEFEZAZHRNEE
FEER 26,713
Non-controlling interests FEFEARME (10,685)
Goodwill on acquisition W 2 m & 16 17,394
33,422
Satisfied by: AT 75 B -
Cash B e 11,936
Contingent consideration shares AR EBIRND 21,486
Total purchase consideration REERE 33,422

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$259,000 for
this acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed and were included in administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2016.

AN & B Bt 2 X WK B EE 42259,00078
TZRGEAE - ZERBRAKE
Yo WEABE_E—ARF+_A
—t+—HALEERABREREME
ARERZITHAX °

ItEBEEFEXEEERAR —E—tF5FH
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(1

Acquisition of Beijing Spirit (the “Beijing Spirit
Acquisition”) (Continued)

None of the goodwill recognised was expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

As part of the purchase agreement, contingent
consideration is payable, dependent on the amount of
net profit of Beijing Spirit Group for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018. The
initial amount recognised was HK$21,486,000, which was
determined using the Monte Carlo Simulation model
under the income approach and was within Level 3 fair
value measurement.

The first instalment of share consideration was issued
and allotted on 26 April 2017 at a cost of HK$7,763,000.

As of 31 December 2017, the fair value of the
contingent consideration liability was remeasured at
HK$11,689,000 (2016: HK$15,029,000). A loss of
HK$4,418,000 resulted from the change in fair value of
the contingent consideration liability was recognised in
other income and gains in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 2017 (2016: gain of

HK$6,457,000).

December

An analysis of cash flow in respect of the Beijing Spirit
Acquisition is as follows:

34.

Uy B5 B B 2 F) (4
(M WhEtmEEHE(LRBREKRE

=15 ]) (&)
HE D R 2 BB AR AIEMER
Frig#i o

ERBEHZE 2 —Hn BA=RA
REARERBEEBREHE=T
N —FE - ER - \E
+_ A=+ RHL=ZAFESFZ
HAEBE - VNIHERAZSER
21,486,0007 7T+ JToER B IR AE T
2EBFRBEEBRERETE Wit A
E=BAFEFEAN-

F-HBEONRECSR=_F—LFMN
AZ+ABBRTRER BRAR
7,763,000/ 7T °

HER=-_Z—tF+=_A=+—
H AAREBEEENAFLEENT
2 411,689,000/ 70 (= F — /N 4F ¢
15,029,000% 7T) ° kAR E B ER
RNFE & E) T E A& 5 #4,418,00078
THEBEBR(ZZE — X F: kE
6,457,000 L) ERBE=FT —
F+_A=+—RAULFERELE
R HE 2T RS R FAEMOKRA
B U S HERR o

ERBZRBEENESREDN
LU

HK$'000
FAET
Cash consideration ReNRE (11,936)
Cash and bank balances acquired EWEE IR e RIRITEER 1,316
Net outflow of cash and cash AREBRGFAFEReEREZRER
equivalents included in cash flows REeFEY ML FE
from investing activities (10,620)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included FTAKEEBFFIREMEZ
in cash flows from operating activities Y 8 B I8 32 5 R AR (259)
(10,879)
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(2)

Acquisition of Beijing Xibu Commerce & Trading Co.,
Ltd. (the “Beijing Xibu Acquisition”)

On 4 January 2016, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Beijing Xibu Commerce & Trading Co., Ltd.
("Beijing Xibu"”) from Mr. Zhu Gang (“Mr. Zhu"), an
independent third party. Beijing Xibu and its subsidiary
(together, "Beijing Xibu Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacture of furniture and the researching
and developing for geriatric furniture. The Beijing Xibu
Acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to
expand medical and geriatric care related business. The
purchase consideration for the Beijing Xibu Acquisition
consists of (i) consideration shares of HK$9,680,000, which
were issued and allotted at the acquisition date and
(i) 13,975,500, 13,975,500 and 18,634,000 consideration
shares to be issued by the Company to Mr. Zhu for each
of the three financial years ending 31 December 2016,
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018, respectively,
subject to adjustments dependent on the performance
of Beijing Xibu Group. This contingent consideration
payable was estimated and recognised as a financial
liability at fair value of HK$20,894,000 at the acquisition
date.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Beijing Xibu Group at the non-controlling

interest’s proportionate share of Beijing Xibu's
identifiable net assets.

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=H=+—HIFE
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(2)

BBt ELHEERAT (R
ESWBEEE])

R=F—A"FE—ANA A£EB
— BB E =AM EE(KRE
EDKRBLERELSEEER QA
([dE R = £ ) 2100%0% # - 4t R
ESRENBAR(HBIILtRES
SEDFBRELEERMETES
EZERM A REFREBEANE
EREREEREERBEBRREZ
— D ARELREEBEZBEE
R E 8 &K E & £%9,680,000%
JC - B R UE B HREE 1T R AR B
BiWEHEE_ZT—XNE+ = A
=+—B8 - ZZFE2—+tF+=A
=t+t—BEkR=ZFE—NF+=A
S+ BLE=ANREESE
N RQAB DR M@K EE
%% 1713,975,5000% + 13,975,500/% K
18,634,0008% X (B B& 7 + H# 7] 1R &
ERESTEBENRBETFUAE-
UL FE S s AR E R UL HE B 2 51
rHEREcmBE AR TEAR
20,894,000/ Tt °

AEEERBZIFERESESHILR
EXMABBEEFEZLIFE
ERESEE 2 IFERES

IRERREELEBARAT B LEEH

193



Notes to Financial Statements e 8% &k M5

Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFF/Z

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(2)

34. WEEHKE 2 F (&)

Acquisition of Beijing Xibu Commerce & Trading Co., (2) WBIELRESHEEGRAR (TR
Ltd. (the “Beijing Xibu Acquisition”) (Continued) ESWESEE] (E)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of ERESEERYE B B8 AR
Beijing Xibu Group as at the date of acquisition were as BERBRZATEMT
follows:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
U5 s T 2R
AN ]
Notes HK$'000
Bt 5 FB T
Property, plant and equipment W - WENEB 13 298
Inventories FE 2,001
Trade receivables EE ZERR 7,232
Prepayments, deposits and other AR FRIE -~ e RH b B W kI8
receivables 6,643
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHER 66
Trade payables BB SER (8,584)
Receipt in advance R ETN (2,549)
Other payables and accruals Hiv e HRIE K EFTE B (6,752)
Tax payable JE 1 B IR (95)
Total identifiable net liabilities BAVEGEZAI#MNEE
at fair value FHEBRE (1,740)
Non-controlling interests FEFEARME 696
Goodwill on acquisition YR 2 & 16 31,618
30,574
Satisfied by: AT 75 B -
Consideration shares issued BRITRERD 9,680
Contingent consideration shares AR EBIRND 20,894
Total purchase consideration REERE 30,574

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(2)

Acquisition of Beijing Xibu Commerce & Trading Co.,
Ltd. (the “Beijing Xibu Acquisition”) (Continued)

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$259,000 for
this acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed and were included in administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2016.

None of the goodwill recognised was expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

As part of the purchase agreement, contingent
consideration is payable, dependent on the amount of
net profit of Beijing Xibu Group for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018. The
initial amount recognised was HK$20,894,000 which was
determined using the Monte Carlo Simulation model
under the income approach and was within Level 3 fair
value measurement.

An analysis of cash flow in respect of the acquisition of

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=H=+—HIFE

34. WHEEHKB A (&)

(2) WHLtZELHERRAT (L=
ESWBEE]E)
REEFUHBBFEEEZRZFK
7N £259,000/8 7T ° ZER FHHAE
REBE-Z—XR"F+=-A=1+—8H
LtFEEREESREMEEIRESE
S84 WEF AITEA X o

BB R 2 BB AR AEMER
Frig#t o

ERBEHZE 2 —HH BA=A
RERARLERESEBMEBEE -
—RNFZE—EERZT-N\F
+_ A=+ RHL=ZAFESF <
HAEBE - VNIHERZSHER
20,894,000/ 7t * AR B W AE T
ZEBFRBEEBRERETE Wit A
E=BAFEFEAN-

HRUBUERESEENRSRES

Beijing Xibu Group is as follows: AT :
HK$'000
T
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents AAREBERAFREAENRE R
included in cash flows from investing ReEEM 2R SR AFHE
activities 66
Transaction costs of the acquisition included FHAKLEEBASREME 2 WEEIE
in cash flows from operating activities R 5 KA (259)
(193)

On 18 November 2016, the Group and Mr. Zhu entered
into the supplemental agreement, pursuant to which the
parties agreed to terminate all outstanding rights and
obligations under the purchase agreement with respect
to, among others, the post-completion allotment and
issue of the consideration shares, the profit guarantee of
Beijing Xibu and the right of first refusal of Mr. Zhu with
effect from the date of 18 November 2016.

R-ZF-—A"E+—-—A+t/\B &X&
B EAREAR M Bt
AIMARBRIEBEGRRTMA
AETEMEEE HPREERET
KRR ERETRERD  ERE
FHEMNRERREENBEEE
B -B-T-RFT—A+NAE
BEGH =
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(2)

(3)

Acquisition of Beijing Xibu Commerce & Trading Co.,
Ltd. (the “Beijing Xibu Acquisition”) (Continued)

As of 18 November 2016,
contingent consideration liability was remeasured, and a
gain of HK$6,373,000 resulted from the change in fair
value of the contingent consideration liability was
in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

the fair value of the

recognised in other income and gains
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December

2016.

In connection with and as a result of the amendment
proposed in the supplemental agreement, the Group's
remaining interest in Beijing Xibu reduced to 24.5% and
was recognised as an available-for-sale investment which
was initially measured at fair value on the date of
disposal (note 35).

Acquisition of Golden Sun (the “Golden Sun
Acquisition”)

On 31 January 2016, the Group acquired a 51% equity
interest in Golden Sun from Ms. Huang Xiaorong (“Ms.
Huang”), an independent third party. Golden Sun and its
subsidiaries (together, “Golden Sun Group”), run a
management and service supporting business for the
non-profit organisations. The Golden Sun Acquisition
was made as part of the Group’s strategy to expand
medical and geriatric care related business. The
purchase consideration for the Golden Sun Acquisition
consists of (i) cash of RMB111,429,000 (equivalent to
HK$132,511,000), which was paid on 7 November 2015;
(i) consideration shares of HK$8,902,000, which were
issued and allotted on 30 November 2015; and (iii)
5,792,683, 9,214,570 and 13,956,162 consideration shares
to be issued by the Company to Ms. Huang for each of
the three financial years ending 31 December 2016, 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018,

subject to adjustments dependent on the performance

respectively,

of Golden Sun Group. This contingent consideration
payable was estimated and recognised as a financial
liability at fair value of HK$3,616,000 at the acquisition
date.

34.
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(3)

Acquisition of Golden Sun (the “Golden Sun
Acquisition”) (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Golden Sun Group at the non-controlling
interest's proportionate share of Golden Sun Group's
identifiable net assets.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

34. WEEHKE 2 F (&)
3) WEzAB(EABYREEE]
(%)
AEERBZIFERESOEE AN
BBz AR BIE E R E 2 L E
ESAGEEZ FIEBRES -

B KB EBERIE BB @5 E

Golden Sun Group as at the date of acquisition were as EREBGEZATFERT :
follows:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
U5 s T 2R
AN ]
Notes HK$'000
Bt 5 FB T
Property, plant and equipment W - WENEB 13 177
Other intangible asset B mivEE 17 7,811
Inventories r&a 775
Due from a non-controlling shareholder & — & IE+E B A% R 5K 1E 28,541
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFIE R E KA E R IE
receivables 21,384
Cash and bank balances R e RIR1T 4 95,626
Receipt in advance R ETN (309)
Other payables and accruals Hiv e B K EFTE B (32,171)
Tax payable JE 1 B IR M
Total identifiable net assets at fair value EAFEFEZAZHRNEE
FEEE 121,833
Non-controlling interests FEFEARME (59,698)
Goodwill on acquisition W 2 m & 16 82,894
145,029
Satisfied by: AT 75 B -
Cash B e 132,511
Consideration shares issued BRITRERD 8,902
Contingent consideration shares SAREBIRND 3,616
Total purchase consideration HBEENRE 145,029
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34.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

—tF A=+ —HILFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(3)

Acquisition of Golden Sun (the “Golden Sun
Acquisition”) (Continued)

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$921,000 for
this acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed and were included in administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December

2016.

None of the goodwill recognised was expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

As part of the purchase agreement and supplemented

agreements, contingent consideration is payable,
dependent on the amount of adjusted net profit of
Golden Sun Group for each of the three years ending
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018. The initial amount
recognised was HK$3,616,000 which was determined
using the Monte Carlo Simulation model under the
income approach and was within Level 3 fair value

measurement.

The second instalment of share consideration was issued
and allotted on 28 April 2017 at a cost of HK$1,712,000.

As of 31 December 2017, the fair value of the
contingent consideration liability was remeasured at
HK$261,000 (2016: HK$2,590,000). A gain of HK$671,000
resulted from the change in fair value of the contingent
consideration liability was recognised in other income
and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31

December 2017 (2016: HK$847,000).

34.

s 55 B 1B 2 =) (AR

(3)

KBEEAB(EABWEEE])
(#&)
REBBUILWEEBEELEZR DK
K AE921,0008TC c ZERFKRAE

REBEE_T-R"F+-_A=t+—H
TFEHFEEEEME2HKER

X WEFATHRAX °

BB R 2 BB AR AEMER
Frig#t o
ERBEEHZEZ — B0 BAHA

RETAREAGEEREE=Z
—RNFZE—EERZT-N\F
+-A=+—HLE=EAFERFZ
HHNEeHE - AT ERZIEBER
3,616,000 7T * DB WAET 2
SRREEBERNETE Wit AF
=RAFEGFEA-

ZHROHREER-Z—tFH
AZTNBEGTREZ BERA
1,712,000/ 7T °

HE-_Z—+F+=-A=+—8"
1%1&@‘;:@&5’1 N EEHTES
261,000/ 7T (ZF — 754 © 2,590,000
BID) c KAREBEBENATFEES
T 22 £ 75 21671,0007 T K Uk 25 B 7R
HE_Z—+tF+=-A=+—HL
FERGEEmKEMEERER
RRE M A RS EER (ZF—N
4 1 847,000/ 7T) °
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(3)

(4)

Acquisition of Golden Sun (the “Golden Sun
Acquisition”) (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of Golden Sun Group is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=H=+—HIFE

34. WEEHKE 2 E (&)

(3)

BB A 1 ([ A B U 35 08 )
()
RUESABEEORS TR
mT

HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration HeRE (132,511)
Cash and bank balances acquired EWE 2 R e RIRTTAEER 95,626
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FTAREFBAEReRELRE R
included in cash flows from ReFEY ML FE
investing activities (36,885)
Transaction costs of the acquisition AR EESAEReEREZWEEE
included in cash flows from R 5 KA
operating activities (921)
(37,806)

Acquisition of Top-Doctors (the “Top-Doctors
Acquisition”)

On 21 October 2015, the Group acquired a 35% equity
interest in Top-Doctors through capital injection at cash
consideration of HK$17,430,000 and Top-Doctors was
accounted for as an associate of the Group. On 5
August 2016, the Group acquired an additional 30%
equity interest in Top-Doctors from certain existing
shareholders through a series of share transfer
agreements at cash consideration of HK$5,382,000. Top-
Doctors became a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group. Top-Doctors was engaged in on-line medical
and nursing service. The Top-Doctors Acquisition was
made as part of the Group’'s strategy to expand its
business related to medical care.

The Group held a 35% equity interest in Top-Doctors
before obtaining the control of it. The Group
remeasured the fair value of the equity interest held at
the date of acquisition at an amount of HK$17,823,000,
and a fair value gain of HK$2,495,000 was recognised in
other income and gains in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during
the year ended 31 December 2016 (note 5).

(4)

WEREBKEE (R BHKEWEE
E1E])
R=ZFE—RF+A=+—8 &&
EF R E L W E R BB H35%
%% I/ & K (8 517,430,000 7T -
mEBHBEIEREE ZHEA
Al R_FT—AR"ENARB A&
EEE—RIBHEEREEET
IR 7 AR B U 8 R B8 Bk PR B HN30%
%= I’ & R {8 55,382,000 7T ° R
BEMEXAAEBZIEZENBR
Ale REHBANEAREEREE
R%s - REBBUBEEALEER
ERHEEAEESARE 2 —
/ﬁo
RESHEEGIER A5ERER
B A% ED c ASEEFE
RER BN ER 2 ATER
17,823,000 ;. * W R & = = &
—ANFE+_A=t+—BHILEENLE
EEEREMEEKG T Z il
AN U 25 7 722,495,000/8 7T 2 A F
EE( IR
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFF/Z

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. WEKEAR (F)
(4)  Acquisition of Top-Doctors (the “Top-Doctors 4 WEREKE((REKEWE
Acquisition”) (Continued) =1/ (&)

AEEERBZIFERESOERE
BEZAIBANEEFEZLAE
REHBEZIFERES -

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Top-Doctors at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of Top-Doctors’ identifiable net
assets.

RER BN USRS #RIE E

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

Top-Doctors as at the date of acquisition were as FafEzRFENT :
follows:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
U5 s T 2R
HRAFE
Notes HK$'000
Bt 55 THE T
Property, plant and equipment W - WENEB 13 1,210
Other intangible assets B miyEE 17 6,871
Due from non-controlling shareholders  f& Ut FE 5 % I B8 5k 18 5,382
Prepayments, deposits and other AR FRIE -~ e ROH b B W kI8
receivables 76
Cash and bank balances R e RIR1T & 9,483
Trade payables JERTE SRR (54)
Other payables and accruals B BN RIE R ETE (34)
Tax payables JE 1 B IR (40)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBE R 30 (1,451)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value EAFEFEZAZHRNEE
FEEE 21,443
Non-controlling interests FEFEARME (7,505)
Goodwill on acquisition W 2 m & 16 9,267
23,205
Satisfied by: AT 75 B -
Cash e 5,382
Fair value of an equity interest JREFER — MBS A RRENER
previously held as an investment in an AN =]
associate 17,823
Total purchase consideration HBEENRE 23,205

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(4)

Year ended 31 December 2017 EZ—=ZF

—tF = A=1—HILFE

34. WEEHKE 2 F (&)

Acquisition of Top-Doctors (the “Top-Doctors (4) WHBREBEKRE(RBHEWE
Acquisition”) (Continued) =15 ) (&)
The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$287,000 for AEBFULKBEEELEZRSK
this acquisition. These transaction costs have been K &287,0008 7T c ZERHKAE
expensed and were included in administrative expenses RBE-_ZT—ARFT-A=1+—H
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other IFFEFeEER REMEEEE R
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December X WEFATBAX o
2016.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the FUEREHENRSRED T
acquisition of Top-Doctors is as follows: I
HK$'000
T
Cash consideration ReRE (5,382)
Cash and bank balances acquired EWEE IR e RIRITEER 9,483
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents AARBRGAFRERELZ
included in cash flows from investing ReLBSEFEDRAFHE
activities 4,101
Transaction costs of the acquisition included &FFAKLZEZFBFBHESREL
in cash flows from operating activities Y g B I8 2 5 R AR (287)
3,814

On 7 February 2017, the Group transferred its 65%
equity interest in Top-Doctors to a PRC entity, over
which the Group has control through certain contractual
agreements including power of attorney agreement,
loan agreement, exclusive share purchase agreement,
equity interest pledge agreement, business cooperation
agreement, exclusive services general agreement and
commitment letter.
treated as a subsidiary of the Group and its financial

Therefore, Top-Doctors is still

statements have been consolidated by the Group.

IR RRERE

RZZE—+F-_AtH A£EM
—HrEEEEEERNREREN
SRR ME - AEREEBE :F/\%’JT%%
= (BREREGS EXHE
KB MR 17 - IR R 15 % %ﬁ%
SEM®  BRRE MRk
HEH)HZERBEAESE B
it R EREE R DR A AN S B A I
BT HEB SRR E BAKELg
B -

$REERAT —B—LFER
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34.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(5)

Acquisition of Choice Development Inc. (the “Choice
Acquisition”)

On 9 May 2016, the Group acquired a 100% interest
("Choice")
independent third party, at cash consideration
of RMB128,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$153,207,000). A subsidiary of Choice owns certain
in the Mainland China. The Choice
Acquisition has been accounted for by the Group as

in Choice Development Inc. from an

lands located
an acquisition of assets as the entity acquired by the
Group does not constitute a business. The purchase
consideration for the acquisition was in the form of
cash, with RMB122,100,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$145,520,000) paid at the acquisition date and the
remaining RMB6,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,374,000) as at 31 December 2016 was paid during
the year ended 2017.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Choice as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

34.

Uy B5 B B 2 F) (4

(5)

KENREAIFHBRAERA A
(HHRkEE=EE])
R=ZFE—A"FEREANA AEEBE
— BB = WENTEIFRG
ERARI(MED  BEREAA
R %128,500,0007T (H & K 4
13%mw%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%—%w
DNEEEE TR FBEARESN L
ﬁﬂ HRASEMKREZ ZEETT
B —EER  AREEFKEKRE
EENEERBE AR - A5E
WEEEMEENRED PNIE A H
uﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁAEMmmmmw
7t (48 & 1 #9145,520,0005 7T )
R-ZE—RNFE+_-_A=1+— Elﬁ/%"l’
Z AN R #6,400,0007T (18 & 1 49
7,374,000 ) EREE=ZFT — £
FILFEARNZA -

MARKER R 2@ EENRE
BRFEMT :

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

UK B FRF B R

#AFE

Notes HK$'000

F = FAT

Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 13 1,647

Prepaid land lease payments B LHAS 15 151,560

Inventories FE 1,779

Trade receivables ERE SRR 3,382

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEfIFUIE » & & K H b & W 5K 1A 3,628

Trade payables ERHE SRR (157)

Receipt in advance R &N (53)

Other payables and accruals HMEANRIEREEA (7,438)

Tax payable JE < 0 18 (1,147)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value BEAFEAHANEEFEERE 153,207
Satisfied by: AT 75 KE -

Cash Be 153,207

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$276,000 for
this acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed and were included in administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December

2016.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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34.

Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. WEEKHE A E (&)
(5) Acquisition of Choice Development Inc. (the “Choice (5) WBENRAFROGERDF
Acquisition”) (Continued) THRWE=EE])(E)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the ERAMRWESTE . RERESN
acquisition of Choice is as follows: N
HK$'000
T
Cash consideration ReNRE (153,207)
Cash and bank balances acquired PR RIRITHERR —
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AARBRGAFRERELZ
included in cash flows from investing RekReFEY ML FE
activities (153,207)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included FTAKZEBFFIREMEZ
in cash flows from operating activities Y g B I8 2 5 R AR (276)
(153,483)
(6) Acquisition of Shanghai Junbo (the “Shanghai Junbo 6) WEBLERE (LSRRI WE
Acquisition”) EI1E])

On 4 December 2015, the Group acquired a 100%
equity interest in Shanghai Junbo from Mr. Ding Yerong
and Mr. Xia Guohai, independent third parties, at a cash
consideration of HK$109,931,000. Shanghai Junbo owns
one piece of industrial land with a total area of 20,480
square meters for a common term expiring on 4 March
2065. The Shanghai Junbo Acquisition has been
accounted for by the Group as an acquisition of assets ZEBWTHEK—IBER  A&E
as the entity acquired by the Group does not constitute 1 EEE BB EIENEE KRBT
a business. H AR o

R-ZE—RE+-_ANA  A&EH
BEVE=FTELLERERE
%I BE B8 BE R 100% % 4 - IR
& KB 5109,931,0007 7t » + /58
BB — PR A E 18 /20,480 75 K
ZIT¥ERM  ZETHWRAN -TA
F=AUBHm AR AEERE

ItEBEEFEXEEERAR —E—tF5FH
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Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=-H=+—HIFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

34. WEEHKE 2 F (&)

(6)  Acquisition of Shanghai Junbo (the “Shanghai Junbo 6) WEBLEBERE(LERIEWE
Acquisition”) (Continued) =15 ) (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets of Shanghai EERERKEERZ A #AIEE
Junbo as at the date of acquisition were as follows: NS IER N
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
7 UK B RF B R
AT E
HK$'000
FAET
Prepaid land lease payments TR LS 109,326
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREB 569
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE{J5XIA « & & K& H fth fE R 5K I8 35
Cash and bank balances e RRITHEH 1
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAVEGTEZRAI#SMNEEFERSE 109,931
Satisfied by cash* LAR & (8 I+ 109,931
* Cash consideration of HK$19,726,000 and HK$84,615,000 was * AEERBE_ZT-R"FR-_F

paid by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
and 2015, respectively, and the remaining consideration
payable of HK$5,982,000 was included in the Group's other
payables and accruals at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$5,590,000).

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$202,000 for
the Shanghai Junbo Acquisition. These transaction have
been expensed and were included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(6) Acquisition of Shanghai Junbo (the “Shanghai Junbo
Acquisition”) (Continued)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Shanghai
Junbo Acquisition is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

34. WEEHKE 2 F (&)

(6)

Wi EteBE((LERSWE
=15 ]) (&)
FRLERBENESEZRERE
DT

HK$'000

T

Cash consideration ReRE (84,615)

Cash and bank balances acquired PR RIRITHERR 1
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AARBRGAFRERELZ
included in cash flows from investing RekReFEY ML FE

activities (84,614)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included FTAKZEBFFIREMEZ

in cash flows from operating activities Y g B I8 2 5 R AR (202)

(84,816)

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(1) Disposal of Beijing Beijian Inland Port International
Logistics Co., Ltd.* (“Beijian Lugang”)
On 13 April 2017, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Disposal Agreement”) with
Beijing Ronghui Hotel Management Limited*, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Radiance Group Co., Limited*
("Radiance Group”), to sell its entire equity interest of
Beijian Lugang, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, for a consideration of RMB796,109,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$917,282,000) (the
“Disposal”).

The Disposal was completed on 20 July 2017, and a gain
on disposal of HK$576,121,000 was recorded.

For identification purpose only

35. HEKELR

(1

HELRILBEEBBEBYRERD
(M mEEE]

R=ZFE—tFHNA+=8" ' A%H
HeEMEBMBHAERAR ([SES
B MEEKBEAQ R REiEEE
ERARARVEERE(HE
Wakl) - AR E A R #796,109,000
7T (FB & R 49917,282,0007 7T ) H &
HERAQRIEZEIEZENRB AR
RERE I RE(THEEE]) -

HEEHER - ZE—+F+A -+
HE ¥ &5 EE K=
576,121,000/ 7T °

* EHES
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Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=-H=+—HIFE

558

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(2)

Disposal of Beijing Xibu

On 20 August 2015, United Win
Corporation (“United Win"), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Mr. Zhu Gang (“Mr. Zhu") entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Beijing Xibu

International

Agreement”), pursuant to which United Win
conditionally agreed to acquire and Mr. Zhu
conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued share
capital of Beijing Xibu at a total consideration of
RMB40,800,000 which was to be satisfied entirely by the
issue of 61,710,000 Shares (the “Beijing Xibu
Consideration Shares”) by the Company (the "“Beijing
Xibu Acquisition”) subject to the result of the profit
guarantee. Completion of the Beijing Xibu Acquisition

took place on 4 January 2016.

On 18 November 2016, a Supplemental Beijing Xibu
Agreement was entered into by United Win and Mr. Zhu
to terminate all outstanding rights and obligations under
the Beijing Xibu Agreement with respect to, among
others, the post-completion allotment and issue of the
Beijing Xibu Consideration Shares, the profit guarantee
and the right of first refusal of Mr. Zhu with effect from
the date of signing of the Supplemental Beijing Xibu
Agreement. In consideration of the release of the
Company's obligation to allot and issue the Beijing Xibu
Consideration Shares, United Win agreed to transfer
back to Mr. Zhu an aggregate of 755,000 shares in
Beijing Xibu, representing 75.5% of the total issued
share capital of Beijing Xibu.

Upon completion on 18 November 2016, Beijing Xibu
was being held as to 24.5% by United Win and the
remaining 75.5% by Mr. Zhu, as such, Beijing Xibu will
cease to be a subsidiary of the Group and its financial
results will not be consolidated with those of the Group.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited

35.
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(I'United Win J) 82 5% Bl 5& & ([ &
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LA 78 85 % 1761,710,000/% A% 17 (3k
REFRERH D XM ([EREZ
WEERIR) - EAFSENRER L
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. HEMELE (&)
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff 5 FTHET BT
Net assets disposed of: EHEZFEE:
Property, plant and equipment ME - WFEREE 13 137,753 543
Prepaid land lease payment BN S 15 702,304 —
Goodwill ma 16 52,785 31,618
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 17,550
Inventories T8 18,837
Cash and bank balances BHe RIRITEH 2,292
Trade receivables EURE SR 26,707
Prepayments and other receivables 8 4 5K I8 K H b & Uy
KA 10,379
Trade payables ERE SRR (11,164)
Other payables and accruals H & R IE K
fEstE A (12,662)
Receipt in advance ST (28,814)
Interest-bearing bank and other FT B RTT R E {5 3K
borrowings (3,604)
Tax payables JE A 7518 (476)
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIE S E 30 (70,161) —
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR #E 2 — (369)
310,566 50,837
Exchange fluctuation reserve G B S B 156 1 30,595 1,058
341,161 51,895
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBARZ 5
W, (B#E) 576,121 (8,225)
917,282 43,670
Satisfied by: AT 75 KAE -
Cash e 21,000
Waiver of contingent consideration REENIARE
payable 14,544
Remaining interest recognised as an ERAAHEEHERE 34
available-for-sale investment BT ER 8,126
917,282 43,670

tEREREELXEEERAR —2—+tE5E8 207
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFF/Z

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. HEMELE (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FHALE—RBWBEARzReRReE
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: BEMRAFEZDOMEAT
2017 2016
—E—tF —F—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET

Cash consideration BeRE 917,282 21,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHREZRE MIBITESR (3,765) (2,292)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BEAHENBE AR R e KR E
in respect of the disposal of ZEMRNFRR

subsidiaries 18,708
36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 36. BEBREREXRME
FLOWS
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (a) RMETBHELENEEGEEH
Bank and
other loans
BT R H A E K
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2017 R_E—t+F—-—H—H 182,835
Changes from financing cash flows HERSRE 47,452
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXRE &5 & F 5 12,757
At 31 December 2017 RZF—EF+ZA=1+—H 243,044
(b) Total taxes paid (b) EfRHEBEBHZE
The total taxes paid during the year were: FRNENHIEERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THET
Operating activities: KRR
PRC profit tax paid BEAS R B AT S H 2,221 1,879
2,221 1,879
Investing activities: REERE
PRC profit tax paid BEAT R B AT S HE 69,198 —
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREBREH 2,361 —

71,559 —

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 26 May 2015, the Company received a writ issued by
Lucky Creation Limited (the “Plaintiff”) in the High Court (the
“Action”) against the Company and Mr. Wang Zheng Chun, an
executive Director of the Company. In the Action, the Plaintiff
claimed against the Company for specific performance of an
alleged agreement to issue and allot 1,236,615,482 new shares
at the price of HK$0.25 per Share, damages in addition to or
in lieu of specific performance, loss and damages to be
assessed for the alleged breaches, interest, costs of the
Action and further and/or other relief. The Plaintiff did not
appear at the case management conference held on 15 March
2018. Therefore, the Court has provisionally struck out the
Plaintiff's claims. The Company understands that the Plaintiff
may, before the expiry of 3 months from the date of the case
management conference, apply to the Court for restoration of
its claims. The Directors recognise the inherent uncertainties
of litigation. Having considered the advice from the Group's
legal counsel, the Directors believe that the Company has a
valid defence against the allegations of the Plaintiff and,
accordingly, the Company has not made provision for the
claims under the Action, other than the related legal and
other costs.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank loans, which are secured by the
assets of the Group, are included in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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39. OPERATING LEASES ARRANGEMENTS 39. REHEETH
(a) As lessor (a) fEARAEBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14 to REERBLEAELHHE AR
the consolidated financial statements) under operating BYEREMBEHREME4) - &
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ERMEBRN T —FE=_T4-H
ranging from one to twenty years. The terms of the WER—RINERKBP I RE S
leases generally also require the tenants to pay security RETEARIR IR & R O E S &
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments fEHFAE -
according to the then prevailing market conditions.
At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future RZE—tF+A=+—H &
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable & E AR BR B H AE = 5T 37 B9 N AT REH
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: SR 51 2R B B A R 2R &
KRB ERUKRIBLTENT :
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Within one year —FR 17,772 12,343
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FZEERF
(BREEME) 50,279 39,811
After five years HF1& 124,955 120,731
193,006 172,885
(b) As lessee (b) {EAREBEA
The Group leases certain of its office properties and AEBRBEEHELHBERASE T
staff quarters under operating lease arrangements, with PAEYERBETES @ LHEEA
leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to three BAF—ZE=F-
years.
At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future RZZE—tEF+=—A=+—H ' &
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable SEBRBESATRESCEHER T
operating leases falling due as follows: HARE B BB R SR S (R AE E N R AR RE
R
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
Within one year —%F R 5,868
In the second to third years, inclusive FIEE=F
(BREEMSF) 3,443
9,311

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

40. COMMITMENTS 40. &IE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in B b TR FE39(b) 5F it ) 45 5 A0 &R -
note 39(b) above, the Group had the following capital AEBRBREHRNERERENT :
commitments at the end of the reporting period:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: EETH B AR
Land and buildings T REF 425,685 140,964
41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BEARS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) KREZEVBRREMEGHFR2ZR
these financial statements, the Group had the S0 AEERFERERES ET
following transactions with related parties during the UTEXRF:
year:
2017 2016
—E—tF AN
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
H 5 THERT FHE T
Interest income from a director KE—REFZHME
WA 0] 1,012
Handling income from a director RE—REBZZFEE
LAUN (i 1,200
Interest income from a company KB —MBEARFES
of which a director of the BEERRRENAF
Company is a controlling ZFERA
shareholder (ii) 4,847

Interest income from a company
of which is jointly controlled
by the directors of the
Company

XE—HAARAES
HEZEHORAE 2
B YA

(iii)

IRBEEEEXEBERAR —Z—tF5R
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41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(Continued)

(a)

(i)

(i)

On 28 October 2016, the Group entered into a loan
facility agreement with Mr. Wang Zheng Chun, a
director of the Company, pursuant to which, the
Group provided a loan of HK$135,000,000 for a
term of twelve months, bearing interest at 4.5%
per annum. A handling fee of HK$1,200,000 was
charged and deducted upon the first drawing of
loan facility. On 30 June 2017 and 1 November
2017, HK$20,950,000 and HK$52,050,000 of
loan facility, respectively were received and
HK$5,725,000 of related interest receivable was
received. The Group provided a loan extension
of the remaining principal of HK$62,000,000 for a
term of twelve months, bearing interest at 6.0% per
annum. The remaining principal HK$62,000,000 and
the relevant interest receivable of HK$591,000 as at
31 December 2017 were included in the amounts
due from related parties in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

On 31 March 2015, the Group disposed of World
Wisdom Industrial Limited (“World Wisdom”) to
Jingjun Global Limited (“Jingjun Global”), a
company wholly owned by Mr. Wang Zheng Chun,
an executive director of the Company, for a total
consideration of HK$668,900,000. The remaining
consideration receivable of HK$108,900,000 as at
31 December 2016 and its
receivable were fully received on 15 March 2017,
21 March 2017, 22 March 2017, 29 March 2017 and
30 June 2017, respectively. During the year, the
Group earned an interest income of HK$687,000
on the consideration receivable from Jingjun
Global (2016: HK$4,847,000).

relevant interest

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
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(a)

(%)
(i)

(i)

RZE—XR"F+A=F+AN
B AEEHEARARESETE
FHEXRLETIERRE W
HoOEBM AEBRE—F
135,000,000& 7T 2 E & © &
B+ — @A I FA=E
4.5%5T B o B Y2 HL1,200,000
BILZFEE IR BERE
RNEFBERMB KR
—+tH&ERNA=+BRER=-ZF
—+tE+—F—H8 2k
B85 R £20,950,0007% 7T &
52,050,000 ST ERFE -
A }5,725,0007% 7T £ 48 78 fE
Ig FI B B UK EX o 7 & & 5E £
N4 5862,000,00078 TR
ERTEH AHI2EA 0 X
BEMRO%T B - R F
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T 7K 4 £E62,000,0005% 7T LA &
8 8 FE U F1) 2,591,000/ 7T B
AR E BRI R Z B
B8 FRIA ©

RZE—RF=ZA=+—
B AXEBEARBRATE
ETEHFEREEREHBLZ
A ElJingjun Global Limited
([Jingjun Global |) & World
Wisdom Industrial Limited
(I'World Wisdom |) » #& X
{8 £668,900,0007% I ° 1 =
E—RF+-_A=+—8"
£ T F& Y £X {2108,900,000/%8
g REMEBEKRFEE 5
AR —ZE—ttF=/A+H
H —ZE—+t&F=F=+—
H Z2—tF=A=+=
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(iii)

On 17 July 2017, the Group entered into a loan
facility agreement with Jinfu N.A. Real Estate
Investment Limited (“Jinfu N.A."), a company partly
invested by Mr. Zhu Shi Xing, Mr. Gu Shan Chao
and Mr. Liu Xue Heng, the executive directors
of the Company, pursuant to which, the Group
provided to Jinfu N.A. a loan of CAD13,400,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$84,019,000), which
is due at 20 July 2020 bearing interest at 10% per
annum. On 20 July 2017, the Group entered into
a loan facility supplementary agreement with Jinfu
N.A. and its subsidiary, 1121695 B.C. Ltd., pursuant
to which, the borrower of the loan was changed
from Jinfu N.A. to 1121695 B.C. Ltd.. During
the year, the Group earned an interest income
of CAD622,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,868,000) on the loan to 1121695 B.C. Ltd..
The remaining principal HK$83,374,000 and the
relevant interest receivable of HK$3,863,000 as at
31 December 2017 were guaranteed by Mr. Yu Lu
Ning, a third party, Mr. Zhu Shi Xing, Mr. Gu Shan
Chao and Mr. Liu Xue Heng.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The Group had an outstanding balance due to a
related company of HK$36,558,000 (2016: Nil) as at
the end of the reporting period. This balance is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment.

Detail of the Group's loan due from a Company’s
in note 41(a)(i) to the
consolidated financial statements.

director is included

Detail of the Group's loan due from a related party
is included in note 41(a)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=H=+—HIFE

4. BEIRS (E)
(a) (&)

iy AR=ZE—tFtA+tH:
AAAHESEETHER
BERRAR([&EkED(—
Sz RN = G SR
TE BEBLERIZEE
EELH/EZRAEIAL
EXBEHZ B A&
EmestERE—21e
8 /513,400,000 7T (48 & 7
#784,019,0007% 7T) 2 B 3
R-ZZE-_ZEFLA=+HEF
B - 3 32 F R E10%ET B o
R=_ZF—+tFtA=+H"
AEEHESELERENE
A A1121695 B.C. Ltd.5T3Z
EX@mEmThE  BHE
FOERABHESEILEETE
741121695 B.C. Ltd. < A
ANEE G4 F1121695 B.C.
Ltd. &0 & 3 Bf B A B U A
622,00000 Jt(# & B 4
3,868,000/ L) « W=F —+
F+_A=+—H%HTAE
883,374,000/ 7T K [iE U 48
# 53,863,000/ L £ = 7
BEELA  HAELE-
EEBAERIBELEE
R o

(b) HEREEBENBEEDLEEH:
() R|MEBR AEBEENS—
e B 48 1 ) O 18 o (8 52 A 8
736,558,000/ JT (= & — /<
FoE) BB AEERR. 2
BRERETEERDY-

iy AEBEKARA—ZES
ERNFBHN LGS U B R
= M 5E41a)G) °

(i) ANEERKEETERDF
BEHNEET BRI E
41(a)(iii) ©

ItEBEEFEXEEERAR —E—tF5FH
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 41. BERFIRS (&)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the (c) AEBXTEEBEAE#HHE:
Group:
In the opinion of the directors, the directors and the EEZRR ARREFRFETH
chief executive of the Company represented the key ABRIREBFEETEAS - FH
management personnel of the Group. Further details of EERFBETHRAEMEZE—F
directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments are S IB N B T R R M A8 o

included in note 8 to the financial statements.

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. RERESzEeMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEHR SENERMIAEZREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as R
follows:
2017 Bt
Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets
measured at Available-
fair value for-sale
through Loans and financial
profit or loss receivables assets Total
A FE R EXREK A HE
ZEREE A tREE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Available-for-sale investments HHERE 46,151
Trade receivables B4 E 582 28,325 28,325
Due from related parties [fE W B & 5 0B 149,832 149,832
Financial assets included in FABMARE RER
prepayments, deposits and HiERTIEZ 2/
other receivables AE 766,863 766,863
Financial assets at fair value ERBEHUATETIE
through profit or loss JEBEE 104,607 — 104,607
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY — 471,436 471,436

104,607 1,416,456 1,567,214

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued) 42.

2017 (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included
in other payables and
accruals

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Designated
as such
upon initial
recognition
EBRBEEN
NFEINERZ
TREBERATHE
REEE
HK$’'000
THET
e 8 5 BR%
FTACE S TR
RETERZ
TRad 11,950
FTERTT R EAD
&

11,950

REMNES2EMT A (&)
—E—tF (&)

EWMEE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total

R
A&
2B E
HK$'000
FHERT

et
HK$°000
TERT

16,878 16,878

106,280 118,230

243,044 243,044

366,202

378,152

IRBEEEEXEBERAR —Z—tF5R
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued) 42. RERES 2RI A (E)
2016 [y
Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets
measured at Available-
fair value for-sale
through Loans and financial
profit or loss receivables assets Total
BRBZART
Bz 2 mE BN R EK A E
B B PREE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET TAET
Available-for-sale investments ApREERE — — 11,295 11,295
Trade receivables BWEZER — 12,013 — 12,013
Due from related parties BB E R RIE — 247,887 — 247,887
Financial assets included in FABMARE RER
prepayments, deposits and HiERTIEZ 2/
other receivables EE — 188,295 — 188,295
Financial assets at fair value ERBHUATESIE
through profit or loss LERERE 134,687 - - 134,687
Pledged deposits EHERES — 21,900 - 21,900
Cash and cash equivalents ReLkBeEED — 298,204 — 298,204
134,687 768,299 11,295 914,281
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Financial liabilities

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

42.

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss

REMNES2EMT A (&)

—E-RE(E)

TEEE

Designated
as such  Financial liabilities at
upon initial amortised
recognition cost Total
FBRBERN
RFEIEZ 8 313
TRAR KARGHEZ
RS HRERIETE cRAR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET
Trade payables e 8 5 8R — 10,007 10,007
Financial liabilities included in other T A # B 5008 | fEAT
payables and accruals ERA EMAER 17,619 135,614 153,233
Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings HERITREMER — 182,835 182,835
17,619 328,456 346,075

ItEBREFEXSERRL

N
N

7 —E—LEER
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 43.

INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group'’s financial
instruments not measured at fair value, other than available-
for-sale investments measured at cost included in non-current
assets, of which the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that fair
value cannot be measured reliably, and those with carrying
amounts approximated to their fair values largely due to the
short term maturities or floating interest ratio, are as follows:

EMIAZATVTERAFERER

BREERFRDEEZEKARTENT
HHELRERGEN A FEMFEE
EXR EEZRR/EQATFETEAEA
B URIZHARZETIAREHAE
HA R 3R IF B M R 8 BOH AR (E
RFEEENRIN  REBEILFEURFE
AEZERMTAZREEREQFET
2

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AF¥E
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RN —E—tF ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FA&T FH& T FH&T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value ERBEZ AR FEY
through profit or loss BremEE 104,607 134,687 104,607 134,687
Financial liabilities cRmEeE
Consideration payable ST A E b BB 518 &
included in other payables EEtERZ BN
and accruals KE 17,619

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the listed equity investments are based on
market prices. The fair values of unlisted investments are
based on values quoted by the relevant financial institutions.

The fair values of the contingent consideration payables are

determined using the Monte Carlo Simulation model under
the income approach.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 43. £@IT

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December

& 2 #r

Range
18 B

AZAVERDFEEBERE

Sensitivity of fair value
to the input
R EHBAEZBRE

UTRAR-_F—tF+-_A=+—8BxR
—E-RETZA=+t—HBHEeMIA
BENEATTBREHABRESHE

2016:
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs
il B £ 9l EXTAEEBAE
Contingent Monte Carlo FX spot rate
consideration Simulation model &N 3R & & &
payables SHRERRER
e AR AE

Discount rate
853 %

2017: 1.0611 to 1.1727

—E—+F1061NE
1.1727

2016: 1.0610 to 1.1726

ZE—RF :1.06102
1.1726

2017: 1.73% to 1.76%

Tt F1T73%%
1.76%

2016: 0.9863% to
1.0063%

5% increase (decrease) in FX spot
rate would result in decrease
(increase) in fair value by
HK$556,000 (2016: HK$843,000)

SNEBREE R EF(TFE) 5% &
R FAE T BE (35 50) 556,000
77T (ZZF — /<4 : 843,000/ 7T)

1% increase (decrease) in discount
rate would result in decrease
(increase) in fair value by
HK$88,000 (2016: HK$2,000)

BRER R 7T (TR 1% M E 2
A AT FE (3 10) 88,0007 7T
(ZZ—75& : 2,000% 7T)

ZZT— R 1 09863%F

1.0063%

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

A¥E

EER

f12ed 1

[E &%

RRFEXSEAERAR —E—tFF

TRHAPREERzERTAZ A FEF

%
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 43. SRIAZAFERAFERER(EA)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) REEE K (&)
Assets measured at fair value: DAFEFEZEE:

As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+=-HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using
FEALNTHBABEZAFEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

EAAHEE BARFAHE

JE BB 3% W E WAE WAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(% —#&%) (E=#&) (E=%) @at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET

Financial assets at fair value FEiRB AR TFED
through profit or loss R emEE 104,607 104,607
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—R"FE+ZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERAATEABZAFEFE

220

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BEAAHE BEATTEE

BT 5 M IE W AE W AE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—#&) (B=®) (B=#) FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET

Financial assets at fair value FEiRB AR A

through profit or loss R emEE — 134,687 — 134,687

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2017

Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

43.

EMIAZAVERAFEERE)

DN FEE R (E)

UAFEFEZEE:
R=ZZB—tH+=-A=+—8H

Fair value measurement using
FEALNTHBABEZAFEE

Quoted prices

in active

markets

& BT 5 R E
(Level 1)

(%8

— &)

HK$’'000
TER

FE N H i A R I
EEERZ
TRAE

Financial liabilities include in other
payables and accruals

As at 31 December 2016

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
EXRTHE EAXFTTHERE
BWAE WAE
(Level 2) (Level 3)
(B=#) (B=#)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT

11,950

Fair value measurement using

ERATEABEZAFENE

Total
@at
HK$'000
FBT

11,950

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BARAEE BATABRR

BRI WRE & AE & AE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—&) (B=%) (B=%) FoEy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT

Financial liabilities include in other FTACE b BE A 5B &
payables and accruals EERZ

TREE — — 17,619 17,619

IRBEEEEXEBERAR —Z—tF5R
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44.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and
trade
investments, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

cash equivalents, receivables, available-for-sale
amounts due from related parties and deposits and other
receivables, which arise directly from its operations. Financial
liabilities of the Group mainly include other payables and

accruals and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risks, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing
bank borrowings with floating interest rates.

At present, the Group does not intend to hedge its exposure

to interest rate fluctuations. However, the Group will
constantly review the economic situation and its interest rate
risk profile, and will consider appropriate hedging measures in

future as may be necessary.

With all other variables held constant, a change in interest
rates of 50 basis points per annum would cause a responding
change in the Group’s loss before tax by approximately
HK$476,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$473,000).

Foreign currency risk
The Group's businesses are located in the PRC and most of
the transactions are conducted in RMB.

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risks was primarily
related to bank balances and other receivables denominated
in RMB, US dollars and CAD. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. It manages its foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring the movements in the
foreign currency rates.

44.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 44, BIHEAREEZBBEREEE)

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) s | B ()
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRINERBERRAEERBE_Z
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the —tF T A=T—HIEFEZBREA
RMB, US dollars and CAD exchange rates (against HK$) on the HEAERARE  EXTMMNTER (KB
Group's profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2017 TTEAEGEANREBEEZ A FEE
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets). B)ifn A RE IR 2 H BRI BUKE o
Increase/  Increase/  Increase/  Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in RMB in CAD in USD in profit
rate rate rate before tax

ARBEZR mMaEXR XaEXR RBNER
i i R/ #m,/
(P &) (N ) (P &) (R 2)

2017
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB

If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB

If the HK$ weakens against the CAD

If the HK$ strengthens against the CAD

If the HK$ weakens against the USD

If the HK$ strengthens against the USD

2016
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB

If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB

If the HK$ weakens against the CAD

If the HK$ strengthens against the CAD

If the HK$ weakens against the USD

If the HK$ strengthens against the USD

% % %  HK$'000
FTHT
—ZT—+tF
WHETAARKEEE
WETAAREHE
fHE TR MTEE
@& TR mTHE
WETRELRE
WATRETLHE
—E-REF
WETRAREEE N/A N/A
5 T iE A 38 A 1,018
HAETEARERE N/A N/A
(5) N iE A NiE A (1,018)
W& TR mTiE N/A N/A
TiE 5 3 3,682
W& LML E N/A N/A
TiE A (5) 3 F (3,682)
WEBLTRELRE N/A N/A
i@ A N6 A 5 256
BT R ETLHE N/A N/A
T iE A N iE A (5) (256)

IRBEEEEXEBERAR —Z—tF5R
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 44. BIEEBREEZHERBER(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk FEERE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third REBERANZEERRIERZE=
parties. It is the Group's policy that receivable balances are FETRG ERKEZHET Bl
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to RIBRBRDRGEREEER A E
bad debts is not significant. FrA % 2 BRERI NE KX o
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which AEBEMEHMEE(BEREERESE
comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, BY BEBSEFR  AIHEHERE &
available-for-sale investments, financial assets at fair value BEEAATFEIEZCHEEREM
through profit or loss, and other receivables, arises from FEWGRIE) 2 5 BRI B ¥ F 5 2R
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal BER - EEARRBEENRZELAZE
to the carrying amounts of these instruments. H1E -
Liquidity risk NREEERKE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a AEEBBAFRALEUERDESCHRET
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the BEREeRRNER FEIAEZR
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets HemTARGREENIHR k&
and projected cash flows from operations. BRIEMEARESRE -
The maturity profile of the Group's as at the end of the REBRBERARBED FTAOR IR
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted HETEMEABERAT
payments, is as follows:
2017
—E—tF
On demand
or within 1to5 Over
1 year years S years Total
RER
X—FR —ZHEF EBEE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET

Interest-bearing bank FTEIRITRAMBR

and other borrowings & 91,052 133,613 274,968
Trade payables ERE SRR 16,878 — 16,878

Other payables H4th & 5 3008 108,690 9,540 118,230

216,620

143,153 410,076

224

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017



44.

45.

46.

Notes to Financial Statements e B 7% sk ki

Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z—F—+#+=H=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 44. HEEMEE 2B EREE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HREESEKE(E)
2016
—E—REF
On demand
or within 1to 5 Over 5
1 year years years Total
RER
H—F RN —ERF 838 I F #HaEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAET FAET
Interest-bearing bank FHEERTT R A A {8 5K
and other borrowings fa & 83,080 114,874 — 197,954
Trade payables ERTE SRR 10,007 — — 10,007
Other payables E b fE T 518 141,156 12,077 — 153,233
234,243 126,951 — 361,194
Capital management EXERE
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are AREFHETEAETENTEREARE
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going AREFGEPFESERESEEENL
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to RPIRHEEBERELSBREEBERA
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. 1k
The Group manages its capital structure and makes REFEBRBEBRIOES NIE@EEE
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions MNERFHEEEEANERETHEEL
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To FAE - BEFNABREARAREE KEE
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust AR M AR R IR MRS [MREER
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to BEARNBEITHRMD AEEHBBEST
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to AN ERERBER - REBEE T —+
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were F+-_A=+—"BR=-_Z—X<E+=H
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing =+ HLEFE BAEEMNBIZ K
capital during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 SIS A T B o
December 2016.
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 45. HREHEEE
On 30 January 2018, the Group entered into a working capital R-ZZE—N\F—A=+H AEEHR
loan agreement (“Agreement”) with the Beijing branch of MEEITIE RO ITEI L ZIEE & BE X sk
Bank of Jinzhou. Pursuant to the Agreement, Bank of Jinzhou (I %zl - EBEZHZ  BMNBTRAE
agreed to provide the Group with a two-year working capital Al 7 &£ B 1R A K #5100,000,0007T &9 fY
loan of RMB100,000,000 at a fixed interest rate of 6.65% per FHEEBEESEFR NEREETAEE
annum. 6.65% °
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 46. LB S

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform to current year's presentation.

ETHREBECEFIE
EH25 AR -

AT & AN

IEERRFELEEARAT —B— LR
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 47. ARATZBHERR K
Information about the statement of financial position of the MR E BIR A B AN 2 5 B S ik &k 2 B R
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: R
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WENERB 832 1,462
Investment in an associate R—REBEAFZKE 379,649 147,849
Investments in subsidiaries REBARZZE 5,143 5,143
Total non-current assets EREBEERE 385,624 154,454
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries JiE U BT B A B 3R 2,019,294 2,320,679
Due from related parties & s B8 & 75 F 8 87,241 —
Prepayments and other receivables ?EH/TAIE&E@J—EW%’JE 1,132 19,742
Financial assets at fair value through BRBERUARNTEIEZ
profit or loss SREE 104,607 122,111
Pledged deposits [ CIREREN = 20,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeNBEEEEY 55,742 59,314
Total current assets mMEBEELE 2,268,016 2,541,846
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T ERITER — 53,000
Other payables and accruals H e RIE R ERTE A 3,979 6,460
Total current liabilities MENBEGEER 3,979 59,460
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 2,264,037 2,482,386
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAEE
LIABILITIES 2,649,661 2,636,840
Net assets BEFE 2,649,661 2,636,840
EQUITY Rz
Share capital [N 1,209,648 1,234,578
Reserves & 1,440,013 1,402,262
Total equity PR 2,649,661 2,636,840



47.

48.

Notes to Financial Statements e 175k &M &+

Year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=—H=+—HIFFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 47. AD Rz BRI R (E)

(Continued)

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

ARRZEHBEZMOT

Equity-settled

Share share-based Share held for
premium Merger payment the share  Accumulated
account reserve reserve award scheme losses Total
B A L RRORB
R&HER B L
RGO RER oA IS4 BEHRS RitEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FERT FTER FERT FTER FERT
At 1 January 2016 RZF-R"F—A—H 1,822,632 (200) 44,780 (1,257) (395,188) 1,470,767
Total comprehensive loss for the
year FEREAFRERE - — — — (93,341) (93,341)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B E A A (22,881) — — — — (22,881)
Issue of shares upon placing o 5 B B AT RS 6,655 — — — — 6,655
Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options 178 B AR A B B AT AR D) — — 41,062 — — 41,062
Equity-settled share-based payment IR RE & B AR 1D R A HE
arrangements 33 (1,257) — — 1,257 — —
Shares purchased for the share BB BT EBEN
award scheme P tn — — (3,966) — 3,966 —
R-ZF—R"F+=A
At 31 December 2016 =t+—H 1,805,149 (200) 81,876 — (484,563) 1,402,262
Total comprehensive loss FE2AFEER
for the year 57,386 57,386
Issue of consideration shares BIRERD = 6,263
Equity-settled share-based payment PR 4 35 DA RR 1 R EE R
arrangements T 17,758
Share repurchased SEERY (43,656) (43,656)
R-Z—t#F
At 31 December 2017 +=ZA=+—8 1,767,756 99,634 (427,177) 1,440,013

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.

48. HIEmFTZHE
for HBERERER_TE—N\F=A=_F+N\H
EEESHERIBETE -

IRBEEEEXEBERAR —Z—tF5R
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Particulars of Properties

E

==
=

31 December 2017 —F—+#+=-A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWF
Percentage
of interest
attributable
Location Use Tenure to the Group
REBEGES
& Az HH AaL
No. 2, Zheng Fu Jie West Road, Office and retail Long term lease 70%
Changping District, Beijing, China
B b R 8 T [ IR £ 7 B 25k MAERTE REHED
No. 2518 and No.2538 Retail and Medium term 100%
Dongchuan Road, car parking spaces lease
Minhang District, Shanghai, China
R B B RIAT R BRI 35 25185% K 25385% ZEREFEMN 1 HRAE 49
No. 2-16, Lane 480 Ruili Road, Retail Medium term 100%
Minhang District, Shanghai, China lease
B 8 R 1T R I B BE4802 251657 TE AR 4
PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT BREPUE
Gross
Site floor Expected Attributable
area area Stage of completion interest of
Location Use (sq.m.) (sg-m.) completion date the Group
b 82 [ & BEEE REME
B Az (F 73 K) (F 73 K) %ITMER A% T HE b s
No. 328, Wankang Road, Industrial 20,480 32,768  Settlement June 2018 100%
Minhang District, work in
Shanghai, China progress
PR EERTE T RIHEER —T—)\F
B PR 83285k N A
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